
 
1 of  4 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, MAY 21, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 7, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Continuation of the public hearing on a proposed plan for the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban 

Renewal Area. 
 
a. Oral comments. 

 
2. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the 

rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of such area is 
necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the City; 
designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

3. Pass an ordinance providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 
property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, 
County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 
District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on 
loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by 
the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its first consideration. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2923, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 

property located within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, 
County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, 
and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, 
monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city 
in connection with the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
(Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan), upon its 
second consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2924, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to 
sanitary sewer rates, upon its second consideration. 
 



 
2 of  4 

 

3. Pass Ordinance #2925, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to 
storm water management rates, upon its second consideration. 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 

members to Boards and Commissions: 
(1) Katy Susong, Board of Appeals, indefinite term. 
(2) Phyllis Carter, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2021. 
(3) Betty Danielson, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2021. 
(4) Clare Struck, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2021. 
(5) Mary Carlson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(6) Annie Gougler, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(7) Leslie Prideaux, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 
 

b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 7, 2018 relative to the following 
items: 
(1) Public Safety Awards.  
(2) University Avenue Update. 
(3) Bills & Payroll. 
 

c. Receive and file the bids received for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 

d. Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 
Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 
 

e. Approve the following special event related requests:  
(1) Street closure, College Street, June 7, 2018 (with an alternate date of June 14, 2018). 
(2) Street closure, East 10th Street, June 8, 2018. 
(3) Parking variances, College Hill Arts Festival, June 15-16, 2018. 
(4) Street closures & parking variances, Gran Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride & FondoFest, 
August 18, 2018. 
 

f. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
(1) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road. 
(2) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street. 
(3) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue. 
(4) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive. 
(5) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street. 
(6) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way. 
(7) Electric Underground, 5901 University Avenue. 
(8) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 
(9) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive. 
(10) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive. 
 

g. Approve the following applications for liquor licenses: 
(1) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
(2) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(3) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
(4) Old Chicago Pizza and Taproom, College Square Mall, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 



 
3 of  4 

 

(5) The Other Place, 2214 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution rescheduling the date of the regularly scheduled Cedar Falls City Council 

meeting of July 2, 2018 to July 9, 2018. 
 

b. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Budget Appropriations. 
 

c. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Payroll Resolution. 
 

d. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Fee Schedule. 
 

e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with the Cedar Falls 
Historical Society relative to the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station. 
 

f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with the Cedar Falls 
Historical Society relative to the Bennington Township Schoolhouse. 
 

g. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of K. Cunningham Construction Company, 
Inc., in the amount of $457,535.03, for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 

h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for 
the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 
 

i. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. 
for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project. 
 

j. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and authorizing execution of 
two Rehabilitation Contracts with Kirvan Enterprises LLC, relative to Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation projects. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subcontract for Consulting Services 
with Tallgrass Archaeology LLC relative to a Certified Local Government Grant to prepare a 
nomination for the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic Places. 
 

l. Resolution approving the River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat. 
 

m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of Cedar Heights Drive. 
 

n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of the Union Road recreational trail. 
 

o. Resolution approving an amendment to the preliminary plat and phasing plan for The Arbors. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant Agreement for property 
located at 714 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 

q. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant Agreement for property 



 
4 of  4 

 

located at 810 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 

r. Resolution of support for Community Main Street, Inc. and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Main Street Iowa Program Agreement with the Iowa Economic Development 
Authority and Community Main Street, Inc. 
 

s. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Agreement for 
Private Development with River Place Properties LC relative to the River Place Development 
Project. 
 

t. Resolution setting June 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian 
Trail Improvement Project. 
 

3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to 
West 27th Street, upon its first consideration. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

L. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MAY 7, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland (present at 7:01 P.M.), Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
51845 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of April 16, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
The Mayor then read a proclamation declaring May 12, 2018 as Letter Carriers’ Food 
Drive Day and Postal Service Representative Olivia Balick present. 

 
51846 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item K. Executive Session was being removed 

from the Agenda. 
 
51847 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed plans, specifications, 
form of contract & estimate of cost for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. It 
was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51848 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

plans, etc. Upon being advised that there was one written comment on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Resler and Chair of Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee Roger White, 2303 Greenwood Avenue, commented 
briefly on the project. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed 
to the next order of business. 

 
51849 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,075, approving 

and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Center Street Recreational Trail Project, be adopted. Following a question by 
Councilmember Darrah and response from City Engineer Resler, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,075 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
51850 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed Agreement for 
Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to CRMS, 
L.L.C. It was then moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
51851 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
objections on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham 
commented briefly on the proposal. Planner II Graham and Community Development 
Director Sheetz responded to questions by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
51852 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,076, approving 

and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement with CRMS, L.L.C., and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to CRMS, L.L.C., 
be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,076 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51853 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed Agreement for Private 
Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to FN Investors, 
L.L.C. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
51854 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
objections on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham 
provided a brief explanation on the proposal and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
commented. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against 
the proposed agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51855 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,077, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement with FN Investors, L.L.C., and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to 
FN Investors, L.L.C., be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,077 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
51856 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed Agreement for Private 
Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Schuerman 
Construction, Inc. It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the proof 
of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
51857 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
objections on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham 
provided a brief explanation on the proposal and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
commented briefly. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51858 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,078, approving 

and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement with Schuerman Construction, Inc., and approving 
and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate 
to Schuerman Construction, Inc., be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,078 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51859 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 26, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed Amendment No. 4 to 
the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. It was then 
moved by Green and seconded by Darrah that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51860 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham provided a brief explanation 
of the amendment. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed amendment, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
51861 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,079, 

determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the 
rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, 
of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 
residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal 
projects; and adopting Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Plan, be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,079 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51862 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2923, providing 

that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, 
in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, 
including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city in connection with the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
(Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan), be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51863 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 26, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed plan for the proposed 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area. It was then moved by Green and seconded 
by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on 
file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51864 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed plan. 

Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the Mayor then 
called for oral comments. Planner II Graham provided a brief explanation of the 
proposed plan and requested that the hearing be continued to the next meeting. Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, commented.  
There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
plan, the Mayor announced continuation of the hearing to next City Council meeting 
on May 21, 2018 and noted that consideration and action on the related resolution 
and ordinance would be deferred until that time. 

 
51865 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments to the 
City’s FY18 Budget. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51866 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

budget amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on 
file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Controller/City Treasurer Roeding 
provided a brief explanation of the amendments and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
commented. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against 
the proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
51867 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,080, 

approving and adopting amendments to the City’s FY18 Budget, be adopted. 
Following a comment by Councilmember Kruse, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,080 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51868 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 
this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed issuance of not to 
exceed $5,800,000.00 General Obligation Bonds (for Essential Corporate 
Purposes). It was then moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the proof of 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
51869 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

issuance of bonds. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations Director 
Rodenbeck provided a brief explanation of the bond sale process and projects being 
funded, and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, commented. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed issuance of bonds, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51870 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,081, instituting 

proceedings to take additional action for the issuance of not to exceed 
$5,800,000.00 General Obligation Bonds (for Essential Corporate Purposes), be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Green and Darrah, and responses 
by Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of 
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,081 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51871 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed issuance of not to 
exceed $550,000.00 General Obligation Bonds (for a General Corporate Purpose). It 
was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51872 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

issuance of bonds. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak either for or against the proposed issuance of bonds, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51873 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,082, instituting 

proceedings to take additional action for the issuance of not to exceed $550,000.00 
General Obligation Bonds (for a General Corporate Purpose), be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,082 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51874 -     Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed issuance of not to 
exceed $350,000.00 General Obligation Bonds (for General Corporate Purposes). It 
was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51875 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

issuance of bonds. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations Director 
Rodenbeck responded to a question by Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road. There 

-5-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
issuance of bonds, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
51876 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,083, instituting 

proceedings to take additional action for the issuance of not to exceed $350,000.00 
General Obligation Bonds (for General Corporate Purposes), be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,083 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51877 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2922, amending 

Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removal of familial 
terminology to be in conformance with the Code of Iowa, be passed upon its third 
and final consideration. The Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of 
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: Kruse, Blanford. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2922 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51878 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Jacob 
Madden as Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2019. 

 
Approve a request for a temporary variance from Section 7-415 of the Code of 
Ordinances, Moving of certain buildings prohibited; safety of route, to allow a building 
exceeding 34 feet to be moved from 10 East Main Street to 310 East 4th Street. 
 
Approve a request for temporary signs for the College Hill Arts Festival, June 12-17, 
2018. 
 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
(1) Fareway Stores, 214 North Magnolia Drive. 
(2) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue. 
(3) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue. 
(4) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue. 
(5) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street. 
(6) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street. 
(7) Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street. 
(8) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street. 
(9) The Landmark, 107 Main Street. 
(10) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 
(2) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
(3) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(4) Suds & Suds Circle Pizza, 2223 1/2 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

-6-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

service - renewal. 
(5) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Island Park Beach House, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - 5-day permit. 
(6) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Gateway Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - 5-day permit.  
  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51879 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Wieland to receive and file the Committee 

of the Whole minutes of April 16, 2018 relative to the following items: 
(1) Sewer Rate Study. 
(2) Stormwater Rate Study. 
(3) Highway 58/Viking Road Update. 
(4) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and Councilmember Wieland, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 

51880 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green to receive and file the City Council 
Work Session minutes of April 30, 2018. Following questions by Jim Skaine, 2215 
Clay Street, and response by Councilmembers Wieland and Green, the motion 
carried unanimously.  
 

51881 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse to receive and file the City Council 
Goal Setting Report of November 13, 2017 and November 15, 2017, and 
Organizational Effectiveness Report of March 26, 2018. Following a comment by Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
51882 -   It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford to receive and file Departmental 

Monthly Reports of March 2018. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

51883 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse to receive and file the Bi-Annual 
Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY18 Self-Supported Municipal 
Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY18 Economic Development Grant. 
Following a question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

51884 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford to receive and file the FY18 
Report of Mill Race Center for Entrepreneurship and Innovation relative to an FY18 
Economic Development Grant. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

51885 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford to receive and file the bids 
received for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project. Following questions by Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street, and Councilmembers Miller and Green, and responses by City 
Engineer Resler, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

51886 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller to receive and file the bids 
received for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51887 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the following resolutions be 

-7-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 8 - 

 

introduced and adopted: 
 
Resolution #21,084, approving and authorizing the purchase of a wide area mower 
from Deike Implement. 
 
Resolution #21,085, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with Laser 
Line Striping relative to 2018 pavement marking services. 
 
Resolution #21,086, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for repair and 
replacement of the influent pump station electrical system at the Water Reclamation 
Facility. 
 
Resolution #21,087, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work 
of Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC for the 2016 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,088, approving and authorizing execution of two Easement 
Contracts, and approving and accepting two Permanent Easements and three 
Temporary Easements, in conjunction with the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 
 
Resolution #21,089, approving and accepting a Permanent Utility Easement, in 
conjunction with the Highway 58 & Viking Road Project. 
 
Resolution #21,090, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work 
of Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the 2015 Public Sidewalk Repair, 
Pedestrian Ramp and Patching Project. 
 
Resolution #21,091, approving and accepting completion of public improvements in 
Wild Horse Third Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,092, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 6 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Downtown 
Levee Improvements Project. 
 
Resolution #21,093, approving and authorizing execution of a Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement with Hawkeye Hotels, Inc. relative to a post-construction 
stormwater management plan for property located at the northwest intersection of 
South Main Street and West 1st Street. 
 
Resolution #21,094, approving and authorizing execution of a Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement with Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. relative to a post-construction 
stormwater management plan for 2900 Capital Way. 
 
Resolution #21,095, approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc., in the amount of $317,558.60, for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 
 
Resolution #21,096, approving and authorizing execution of a lease with Community 
Main Street Inc. relative to relocating an office building for Community Main Street. 
 
Resolution #21,097, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 

-8-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 9 - 

 

site plan for a detached garage and driveway improvements at 1926 Tremont Street. 
 
Resolution #21,098, approving the preliminary plat of River Place 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,099, approving the final plat of River Place 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,100, approving and authorizing submission of a High Quality Jobs 
Program Business Financial Assistance Application to the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority on behalf of Baird Mounting Systems/Threads. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,084 through #21,100 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
51888 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,101, 

approving and adopting the FY19 City Council Goals & Objectives, be adopted. 
Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,101 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51889 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,102, approving 

and authorizing execution of a Notice of Termination and a 28E Agreement for 
Cooperative Operation of the Island Park Beach House with the North Shore Boat 
Club, be adopted. Following a question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and 
comments by Councilmember Miller and Municipal Operations and Programs 
Director Ripplinger, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,102 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51890 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,103, approving 

and authorizing an Agreement for Beverage and Vending Services with Atlantic 
Bottling Company relative to providing beverages at recreational facilities, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,103 duly passed and adopted.  

 
51891 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,104, approving 

and accepting nineteen Warranty Deeds and nineteen Temporary Easements, in 
conjunction with the Center Street Recreational Trail Project, be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,104 duly passed and adopted.  

 
51892 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,105, approving 

-9-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 10 - 

 

and authorizing execution and delivery of Quit Claim Deeds conveying title to certain 
vacated right-of-way to Geisler Rentals, LLC and Aaron & Jolene Carolan, in 
conjunction with completion of the Dry Run Creek Watershed Improvement Project, 
be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,105 duly passed and adopted.  

 
51893 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,106, 

approving and accepting the low bid of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc., in the amount 
of $67,418.73, for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project, be adopted. Following a 
question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,106 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51894 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,107, approving 

and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Greenhill Road Traffic Study, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember deBuhr, response by City Engineer Resler and 
comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,107 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51895 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,108, 

approving an amendment to the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site 
plan relative to an MU2 development in the 100 block of East 2nd Street, be 
adopted. Don Blough, 527 Jessica Lane, and Eagle View Partners Developer Mark 
Kittrell commented.  Following questions and comments by Councilmembers 
deBuhr, Kruse and Miller, and responses by Community Services Manager Howard, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: Kruse. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,108 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
51896 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2924, amending 

Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary sewer rates, be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51897 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2925, amending 

Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to storm water management 
rates, be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 

-10-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 11 - 

 

51898 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that the bills and payroll be 
allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue 
City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51899 -   Councilmember Blanford welcomed new University of Northern Iowa Student Liaison 

Jacob Madden. 
 
51900 - Community Main Street Director Carol Lilly commented on the Strategic Planning 

Session and responded to a question by Councilmember Green. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz responded to questions and concerns by 

Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, relating to the Highway 58/Viking Road 
intersection and traffic congestion. 

 
 Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, expressed concerns about freedom of speech and the 

current form of government.  
 
 David Haugebak, 2516 Ashland Avenue, expressed concerns with traffic congestion 

on Highway 58. 
 
51901 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:42 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

-11-

Item C. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: May 3, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Adoption of the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 
 
At its April 2, 2018 meeting, City Council set a date of public hearing on the proposed 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan.  The proposed Urban Renewal Plan for the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area has been developed to help promote economic 
development in this portion of Cedar Falls. The primary goal of this Plan is to stimulate, 
through public involvement and commitment, private investment in new and expanded 
commercial and industrial development in the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
The South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is being formed from property that was 
removed from the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
because it had not yet developed. By placing this property in a new urban renewal area, 
the City hopes to renew efforts to develop this portion of the City (see image below). 
 

 
 
 
 

Proposed Urban Renewal Area Boundary 

-13-

Item E.1. 



As you can see in the proposed Plan, eligible urban renewal projects that may be 
undertaken within the area include development agreements, land acquisitions, 
extension of utilities by Cedar Falls Utilities, capital improvement/public infrastructure 
projects, and legal fees and expenses. 
 
Part of the legal requirement for establishing a new Urban Renewal Plan is to notify the 
local taxing entities (in this case Black Hawk County, Cedar Falls School District and 
Hudson School District) and conduct a “consultation session” to discuss the proposed 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan. A copy of the Minutes from the April 10, 2018 
consultation session is attached along with the meeting agenda. 
 
Another legal requirement for establishing a new Urban Renewal Plan is that the 
Planning and Zoning Commission must review and provide a recommendation finding 
that the proposed Plan is in conformance with the general plan for the development of 
the municipality as a whole (also known as the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan). The 
Planning and Zoning Commission did review the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan at their April 25, 2018 meeting, where it was unanimously recommended 
that the proposed Plan was in conformance with the general plan for the development of 
the municipality as a whole (see attached minutes). 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is attached for your review.  This Plan and 
related documents were drafted by Community Development staff in coordination with the 
Ahlers Law Office in Des Moines. 
 
It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for potential projects that may occur within the South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Area over the next few years.  To the best of our ability, staff is 
trying to identify all potential future projects to minimize the need for constant plan 
amendments (hopefully for the next 12-18 months) that require significant amounts of 
staff time and legal expense. 
 
Prior to entering into any new Development Agreements or proceeding with future 
infrastructure projects within the area, it is required that the South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan be adopted.  The Community Development Department recommends 
that City Council adopt the following attached Resolution and Ordinance prepared by 
the Ahlers Law Office: 
 

1. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, 
and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development, or a 
combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, 
safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as 
appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the South Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
2. An ordinance providing that general property taxes levied and collected each 

year on all property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, in 
the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the 
benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar 

-14-

Item E.1. 



Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other 
taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on 
loans, monies advanced to an indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be 
issued, incurred by the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Area. 

 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
       Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
       Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 

-15-

Item E.1. 



Hudson Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

U.S. Highway 20

Technology Pkwy
Highway 58

Chancellor Dr

Nordic Dr

Date: 3/13/2018

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
South Cedar Falls
Urban Renewal Area

I

Legend

Cedar Falls Corporate Limits

South Cedar Falls
Urban Renewal Area

-16-

Item
 E

.1. 



 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 
•  Public hearing on the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 

 
•  Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that 

the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, 
of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 
residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and 
adopting the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 

• C Consideration of Ordinance for the division of revenues under Iowa Code Section 403.19 
for South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
 
 

1. The above agenda items should be included, along with any other agenda items, in the 
meeting agenda.  The agenda should be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent 
place easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the 
principal office of the body holding the meeting.  If no such office exists, the notice must 
be posted at the building in which the meeting is to be held. 

 
2. If you do not now have a bulletin board designated as above mentioned, designate one 

and establish a uniform policy of posting your notices of meeting and tentative agenda. 
 

3. Notice and tentative agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the commencement 
of the meeting. 

 
NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-17-

Item E.1. 



ii 

May 21, 2018 
 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., on 
the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following 
named Council Members: 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 
 

* * * * * * *  

-18-

Item E.1. 



iii 

The Mayor noted that the public hearing on the matter of the adoption of the proposed 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan was opened on May 7, 2018 as provided in the published 
Notice of Public Hearing and continued to this meeting. The Mayor also noted that action on the 
"RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO BE AN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND THAT THE REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, 
REDEVELOPMENT, DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF SUCH 
AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR 
WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 
APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND ADOPTING THE SOUTH 
CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL PLAN" had been deferred to this meeting of the Council.  

 
The Mayor then asked the City Clerk whether any written objections had been filed with 

respect to the proposed Plan, and the City Clerk reported that __________ written objections 
thereto had been filed.  The Mayor then called for any oral objections to the adoption of the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan and __________ were made.  The public hearing was 
then closed. 
 

{Attach summary of objections here} 

-19-

Item E.1. 



iv 

Council Member ____________________ then introduced the following Resolution 
entitled "RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO BE AN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND THAT THE REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, 
REDEVELOPMENT, DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF SUCH 
AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR 
WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 
APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND ADOPTING THE SOUTH 
CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL PLAN" and moved: 
 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 
 

 to defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to the meeting to be 
held at __________ _____.M. on the __________ day of __________, 
2018, at this place. 

 
Council Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and the 
vote was, 
 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the measure duly adopted. 
 

-20-

Item E.1. 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO 
BE AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND THAT THE 
REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, REDEVELOPMENT, 
DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF 
SUCH AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE 
PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE OF THE 
RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 
APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND 
ADOPTING THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL 
PLAN 
 

 
WHEREAS, this Council has reasonable cause to believe that the area described below 

satisfies the eligibility criteria for designation as an urban renewal area under Iowa law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or "Urban 
Renewal Plan") for the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 
Area") described below has been prepared, which proposed Plan has been on file in the office of 
the City Clerk and which is incorporated herein by reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, this proposed Urban Renewal Area includes and consists of the following 
undeveloped property, a portion of which was removed from the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 
58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Plan: 
 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

-21-

Item E.1. 



2 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the East line of 
said Section 2; 

thence along said East line South to the South Corporate Limits line of the 
City of Cedar Falls; 

thence along said South Corporate Limits line West to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area includes land 
classified as agricultural land and consequently written permission of the current owners has 
been obtained and to the extent the City is an owner of agricultural land in the Area, the City 
consents to inclusion of its property in the Area through the adoption of this resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Urban Renewal Area be redeveloped as described in 
the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan to be known hereafter as the "South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Plan"; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes require the City Council to submit the proposed South 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan to the Planning and Zoning Commission for review and 
recommendation as to its conformity with the general plan for development of the City as a 
whole, prior to City Council approval thereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, creation of the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area and adoption of the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan therefore has been approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for the City as being in conformity with the general plan for development of the 
City as a whole, as evidenced by its written report and recommendation filed herewith, which 

-22-

Item E.1. 



3 

report and recommendation is hereby accepted, approved in all respects and incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on April 2, 2018, this Council directed that a 
consultation be held with the designated representatives of all affected taxing entities to discuss 
the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan and the division of revenue described 
therein, and that notice of the consultation and a copy of the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan be sent to all affected taxing entities; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such notice, the consultation was duly held as ordered by the 
City Council and all required responses to the recommendations made by the affected taxing 
entities, if any, have been timely made as set forth in the report of the Planner II, or his delegate, 
filed herewith and incorporated herein by this reference, which report is in all respects approved; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution this Council also set a public hearing on the adoption of the 
proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for the May 7, 2018 meeting of the Council, 
and due and proper notice of the public hearing was given, as provided by law, by timely 
publication in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, which notice set forth the time and place for 
this hearing and the nature and purpose thereof, and the hearing was initiated at the May 7 
meeting and continued to the May 21 meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the notice, all persons or organizations desiring to be 
heard on the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, both for and against, have been 
given an opportunity to be heard with respect thereto and due consideration has been given to all 
comments and views expressed to this Council in connection therewith and the public hearing 
has been closed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. That the findings and conclusions set forth or contained in the proposed "South 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan" for the area of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, legally 
described and depicted in the Plan and incorporated herein by reference (which area shall 
hereinafter be known as the "South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area"), be and the same are 
hereby adopted and approved as the findings of this Council for this area. 

Section 2. This Council further finds: 

a) Although relocation is not expected, a feasible method exists for the relocation 
of any families who will be displaced from the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area 
into decent, safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations within their means and without 
undue hardship to such families; 

b) The Urban Renewal Plan conforms to the general plan for the development of 
the City as a whole; and 

-23-

Item E.1. 



4 

c) Acquisition by the City is not immediately expected, however, as to any areas 
of open land to be acquired by the City included within the South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Area: 

i.  Residential use is not expected, however, with reference to any portions 
thereof which are to be developed for residential uses, this City Council hereby 
determines that a shortage of housing of sound standards and design with 
decency, safety and sanitation exists within the City; that the acquisition of the 
area for residential uses is an integral part of and essential to the program of the 
municipality; and that one or more of the following conditions exist: 

a. That the need for housing accommodations has been or will be 
increased as a result of the clearance of slums in other areas, including 
other portions of the urban renewal area. 

b. That conditions of blight in the municipality and the shortage of 
decent, safe and sanitary housing cause or contribute to an increase in and 
spread of disease and crime, so as to constitute a menace to the public 
health, safety, morals, or welfare. 

c. That the provision of public improvements related to housing 
and residential development will encourage housing and residential 
development which is necessary to encourage the retention or relocation of 
industrial and commercial enterprises in this state and its municipalities. 

d. The acquisition of the area is necessary to provide for the 
construction of housing for low and moderate income families. 

ii. Non-residential use is expected and with reference to those portions 
thereof which are to be developed for non-residential uses, such non-residential 
uses are necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and 
development of the City in accordance with sound planning standards and local 
community objectives. 

Section 3. That the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is an economic development 
area within the meaning of Iowa Code Chapter 403; that such area is eligible for designation as 
an urban renewal area and otherwise meets all requisites under the provisions of Chapter 403 of 
the Code of Iowa; that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development, or a 
combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or 
welfare of the residents of this City; and that the City hereby consents to the inclusion in the 
Area of property it owns which qualifies as agricultural land. 

Section 4. That the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 
and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same is hereby approved and adopted as the 
"South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area"; the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for such area is hereby in all respects approved; and the 
City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 
Plan with the proceedings of this meeting. 

-24-

Item E.1. 



5 

Section 5. That, notwithstanding any resolution, ordinance, plan, amendment or any other 
document, the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan shall be in full force and effect from the 
date of this Resolution until the Council amends or repeals the Plan.  Said South Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Plan shall be forthwith certified by the City Clerk, along with a copy of this 
Resolution, to the Recorder for Black Hawk County, Iowa, to be filed and recorded in the 
manner provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 21st day of May, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 
Label the Plan as Exhibit 1 (with all exhibits) and attach it to this Resolution. 
 

-25-

Item E.1. 



 
 

Final 

Exhibit 1 
 

SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN 
RENEWAL PLAN 

 
for the 

  
SOUTH CEDAR FALLS  

URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
 

South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan - 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-26-

Item E.1. 



SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
This Urban Renewal Plan (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the South Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Area (the “Area” or “Urban Renewal Area”) has been developed to help 
promote economic development in the City of Cedar Falls (the “City”). The primary goal 
of this Plan is to stimulate, through public involvement and commitment, private 
investment in new and expanded commercial and industrial development in the Urban 
Renewal Area. 
 
This Urban Renewal Area is being formed from property that was removed from the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area because it had not yet 
developed. By placing this property in a new urban renewal area, the City hopes to 
renew efforts to develop this portion of the City. 
 
In order to achieve this Plan’s objectives, the City intends to undertake urban renewal 
activities pursuant to the powers granted to it under Chapter 403 and Chapter 15A, 
Code of Iowa, as amended.  
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 

The South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is illustrated in Exhibit A and described in 
Exhibit B.  
 
The City reserves the right to modify the boundaries of the Area by amendments to this 
Plan. 
 

AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AGRICULTURAL LAND  
 

Some of the property being included in the Urban Renewal Area is defined as 
“agricultural land” by Iowa Code Section 403.17(3). In accordance with Iowa Code 
Section 403.17(10), the owners of such property have entered into agreement(s) 
agreeing to allow the City to include their real property defined as “agricultural land” in 
the Urban Renewal Area.  A copy of the signed agreement of each agricultural land 
owner within the Urban Renewal Area is attached as Exhibit C. The original signed 
agreements will be on file at City Hall. 

 
AREA DESIGNATION 

 
With the adoption of this Plan, the City of Cedar Falls designates this Urban Renewal 
Area as an economic development area that is appropriate for the promotion of 
industrial and/or commercial economic development. 

BASE VALUE 

-27-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
If the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is legally established, a Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) Ordinance is adopted, and debt is certified all prior to December 1, 
2018, the taxable valuation within the area included in the TIF Ordinance as of January 
1, 2017, will be considered the frozen “base valuation.” If debt is not certified until a later 
date or if a TIF ordinance is not adopted until later, the “base value” will be the 
assessed value of the taxable property within the TIF Ordinance area as of January 1 of 
the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the City first certifies the amount 
of any debt on the Area. It is possible that separate TIF ordinances for separate 
parcel(s) may be adopted as development in the Area warrants.  In that case, each 
separate TIF ordinance area may have a separate base and separate sunset or 
expiration date. 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has a general plan for the physical development of the City, as a 
whole, designated as the “Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan” adopted in May 2012. This 
Urban Renewal Plan is in conformity with the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan. The 
urban renewal projects included in this Plan also are consistent with the Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Plan does not modify the City’s existing zoning policies or designations. 
 
The need for improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and 
community facilities, or other public improvements within the Urban Renewal Area is set 
forth in this Urban Renewal Plan. As the Area develops, the need for public 
infrastructure extensions and upgrades will be evaluated and planned for by the City. 

 
PLAN OBJECTIVES 

 
Renewal activities are designed to provide opportunities, incentives, and sites to 
promote economic development, including new and expanded industrial and 
commercial development. More specific objectives for development within this Urban 
Renewal Area include: 
 

1. To stimulate through public action and commitment, private investment in 
new commercial and industrial development. 

 
2. To plan for and provide sufficient land for commercial or industrial 

development in a manner that is efficient from the standpoint of providing 
municipal services and that encourages the creation and retention of jobs. 

 
3. To provide for the installation of public infrastructure, including gas, water, 

and communications infrastructure, and public facilities in the Urban 
Renewal Area, which ultimately contribute to the sound development of 
the entire City. 

 

-28-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

4. To provide a more marketable and attractive investment climate through 
the use of various governmental incentives. 

 
5. To achieve a diversified, well-balanced economy providing a desirable 

standard of living, creating job opportunities, and strengthening the tax 
base. 

 
6. To develop a sound economic base that will serve as the foundation for 

future growth and development. 
 
7. To provide reimbursement of City personnel costs and other 

administrative and legal fees associated with the development and 
implementation of urban renewal projects within the Urban Renewal Area. 

 
TYPE OF RENEWAL ACTIVITIES 

 
To meet the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan and to encourage the development 
of the Urban Renewal Area, the City intends to utilize the powers conferred under 
Chapter 403 and Chapter 15A, Code of Iowa. Activities may include: 
 

1. To undertake and carry out urban renewal projects through the execution 
of leases, contracts, and other instruments. 

 
2. To make or have made surveys, studies, and plans necessary for the 

implementation of the Urban Renewal Program or specific urban renewal 
projects. 

 
3. To arrange for or cause to be provided the construction, relocation, or 

repair of public infrastructure, including but not limited to, streets, water, 
storm sewer, sanitary sewer, public utilities, sidewalks, street lights and 
signs, streetscaping and landscaping, or other related facilities and 
activities in connection with urban renewal projects. 

 
4. To acquire property through a variety of means (purchase, lease, option, 

contract, etc.) and to hold, clear, or prepare the property for 
redevelopment, or to dispose of property. 

 
5. To provide for the construction of specific site improvements such as 

grading and site preparation activities including site/soil reports and 
studies, access roads and parking, fencing, utility connections, and related 
activities. 

 
6. To make loans, forgivable loans, tax rebate payments, or other types of 

economic development grants or incentives to private persons or 
businesses for economic development purposes on such terms as may be 
determined by the City Council. 

 

-29-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

7. To use tax increment financing to facilitate urban renewal projects, 
including, but not limited to, financing to achieve a more marketable and 
competitive land offering price and to provide for necessary physical 
improvements and infrastructure. 

 
8. To borrow money and to provide security therefor. 

 
9. To provide contributions and/or incentives for appropriate redevelopment 

and development projects. 
 
10. To use any or all other powers granted by the Urban Renewal Act to 

develop and provide for improved economic conditions for the City of 
Cedar Falls and the State of Iowa. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance in of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
ELIGIBLE URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
1. Development Agreements 
 
The City expects to consider requests for development agreements for projects that are 
consistent with this Plan, in the City’s sole discretion. Such agreements are unknown at 
this time, but based on past history, and dependent on development opportunities and 
climate, the City expects to consider a broad range of incentives as authorized by this 
Plan, including but not limited to, land, loans, grants, tax rebates, public infrastructure 
assistance, and other incentives. The costs of such development agreements are 
estimated not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
2. Land Acquisitions 
 
The City expects to consider acquiring land in the Urban Renewal Area to 
accommodate future economic development and facilitate the provision of public 
services in an efficient manner that allows the City to provide these services to new and 
expanded businesses in the Urban Renewal Area. These acquisitions are expected to 
occur over the life of the Area as development occurs. The costs of such land 
acquisitions are estimated not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
3. Extensions of Utilities by Cedar Falls Utilities 
 
The City expects to enter into agreements with Cedar Falls Utilities providing for the 
extension of services by Cedar Falls Utilities in the Urban Renewal Area, to ensure the 
installation and/or relocation of utility infrastructure as necessary to accommodate and 
promote economic development and growth in the Urban Renewal Area. The 
agreement(s) will likely provide for the provision of infrastructure for the following 

-30-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

utilities: gas, water, communication, and electric. The extension of utility services will 
take place over the life of the Area as development occurs. The cost of these 
agreements to be reimbursed through tax increment financing is estimated not to 
exceed $5,000,000. 
 
4. Capital Improvement Projects/Public Infrastructure Projects 
 

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date 
Not to 

Exceed 
 

Rationale 

Sanitary sewer and other necessary 
infrastructure extensions for 
economic development growth along 
the Highway 20, Highway 58, 
Hudson Road and Ridgeway 
Avenue corridors within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $5,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

Construction of current or future 
public infrastructure within the Urban 
Renewal Area to include new and 
reconstructed roadways in the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 
 

$5,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

Other infrastructure tied to 
development, including but not 
limited to water, sanitary sewer, 
storm sewer, gas, electric, rail and 
communications in the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $2,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 
 
 

 

Construction, design, studies, 
inspection, and all other related 
costs for potential roadway 
modifications within the Urban 
Renewal Area, including but not 
limited to intersection improvements 
or modifications, new roadways, 
turning lanes, medians, and other 
road related improvements. 

2019-2039 $2,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 
 

Streetscape, landscaping and public 
art installation along roadways within 
the Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $400,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

Industrial Park Signage Program to 
include the installation of new 

2019-2039 $200,000 Economic 
Development- 

-31-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

signage in the South Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park, Wayfinding Signage, 
or other appropriate City signage 
within the Urban Renewal Area, 
along with ongoing maintenance, 
repair, or replacement of existing 
signage within the Urban Renewal 
Area.  

promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

 
5.  Fees, Costs, and Expenses (for urban renewal projects and planning) 
  

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date Not to Exceed 

Legal Fees: 

Legal, consulting, recording, publication, and other 
miscellaneous fees associated with land 
acquisition and economic development projects 
occurring within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $500,000 

Personnel Costs and Other Administrative Expenses to Support Urban Renewal 
Projects and Planning: 

Staffing/Personnel related expenses including but 
not limited to salary and benefits incurred by 
Community Development Department and other 
City personnel tied to supporting economic 
development and urban renewal projects within the 
Urban Renewal Area. Plan Amendment preparation 
and administration included. 

2019-2039 $500,000 

Engineering, Planning, and Study Costs: 

Engineering, design and inspection costs incurred 
for future roadway and infrastructure projects 
within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $1,000,000 

Planning, design, studies and associated costs for 
the development of land within the Urban Renewal 
Area.   

2019-2025 $500,000 

Traffic planning and studies tied to any roadway 
improvement projects. 

2019-2039 $200,000 

 
 
 
 
 

-32-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

FINANCIAL DATA 
 

Constitutional debt limit (as of July 1, 2017):  $149,224,259 
   
Current general obligation debt:  $13,270,000 

Proposed amount of indebtedness to be 
incurred: 
(This amount does not include financing costs, which 
will be incurred over the life of the Area.) 

 $32,300,000 
 

 
 

PROPOSED AMOUNT OF LOANS, ADVANCES, INDEBTEDNESS  
OR BONDS TO BE INCURRED 

 
A specific amount of actual debt to be incurred for the Eligible Urban Renewal Projects 
has not yet been determined. This document is for planning purposes only. The 
estimated project costs in this Plan are estimates only and will be incurred and spent 
over a number of years. In no event will the City’s constitutional debt limit be exceeded. 
The City Council will consider each project proposal on a case-by-case basis to 
determine if it is in the City’s best interest to participate before approving an urban 
renewal project or expense. It is further expected that such indebtedness, including 
interest on the same, may be financed in whole or in part with tax increment revenues 
from the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Subject to the foregoing, it is estimated that the cost of the Eligible Urban Renewal 
Projects as described above will be approximately $32,300,000 
 

URBAN RENEWAL FINANCING 
 
The City intends to utilize various financing tools such as those described below to 
successfully undertake the proposed urban renewal actions.  The City has the statutory 
authority to use a variety of tools to finance physical improvements within the Areas.  
These include: 
 

A. Tax Increment Financing. 
 

Under Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, urban renewal areas may 
utilize the tax increment financing mechanism to finance the costs of 
public improvements, economic development incentives, or other urban 
renewal projects.  Upon creation of a tax increment district within the Area, 
by ordinance, the assessment base is frozen and the amount of tax 
revenue available from taxes paid on the difference between the frozen 
base and the increased value, if any, is segregated into a separate fund 
for the use by the City to pay costs of the eligible urban renewal projects.  
Certain increased taxes generated by any new development, above the 

-33-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

base value, are distributed to the taxing entities, if not requested by the 
City, and in any event upon the expiration of the tax increment district. 
 
The City may also determine to use tax increment financing to provide 
incentives such as cash grants, loans, tax rebates, or other incentives to 
developers or private entities in connection with the urban renewal 
projects identified in this Plan.  In addition, the City may determine to issue 
general obligation bonds, tax increment revenue bonds or such other 
obligations, or loan agreements for the purpose of making loans or grants 
of public funds to private businesses located in the Area for urban renewal 
projects.  Alternatively, the City may determine to use available funds for 
making such loans or grants or other incentives related to urban renewal 
projects.  In any event, the City may determine to use tax increment 
financing to reimburse the City for any obligations or advances. 
 

B. General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Under Division III of Chapter 384 and Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, 
the City has the authority to issue and sell general obligation bonds for 
specified essential and general corporate purposes, including the 
acquisition and construction of certain public improvements within the 
Area and for other urban renewal projects or incentives for development 
consistent with this Plan.  Such bonds are payable from the levy of 
unlimited ad valorem taxes on all the taxable property within the City of 
Cedar Falls.  It may be, the City will elect to abate some or all of the debt 
service on these bonds with incremental taxes from this Area. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

PROPERTY ACQUISITION/DISPOSITION 
 
The City may finance or assist with financing the cost of land acquisitions in the Area. 
The City will follow applicable legal proceedings and procedures for the acquisition and 
disposition of property. 
 

RELOCATION 
 
The City does not expect there to be any relocation required of residents or businesses 
as part of the proposed urban renewal projects; however, if any relocation is necessary, 
the City will follow all applicable relocation requirements. 
 

STATE AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

-34-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

All provisions necessary to conform to state and local laws will be complied with by the 
City and/or the developer in implementing this Urban Renewal Plan and its supporting 
documents, objectives, and renewal activities. 
 

SEVERABILITY  
 
In the event one or more provisions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan shall be held 
for any reason to be invalid, illegal, unauthorized, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, unauthorization, or enforceability shall not affect any other provision 
of this Urban Renewal Plan, and this Urban Renewal Plan shall be construed and 
implemented as if such provisions had never been contained herein.  
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
This Urban Renewal Area Plan may be amended from time to time for a number of 
reasons, including but not limited to, to change in the area, to add new urban renewal 
projects, to update and/or modify ongoing urban renewal projects, to delete completed 
urban renewal projects, to add or change land use controls and regulations, to modify 
goals or types of renewal activities, or to amend property acquisition and disposition 
provisions. The City Council may amend this Plan pursuant to appropriate procedures 
under Iowa Code Chapter 403. 
 

EFFECTIVE PERIOD 
  
This Urban Renewal Plan will become effective upon its adoption by the Cedar Falls 
City Council and will remain in effect until it is repealed by City Council.  
 
With respect to the property included within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, 
which is also included in an ordinance which designates that property as a tax 
increment area, the use of incremental property tax revenues or the “division of 
revenue,” as those words are used in Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, is limited to 
twenty (20) years beginning with the first calendar year following the calendar year in 
which the City first certifies to the County Auditor the amount of any loans, advances, 
indebtedness, or bonds which qualify for payment from the incremental property tax 
revenues attributable to that property within a TIF ordinance of the South Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Area. The division of revenues shall continue on the Urban Renewal 
Area for the maximum period allowed by law. 
 
It is possible that separate TIF ordinances for separate parcel(s) may be adopted as 
development in the Area warrants.  In that case, each separate TIF ordinance may have 
a separate base and separate sunset or expiration date.   
 
At all times, the use of tax increment financing revenues (including the amount of loans, 
advances, indebtedness or bonds which qualify for payment from the division of 
revenue provided in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa) by the City for activities carried 
out in the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area shall be limited as deemed 
appropriate by the City Council and consistent with all applicable provisions of law. 
  

-35-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
MAP OF THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
 
  

-36-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

EXHIBIT B 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 
Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of 
the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right of way line of 
Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly extension of the 
Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of said Lot 20; 
thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South line of said 

Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 
thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 East to the 

Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 
thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly right of way line 

of said Technology Parkway; 
thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right of way line of 

Waterway Avenue; 
thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line of said Cedar 

Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 
thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in Ridgeway Park 

Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of Commerce Drive; 
thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East to the 

Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 
thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of said Ridgeway 

Park Addition; 
thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 
thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right of way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; 
thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly right of way line 

of U.S. Highway 20; 
thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the East line of said Section 2; 
thence along said East line South to the South Corporate Limits line of the City of Cedar 

Falls; 
thence along said South Corporate Limits line West to the West line of said Section 3; 
thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 3; 
thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner of said Section 

35; 
thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

  

-37-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

EXHIBIT C 
AGREEMENTS (6) TO INCLUDE AGRICULTURAL LAND  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-38-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-39-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-40-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-41-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-42-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

-43-

Item E.1. 



 
 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 
proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 
public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 
the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 
advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 
the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 
right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
 
 
01484029-1\10283-158 

-44-

Item E.1. 



 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY 
TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON ALL 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 
FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 
ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, after public notice 

and hearing as prescribed by law and pursuant to Resolution No. __________ passed and 
approved on the 21st day of May, 2018, adopted an Urban Renewal Plan (the "Urban Renewal 
Plan") for an urban renewal area known as the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (the 
"Urban Renewal Area"), which Urban Renewal Area includes the lots and parcels located within 
the area legally described as follows: 
 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

-45-

Item E.1. 



 -2- 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the East line of 
said Section 2; 

thence along said East line South to the South Corporate Limits line of the 
City of Cedar Falls; 

thence along said South Corporate Limits line West to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, expenditures and indebtedness are anticipated to be incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, in the future to finance urban renewal project activities carried out in 
furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, desires to provide 
for the division of revenue from taxation in the Urban Renewal Area, as above described, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. That the taxes levied on the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area 
legally described in the preamble hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of 
Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective date of this 
Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 2. That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax 
is levied each year by or for each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value 
of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of 
January 1 of the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, certifies to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, 

-46-

Item E.1. 



 -3- 

advances, indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue described 
herein, shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing 
district as taxes by or for the taxing district into which all other property taxes are paid. 

Section 3. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes 
determined as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance shall be allocated to and when collected be 
paid into a special tax increment fund of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
established, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to, indebtedness, 
whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or obligations issued under the 
authority of Section 403.9 or 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, as amended, incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects 
undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, except that (i) 
taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment levy of a school district 
imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2 and taxes for the instructional support program of 
a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 257.19 (but in each case only to the 
extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) taxes for the payment of bonds and 
interest of each taxing district; (iii) taxes imposed under Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to 
joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall 
be collected against all taxable property within the Urban Renewal Area without any limitation 
as hereinabove provided. 

Section 4. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the Urban 
Renewal Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal 
Area as shown by the assessment roll referred to in Section 2 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes 
levied and collected upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be paid into the 
funds for the respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner 
as all other property taxes. 

Section 5. At such time as the loans, advances, indebtedness, bonds and interest thereon 
of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 3 hereof have been paid, all 
monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall 
be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all other 
property. 

Section 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 
construed so as to fully implement the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as 
amended, with respect to the division of taxes from property within the Urban Renewal Area as 
described above.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be 
contrary to law, it shall not affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which shall at 
all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with 
reference to the Urban Renewal Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

-47-

Item E.1. 



 -4- 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
Read First Time: ____________________, 2018  
 
 
Read Second Time: __________________, 2018  
 
 
Read Third Time: ___________________, 2018  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2018. 
 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 
approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2018, 
signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2018, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Courier on ____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
01484032-1\10283-158 

-48-

Item E.1. 



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

April 25, 2018 
City Hall Council Chambers 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, April 25, 
2018 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The 
following Commission members were present: Adkins, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, and Saul. 
Arntson, Hartley and Wingert were absent. Karen Howard, Community Services Manager, Shane 
Graham, Planner II, and Iris Lehmann, Planner I, were also present. 
 
1.) Chair Oberle noted the Minutes from the April 11, 2018 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Howard noted that the adjournment time on the minutes was incorrect and should be changed 
to 7:00. Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the amended Minutes as presented. Mr. Holst 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, 
Holst, Leeper, Oberle and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review for 1926 Tremont 

Street. Chair Oberle introduce the item and Ms. Lehmann provided background information. 
She explained that the owner is proposing to build a new garage on the property, which will 
require the removal of the existing attached garage. As this is considered a substantial change 
in the College Hill Neighborhood District it requires Commission approval. Ms. Lehmann 
showed a sketch of the proposed garage and a rendering of the placement of the current 
garage placement, as well as the proposed garage. Staff recommends approval of the project. 

 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle and Saul), and 0 
nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was the River Place 4th Addition 

Preliminary and Final Plats. Chair Oberle introduce the item and Ms. Lehmann provided 
background information. She explained that Eagle View Partners is proposing to create a new 
lot in the River Place Development to be purchased by Community Main Street for their new 
office location. The plat is at the northeast end of East 4th Street at the entrance of the Water 
Reclamation Plant. She provided a general rendering and a sketch of the proposed plat and 
explained that zoning requirements are met and there will be an access easement over all of 
Lot 2. Staff recommends approval. Mr. Holst noted that he will need to abstain from the vote. 

 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve. Ms. Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Hartley, Leeper, Saul and 
Wingert), 1 abstention (Holst) and 0 nays. 

 
4.) The Commission then considered the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan. Chair Oberle 

introduce the item and Mr. Graham provided background information. He showed a rendering 
of the existing boundaries and noted that they are looking to establish a new urban renewal 
area that has not been developed. He discussed the state code requirements and 
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. He showed the future land use map and 
explained the different designations for each area. He indicated that specific goals outlined in 
the Comprehensive Plan include expanding and enhancing the commercial and industrial 
base, supporting new businesses through innovative economic development programs, 

-49-

Item E.1. 



 2 

repairing aging infrastructure, and expanding technology infrastructure to attract business and 
industry, to name a few. He indicated that within the Comprehensive Plan is also found a 
Future Land Use Map, which includes both current and proposed uses within the city. More 
specifically for the area of the city where the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
is being proposed, the Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial, Industrial, 
and Office/Business Park uses. 

 
Mr. Graham also discussed the objectives for the new Urban Renewal Plan, which includes: 

 
 a) stimulate private investment in new commercial and industrial development 
 b) plan and provide for sufficient land for commercial or industrial development 
 c) provide for installation of public infrastructure 
 d) use of various governmental incentives to provide a marketable and attractive 

 investment climate 
 e) achieve a well-balanced economy 
 f) develop a sound economic base  
  
 Staff feels that, based on the goals and designated future land uses listed in the 

Comprehensive Plan, the proposed objectives and activities of the proposed South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Plan are in conformance with the general plan for the development of the 
municipality as a whole. Staff recommends that the Commission find that the proposed South 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan is in conformity with the general plan for the development of 
the municipality as a whole. 

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion recommending that the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban 

Renewal Plan is in conformance with the general plan for the development of the municipality 
as a whole. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 
ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
5.) As there were no further comments, Mr. Holst made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leeper seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Holst, 
Leeper, Oberle and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
 

-50-

Item E.1. 



-51-

Item E.1. 



-52-

Item E.1. 



-53-

Item E.1. 



 



 

 -1-

ORDINANCE NO. _2923_ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1923, 2122, 
2461, 2696 AND 2785, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR 
ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE AMENDED 
CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 
FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 
ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE AMENDED CEDAR FALLS 
UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 
AREA (AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 
UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 
PLAN) 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has heretofore, in 

Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785, provided for the division of taxes within the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 
Area"), pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa; and 
 

WHEREAS, taxable property now has been removed from the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area through the adoption of Amendment No. 4 to the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is 
anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project activities within the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing 
needs of redevelopment within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of 
the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described 
in the premises. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, THAT: 
 

-55-

Item F.1. 



 

 -2-

Ordinance Number(s) 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785 are hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

a) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 
Renewal Area approved by Resolution No. 8196 on the 12th day of November, 1990, which 
Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 
Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 
North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 
Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 
3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 
extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 
1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 
corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 
of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 
section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 
thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 
of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 
distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 
of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 
line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 
thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 
west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 
b) Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) means that 

portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the 
Cedar Falls Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) approved 
by Resolution No. 10,224 on the 13th day of November, 1995, which Area includes the lots and 
parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 
and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 
P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 
 
And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 
 
And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 
corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 
Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

-56-

Item F.1. 



 

 -3-

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 
Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 
 
Except that portion described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 
Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 
North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 
Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 
3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 
extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 
1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 
corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 
of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 
Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 
thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 
of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 
distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 
of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 
line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 
thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 
west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 
 
c) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) means that portion of 

the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) approved by Resolution No. 
13862 on the 17th day of November, 2003, which Area includes the lots and parcels located 
within the area legally described as follows: 

 
The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-
half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 
Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 
Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 
 
Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 
Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 
the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 
(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa; 
 
Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 
Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 
Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 
Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 
 

-57-

Item F.1. 



 

 -4-

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 
South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 
South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 
seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 
1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 
89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 
Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 
seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 
 
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 
Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 00°39’19” 
East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 
feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 
South 00°39’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 
distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89°19’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 
thence North 00°39’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 
right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 89°19’13” East on the present 
South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 
beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 
 
Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 
assumed to bear South 00°39’19” East for the purpose of this description. 
 
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 00°39’19” 
East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 
feet; thence South 89°19’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 
80°54’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 
Viking Road; thence North 00°40’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 
line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 89°19’13” East on the 
North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 
point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 
road right-of-way. 
 
Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 
assumed to bear South 00°39’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

-58-

Item F.1. 



 

 -5-

 
d) Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) means that portion 

of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) approved by Resolution No. 16,631 on 
the 28th day of September, 2009, which Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area 
legally described as follows: 

 
That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 
part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 
Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 
along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 
Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 
to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 
East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 
thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 
line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 
to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 
said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 
 
e) Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 1 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 
No. 18,377 on the 10th day of December, 2012, which Amendment No. 1 Area includes the lots 
and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 
follows: 
All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 
Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 
South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 
of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 
Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 
the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  
 
And also, 
 
North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 
of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 

-59-

Item F.1. 



 

 -6-

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 
East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 
Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 
Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 
said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 
line to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, 
City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 
Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 
Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 
on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 
Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 
Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 
described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 
Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 
Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 
270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 
Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 
on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 
corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 
Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 
Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 

-60-

Item F.1. 



 

 -7-

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 
State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 
South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 
of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 
the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 
Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 
Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 
Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 
Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 
Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 
of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 
an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-
way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 
Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 
the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 
present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-
way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 
Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 
of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 
the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-
of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 
Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 
South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 
to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 
P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 
14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 
Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 
Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 
Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 
North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 
the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 
23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

-61-

Item F.1. 



 

 -8-

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 
Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 
present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 
Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 
Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 
line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 
Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 
to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 
Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-
of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 
the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 
State of Iowa. 
 
And also, 
 
From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 
P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 
Northern Railway, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 
prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 
of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 
Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 
parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 
Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-
way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-
of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 
line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 
prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 
North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 
present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 
Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-
way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 
Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 
Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 
Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 
East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 
the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

-62-

Item F.1. 



 

 -9-

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-
way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 
of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 
East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 
Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 
14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 
Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 
Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 
to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 
619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 
Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 
Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 
Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-
way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 
line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-
of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 
Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 
prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 
vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 
Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 
of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 
Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 
the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 
Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 
the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 
Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 
Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 
Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 
property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 
the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 
Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-
of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-
way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 
Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 
of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 
line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 
Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 
Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 
Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 
of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 
plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

-63-

Item F.1. 



 

 -10-

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 
Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 
Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 
(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 
Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 
to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 
Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 
to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 
present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-
way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-
of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 
Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 
Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 
550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 
line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 
Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 
Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 
of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 
13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 
South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 
Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 
Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 
Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 
on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 
Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-
way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 
41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 
Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-
way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 
Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 
58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 
58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 
Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 
beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 
 
And also, 
 
From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 
West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 
the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 
18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 
Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 
Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

-64-

Item F.1. 



 

 -11-

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 
Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 
Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 
Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 
Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 
West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 
line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 
218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 
218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 
being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 
center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 
line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 
Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 
Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 
Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 
Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 
in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 
 
f) Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 
 
g) Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 
 
h) Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 4 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 
No. _21,079__ on the 7th day of May, 2018, which Amendment No. 4 Area removes the lots and 
parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 
Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 
of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

-65-

Item F.1. 



 

 -12-

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 
D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 
Black Hawk County Recorder; 
 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 
the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 
 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 
of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 
 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 
the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 
Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 
 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 
South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 
 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 
South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 
 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 
way line of Technology Parkway; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 
said Section 35; 
 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 
 
and also, 
 
That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 
Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 
5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 
 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 
of said Section 36; 
 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 
corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 
way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 
right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 
Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 
point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 
Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 
in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

-66-

Item F.1. 



 

 -13-

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 
Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 
the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 
of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 
thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 
Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 
Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 
Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 
Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 
Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 
Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 
Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 
Beginning; 
 
and also, 
 
South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 
follows: 
All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 
Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 
South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 
of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 
Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 
the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 
 
And also, 

 
That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

-67-

Item F.1. 



 

 -14-

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

i) Amended Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 
included within the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, the Expanded Industrial Park 
Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995), the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 
Amendment No. 2 (2003), the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 
(2009), and the Amendment No. 1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area, except the portions removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, which Amended Area includes the 
lots and parcels located within the area legally described in Subsections (a)-(h). 

Section 2. The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended Area, legally 
described in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, County of Black Hawk, 
Iowa, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and all other 
taxing districts from and after the effective date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter 
in this Ordinance provided. 

-68-

Item F.1. 



 

 -15-

Section 3. As to the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, that portion of the taxes which 
would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing 
districts taxing property in such Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable 
property in such Area as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 1989, being January 1 of 
the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1923, shall be allocated to and 
when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 
district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The taxes so determined shall be referred 
herein as the "base period taxes" for such area. 

As to Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1995) Amendment No. 1 Area, 
base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 
the assessment roll as of January 1, 1994, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the 
effective date of Ordinance No. 2122, minus the total assessed value shown on the assessment 
role as of January 1, 1994 for the taxable property removed from the area by Amendment No. 4 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area.   
 

As to Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) Amendment No. 2 Area, 
base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 
the assessment roll as of January 1, 2002, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such 
area as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2461. 
 
 As to the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), that portion 
of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for 
each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in 
such Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 2009, such date being January 1 of 
the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, State of 
Iowa, certified to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, 
indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue for such Area. 
 
 As to Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 
assessment roll as of January 1, 2012, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 
as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2785. 
 

Section 4. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes for the 
Amended Area, determined for each sub-area thereof as provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, 
shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the special tax increment fund previously 
established by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 
monies advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including 
bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred 
by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban 
renewal projects undertaken within the Amended Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as 
amended, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment 
levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2  and taxes for the 
instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
257.19  (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) 
taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; (iii)  taxes imposed under 

-69-

Item F.1. 



 

 -16-

Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other 
exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable property within 
the Amended Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 5. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the areas 
of the Amended Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the areas shown 
by the assessment rolls referred to in Section 3 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and 
collected upon the taxable property in the Amended Area shall be paid into the funds for the 
respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 
property taxes. 

Section 6. At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and 
indebtedness of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 4 hereof have been 
paid, all monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended Area 
shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all 
other property. 

Section 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 
construed so as to continue the division of taxes from property within the various subareas, under 
the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as authorized in Ordinance No. 1923, 
2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785 as amended by this Ordinance.  Notwithstanding any provisions in 
any prior Ordinances or other documents, the provisions of this Ordinance and all prior 
Ordinances relating to the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, shall be construed to continue the 
division of taxes from property within the Area to the maximum period of time allowed by 
Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or application of this 
Ordinance which shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 
of the Code of Iowa with reference to the Amended Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 

-70-

Item F.1. 



 

 -17-

 
 
Read First Time:   May 7  , 2018  
 
 
Read Second Time: __________________, 2018  
 
 
Read Third Time: ___________________, 2018  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2018. 
 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 
approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2018, 
signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2018, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Courier on ____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
01465666-1\10283-159 

-71-

Item F.1. 



 



ORDINANCE NO. 2924 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF CHAPTER 27, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, PROVIDING FOR AN 
INCREASE IN SEWER RENTAL FEE RATES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Sec. 1. Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 27, Utilities, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Division 
1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, providing for an increase in sewer rental fee 
rates, and other miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu therefore, as follows: 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 

Sec. 27-26. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Contributor means any person responsible for the production of domestic, commercial or industrial 
waste which is directly or indirectly discharged into the city's sanitary sewer system.  

Sewage disposal plant means any and all units of the municipal disposal plant owned and operated 
by the city, including any and all intercepting and outlet sewers delivering or discharging sewage to or 
from the plant.  

Sewer rental means any and all rates, charges, fees or rentals levied against and payable by 
contributors.  

Water reclamation manager means the person delegated with the responsibility of the management 
and operation of the sewage disposal plant subject to such rules and regulations as the council may from 
time to time by resolution prescribe.  

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 

Sec. 27-27. - Water reclamation division.  

The water reclamation division of the department of community development is hereby created. The 
water reclamation division shall be under the control of the water reclamation manager, who shall be 
appointed by and be directly responsible to the director of community development.  

Sec. 27-28. - Supervision of sewage disposal plant.  

The water reclamation manager shall have complete charge of the operation of the sewage disposal 
plant. The water reclamation manager shall employ and have direct charge of all employees of the 
sewage disposal plant.  

Sec. 27-29. - Sewage rental fund.  

All moneys received by the controller/city treasurer from any source on account of the sewage 
disposal plant shall be kept in a separate and distinct fund, to be known as the sewer rental fund, and 
shall be paid out by him/her only by legal checks of the city.  

-73-

Item F.2. 



Sec. 27-30. - Rental fees generally.  

(a)  Monthly rental fee: determination generally. Subject to the exceptions hereinafter provided, each 
metered dwelling which uses city water, shall pay to the city a monthly sewer rental fee, the same to 
be determined by the amount of city water used, as follows: For up to and including the first 200 
cubic feet of water used, hereinafter referred to as the "base rate," the monthly sewer rental fee shall 
be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Base Rate," commencing on the 
date set forth in the corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

For water uses over 200 cubic feet, hereinafter referred to as the "incremental rate," the monthly 
sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Incremental 
Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of 
Rate Change."  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  
SEWER RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE  

Date of Rate Change  Base Rate  Incremental Rate  

July 1, 2018  $18.52 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.32 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2019 $19.45 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.49 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2020 $20.42 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.66 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2021 $21.44 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.84 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

  

(b)  Maximum fees for residential use. Residential sewer rental fees during the months of May through 
November shall not exceed the average amount charged for usage during the previous January 
through March period.  

(c)  Reduction for low-income households. Each payor of the monthly sewer rental fee who meets the 
low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of community development for, 
and be granted, a $3.00 per month reduction in the monthly sewer rental fee for the first 200 cubic 
feet of water used.  

(d)  Users without city water service. Each user of city sanitary sewer which does not have water 
provided and metered by the city utilities shall be charged a monthly sewer rental fee which is two 
times the base rate which is provided for in subparagraph (a) of this section. That user may, 
however, through certified metering of well water for residential use or provision of receipts from a 
recognized adjoining public water jurisdiction, provide to the director of community development 
documentation of actual water usage. If water usage can be verified, that user will be charged the 
monthly sewer rental fee as provided in subparagraphs (a) and (b), above.  

(e)  Mobile home parks. Mobile home parks utilizing a central water metering system shall be charged 
the same monthly sewer rental fees for each dwelling unit connected to the public sewage disposal 
system as are provided for in subparagraph (a) of this section.  

(f)  Determination of multiple dwelling rental fees. Multiple dwellings using a single water meter shall pay 
at the same rates listed in subparagraph (a) above, with the usage for each individual dwelling unit 
determined by dividing the amount of water metered by the number of dwelling units, regardless of 
occupancy of said units.  

-74-

Item F.2. 



(g)  Determination of commercial, industrial rental fees. Commercial and industrial sewer rental fees 
shall be based on actual water usage, metered or unmetered, including water added to the sewage 
disposal system by the commercial or industrial users, at the same rates described in subparagraph 
(a) above. However, the director of community development may establish reduced sewer rental 
fees, to be reviewed on an annual basis, for commercial and industrial users which have unique 
discharges requiring very little actual treatment, such as the discharge of cooling water or boiler 
blowdown.  

(h)  Residential monthly fee for certain commercial, industrial users. Commercial and industrial users 
that use higher volumes of water in the months May through November each year exclusively for 
purposes such as watering lawns, and can demonstrate to the director of community development 
that said water does not enter the sanitary sewer system may have their sewer bills adjusted such 
that sewer user fees billed for usage May through November each year will not exceed the average 
bills for usage in the months December through April each year.  

(i)  Industrial surcharge. An industrial user, as defined in division 4, of article III, shall be surcharged at 
the rate of $0.10 for each pound of both biochemical oxygen demand, as defined in said division 4 of 
article III, and total suspended solids for all discharges to the sanitary sewer system which exceed a 
concentration of 300 milligrams per liter.  

(j)  Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates included in this 
section.  

(k)  Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial or industrial 
users that can demonstrate to the director of community development that water used does not enter 
the sanitary sewer system.  

(l)  Payment. All fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the same time the payment for 
city water service is made or on the first day of the month for those users of sewer service who do 
not use city water service. All required payments are to be made at the office of the municipal 
utilities.  

(m)  Sanitary sewer surcharge for discharge of storm water to city sanitary sewer system. The owner of 
any property in the city who fails to comply with the provisions of section 7-264 or section 7-265 of 
this Code, relating to discharge of storm water or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer system, 
shall be assessed a surcharge fee, to be added to the property owner's city sewer bill, in the amount 
of $100.00 per month, as provided in section 7-266 of this Code.  

Sec. 27-31. - Failure to pay rental fees; authority to terminate service.  

(a)  Where a consumer is a contributor of city water, or is a user of city sanitary sewer service who does 
not use city water service, the sewer rentals, rates or charges shall be subject to the following rules 
of delinquency and suspension of service:  

(1)  Whenever any of the rules and regulations of this article are violated, the sewer service shall 
be cut off and shall not be turned on again except by order of the council and water reclamation 
manager and upon payment of the expense of shutting it off and turning it on, and on such other 
terms as the council may determine upon and a satisfactory understanding with the account 
holder that no further complaint shall arise. Such sewer service shall not be discontinued unless 
prior written notice is sent to the account holder by ordinary mail, informing the account holder 
of the nature of the delinquency and affording the account holder the opportunity for a hearing 
prior to discontinuance of service. If the account holder is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord 
of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall also be given to the owner 
or landlord.  

(2)  In case of violation of this article, the council shall have the right to declare any payment made 
for the sewer service by the person committing such violation to be forfeited, and the service 
shall thereupon be forfeited.  

-75-

Item F.2. 



(b)  (1)  In addition to the rules of delinquency and suspension of service mentioned in subsection (a) 
of this section, the city shall have a lien upon the property served by such sanitary utility for all 
delinquent rate or rental payments in accordance with I.C.A. § 384.84.  

(2)  A lien shall not be placed upon a mobile home, modular home, or manufactured home served 
by any of the services described in this division if the mobile home, modular home, or 
manufactured home is owned by a tenant of and is located in a mobile home park or 
manufactured home community and the mobile home park or manufactured home community 
owner or manager is the account holder, unless the lease agreement specifies that the tenant is 
responsible for payment of a portion of the rates or charges billed to the account holder.  

(3)  Notwithstanding subsection (b)(2), except for mobile home parks or manufactured home 
communities where the mobile home park or manufactured home community owner or manager 
is responsible for paying the rates or charges for services described in this division, a lien shall 
not be filed against the land if the premises receiving any of the services described in this 
division are located on leased land. If the premises are located on leased land, a lien may be 
filed against the premises only. For the purposes of this division, "premises" includes a mobile 
home, modular home, or manufactured home as defined in I.C.A. § 435.1.  

(4)  Prior written notice of intent to certify a lien shall be given to the account holder of the 
delinquent account at least 30 days prior to certification. If the account holder is a tenant, and if 
the owner or landlord of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall also 
be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be sent to the appropriate persons by 
ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the certification of the lien to the county treasurer. 
After compliance with the foregoing provisions, the city clerk shall certify for taxation purposes 
and the establishing of the property lien to the county treasurer all delinquent rent, rate or rental 
payments, together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien shall not be certified to the 
county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the purpose of the certification 
and for no other purpose whatsoever, rent, rate or rental payments shall be designated as 
delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books carrying rent, rate or rental 
payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months following their due date.  

(c)  Where the contributor is an operator of a private water supply, failure to pay rentals shall be subject 
to similar rules as to delinquency and suspension of service, property lien, certification of 
delinquency and definition of delinquency as set out in this section.  

Secs. 27-32—27-50. - Reserved.  

INTRODUCED:     May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:        
 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 

ADOPTED:           
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 

      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-76-

Item F.2. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2925 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE III, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, OF 
CHAPTER 27, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, PROVIDING FOR AN INCREASE IN STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT FEES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Article III, Storm Water Management Program, of Chapter 27, Utilities of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Article III, Storm Water 
Management Program, providing for an increase in storm water management fees, and other 
miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu therefore, as follows: 

ARTICLE III. - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

Sec. 27-113. - Acronyms.  

The following acronyms when used in this chapter shall have the following designated meaning:  

BMP  Best Management Practice  

CFR  Code of Federal Regulations  

CWA  Clean Water Act  

FEMA  Federal Emergency Management Agency  

HHW  Household Hazardous Waste  

IDNR  Iowa Department of Natural Resources  

IDOT  Iowa Department of Transportation  

MS4  Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System  

NOI  Notice of Intent  

NOT  Notice of Termination  

NOV  Notice of Violation  

NPDES  National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  

NPS  Non-Point Source  

-77-

Item F.3. 



NRCS  National Resource Conservation Service  

RCRA  Resource Conservation Recovery Act of 1976  

SMCRA  Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977  

SWPPP  Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan  

TMDL  Total Maximum Daily Load  

USDA  United States Department of Agriculture  

US EPA  United States Environmental Protection Agency  

USGS  United States Geodetic Survey  

 

Sec. 27-114. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Adverse impacts: Any negative impact on plant, soil, air or water resources affecting their beneficial 
uses including recreation, aesthetics, aquatic habitat, quality, and quantity.  

Allowable non-storm water discharges: Discharge from fire fighting activities that are necessary due 
to an immediate danger to life or property; fire hydrant flushing; potable water sources; water line flushing; 
uncontaminated groundwater; uncontaminated pumped ground water; crawl space pump water; natural 
springs; natural riparian habitat or wetland flows; irrigation water (except for wastewater irrigation); air 
conditioning condensation; exterior building wash water when no detergents or other surfactants are 
used; pavement wash waters where spills or leaks of toxic or hazardous materials have not occurred and 
when no detergents or other surfactants are used (unless all spilled material has been removed); diverted 
stream flows; storm sewer system cleaning water; residential or non-commercial washing of vehicles; de-
chlorinated swimming pool discharge less than one part per million (PPM) chlorine; residual street wash 
water; de-chlorinated water from reservoir discharges; foundation or footing drains where flows are not 
contaminated with process materials such as solvents (not including active groundwater dewatering 
systems); discharges specified in writing by the city engineer, or designated representative, as being 
necessary to protect public health and safety of citizens; dye-testing procedures (requires a verbal 
notification to the city engineer, or designated representative, prior to the time of the test); and any other 
water source not containing pollutants, as approved by the city engineer, or designated representative.  

Animal waste: See Pet Waste.  

Applicant: Any person, firm, or governmental agency who executes the necessary forms to procure 
official approval of a development or permit. In gaining official approval, the person, firm or governmental 
agency intends to carry out construction of a new development or re-development.  

Base flood elevation: The elevation at all locations delineating the level of flooding resulting from the 
100-year frequency flood event. The 100-year flood event has a one percent probability of being equaled 
or exceeded in any given year.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs): Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance 
procedures and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the state. 

-78-

Item F.3. 



BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures and practices to control facility site 
runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal or drainage from raw material storage.  

Building official: City official or other designated authority charged with the administration and 
enforcement of the city building codes.  

Building permit: Permit issued for the construction, erection or alteration of a structure or building and 
the related ground and surface preparation prior to and after completion of construction, erection or 
alteration of a structure or building.  

By-pass flow: Storm water runoff from upstream properties tributary to a property's drainage system 
but not under its control.  

Calendar quarter: Each of the following periods: December through February, March through May, 
June through August, and September through November.  

Certify or certification: Formally attesting that the specific inspections and tests were performed, and 
that such inspections and tests comply with the applicable requirements of this chapter.  

Channel: Any defined river, stream, creek, brook, natural or artificial depression, ponded area, on-
stream lake or impoundment, abandoned mine, flowage, slough, ditch, conduit, culvert, gully, ravine, 
wash, or natural or manmade drainage way, which has a definite bed and bank or shoreline, in or into 
which surface or groundwater flows, either perennially or intermittently.  

Channel modification: The alteration of a channel by changing the physical dimensions or materials 
of its bed or banks. Channel modification includes, but is not limited to, damming, placement of riprap (or 
other armoring), filling, widening, deepening, straightening, relocating, lining, and significant removal of 
bottom or woody rooted vegetation. Channel modification does not include the clearing of debris or 
removal of trash.  

City engineer: The professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa who is designated as city 
engineer by the city council.  

Clean Water Act (CWA): The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), and 
any subsequent amendments thereto. (Formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972).  

Clearing: Any activity which removes vegetative ground cover.  

Commercial: Pertaining to any business, trade, industry, or other activity engaged in for profit.  

Compensatory storage: An artificially excavated, hydraulically equivalent volume of storage within 
the floodplain used to balance the loss of natural flood storage capacity when fill or structures are placed 
within the floodplain.  

Conduit: Any channel, pipe, sewer or culvert used for the conveyance or movement of water, 
whether open or closed.  

Construction site: Any location where clearing, grading, filling, paving, construction, or other activity 
occurs related to a change or improvement of property.  

Contaminated: Containing harmful quantities of pollutants.  

Contractor: Any person or firm performing or managing construction work at a construction site, 
including any construction manager, general contractor or subcontractor. Also includes, but is not limited 
to, earthwork, paving, building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical or landscaping contractors, and material 
suppliers delivering materials to the site.  

Department: The Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) or an authorized representative.  

Detention basin: A facility constructed or modified to provide for the temporary storage of storm 
water runoff and the controlled release of this runoff at a prescribed rate during and after a flood or storm.  

Detention time: The amount of time storm water is held within a detention basin.  

-79-

Item F.3. 



Developed property: Land that is altered from a natural state by grading and/or construction activity 
for the purpose of constructing residential, commercial, industrial, or institutional facilities such that the 
hydrology of the property is affected.  

Development or redevelopment: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to building or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation, or drilling operations.  

Discharge: The release of water, and any elements, compounds and particles contained within or 
upon released water, from property owned or controlled by any person.  

Discharger: Any person who causes, allows, permits, or is otherwise responsible for a discharge, 
including, without limitation, any owner of a construction site or industrial facility.  

Domestic sewage: Sewage originating primarily from kitchen, bathroom and laundry sources, 
including waste from food preparation, dishwashing, garbage grinding, toilets, baths, showers and sinks.  

Drainage plan: A plan, including engineering drawings and supporting calculations, which describes 
the existing storm water drainage system and environmental features, including grading, as well as 
proposed alterations or changes to the drainage system and environment of a property. Also see Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).  

Dry basin: A detention basin designed to drain after temporary storage of storm water flows and to 
normally be dry over much of its bottom area.  

Earthwork: The disturbance of soils on a site associated with clearing, grading, or excavation 
activities.  

Erosion: The general process whereby soil or earth is moved by rainfall, flowing water, wind or wave 
action.  

Excavation: Any act by which organic matter, earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other similar material is 
cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, re-located or bulldozed, and shall include the 
conditions resulting from such actions.  

Excess storm water runoff: The volume and rate of flow of storm water discharged from a new 
development or re-development, which is or will be in excess of that volume and rate which existed 
before development or re-development.  

Existing grade: The vertical location of the existing ground surface prior to excavation or filling.  

Facility: An entity which discharges storm water.  

Fertilizer: A substance or compound that contains an essential plant nutrient element in a form 
available to plants and is used primarily for its essential plant nutrient element content in promoting or 
stimulating growth of a plant or improving the quality of a crop, or a mixture of two or more fertilizers.  

Fill: Any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock, or any other material is deposited, placed, replaced, 
pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved by man to a new location, and shall include the conditions 
resulting therefrom.  

Final grade: The vertical location of the ground surface after grading work is completed in 
accordance with the plans.  

Fire protection water: Any water, and any substances or materials contained therein, used by any 
person to control or extinguish a fire, or to inspect or test fire equipment.  

Garbage: Animal and vegetable waste materials from the handling, preparation, cooking or 
consumption of food, including waste materials from markets, storage facilities, and the handling and sale 
of produce and other food products. Also, refuse and other unwanted and useless material.  

Grading: Any act of excavation or fill of land surface to a desired slope or elevation, or any 
combination thereof, and shall include the conditions resulting from any excavation or fill.  

-80-

Item F.3. 



Groundwater: Any water residing below the surface of the ground or percolating into or out of the 
ground.  

Harmful quantity: The amount of any substance that the appropriate official determines will cause an 
adverse impact to storm drainage system or will contribute to the failure of the jurisdiction to meet the 
water quality based requirements of the NPDES permit for discharges from the MS4.  

Hazardous substance: Any substance listed in Table 302.4 of 40 CFR Part 302.  

Hazardous waste: Any substance identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the EPA pursuant to 
40 CFR Part 261.  

Household hazardous waste (HHW): Any material generated in a household (including single and 
multiple residences) that would be classified as hazardous by the IDNR or US EPA or by any rule or 
regulation promulgated by either agency.  

Hydrograph: A graph showing, for a given location on a stream or conduit, the flow rate with respect 
to time.  

Hydrograph method: A method that estimates runoff volume and runoff hydrographs for a point of 
interest by generating hydrographs for individual sub areas, combining them, and routing them through 
stream lengths and reservoir structures. Factors such as rainfall amount and distribution, runoff curve 
number, time of concentration, and travel time are included.  

Illegal discharge: See Illicit Discharge below.  

Illicit connection: Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allow an 
illicit discharge to enter the MS4.  

Illicit discharge: Any discharge to the MS4 that is prohibited under this chapter of the Code of 
Ordinances.  

Impervious surface: A hard-surfaced area that prevents or retards the entry of water into the soil. An 
impervious surface may cause water to run off the surface in greater quantities, or at an increased rate of 
flow, than was present under natural conditions. Impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof 
tops, asphalt or concrete streets, sidewalks, driveway paving, parking lots, walkways, patio areas, storage 
areas, gravel, bituminous substances or other surfaces which similarly affect the natural infiltration, or 
runoff patterns, of real property in the natural state with existing ground cover.  

Industrial waste (commercial waste): Any wastes produced as a by-product of any industrial, 
institutional or commercial process or operation, other than domestic sewage.  

Infiltration: The passage or movement of water into the ground.  

Land disturbing activity: The process of disturbing existing groundcover, excavation of existing site 
material, or the placement of fill material on a site, related to a man-made change to improved or 
unimproved real estate, including but not limited to building or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
grading, paving, excavation, or drilling operations.  

Loessal soil: Sediment, commonly non-stratified and unconsolidated, composed predominately of 
silt-sized particles with accessory clay and sand.  

Lot: A parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, 
coverage and area to provide such yards and other open space as are herein required. No portion of an 
established floodway area lying within a lot or any access drive through a property shall be used in 
computing the number of dwelling units to be constructed. Such lot shall have frontage on a public street 
or private street and may consist of:  

(a)  A single lot of record;  

(b)  A portion of a lot of record;  

(c)  A combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of lots of 
record, or of portions of lots of record; and  

-81-

Item F.3. 



(d)  A parcel of land described by metes and bounds;  

Provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residential lot or parcel be created 
which does not meet the requirements of this chapter.  

Major drainage system: That portion of a drainage system needed to store and convey flows beyond 
the capacity of the minor drainage system.  

May: Signifies an act that is discretionary.  

Mechanical fluid: Any fluid used in the operation and maintenance of machinery, vehicles and any 
other equipment, including lubricants, antifreeze, petroleum products, oil and fuel.  

Minor drainage system: Portion of a drainage system designed for the convenience of the public. It 
consists of street gutters, storm sewers, small open channels and swales.  

Mitigation: Activity necessary when the prescribed controls are not sufficient and additional 
measures are required to offset the development, including those measures necessary to minimize the 
negative effects which storm water drainage and development activities might have on the public health, 
safety and welfare. Examples of mitigation include, but are not limited to, compensatory storage, soil 
erosion and sedimentation control, and channel restoration.  

Mobile commercial cosmetic cleaning (or mobile washing): Power washing, steam cleaning, and any 
other method of mobile cosmetic cleaning of vehicles and/or exterior surfaces, engaged in for commercial 
purposes or related to a commercial activity.  

Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4): The conveyance or system of conveyances, 
including storm sewers, roadways, roads with drainage systems, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, 
constructed channels and storm drains, owned or operated by the city.  

Natural: Conditions resulting from physical, chemical, and biological processes without intervention 
by man.  

Natural drainage: Channels formed in the existing surface topography of the earth prior to changes 
made by unnatural causes.  

NPDES: The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.  

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase II Permit: A permit issued by the 
US EPA or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b) that authorizes the 
discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on an individual, 
group, or general area-wide basis.  

Non-storm water discharge: Any discharge that to the MS4 that is not composed entirely of storm 
water.  

Notice of violation: A written notice detailing any violations of this chapter and any action expected of 
the violators.  

Oil: Any kind of oil in any form, including but not limited to petroleum, fuel oil, crude oil, synthetic oil, 
motor oil, cooking oil, grease, sludge, oil refuse, and oil mixed with waste.  

One hundred-year event: A rainfall, runoff, or flood event having a one percent probability of being 
equaled or exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise 
noted.  

One-year event: A rainfall, runoff, or flood event having a 100 percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Outfall: The point at which water or any other material leaves or may leave the MS4 and also means 
the point at which water or any other material leaves or may leave an enclosed conveyance that is part of 
the MS4 and enters an open conveyance that is also part of the MS4.  

Owner: The person who owns a facility, part of a facility, or land.  

-82-

Item F.3. 



Parcel: A contiguous lot or tract of land under one ownership. A lot or tract of land is land intended as 
a unit for the purpose of use, development or transfer of ownership.  

Peak flow: The maximum rate of flow of water at a given point in a channel or conduit.  

Permittee: The city.  

Person: Any individual, partnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock company, 
trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity, or their legal representatives, agents, or 
assigns, including all federal, state, and local governmental entities.  

Pesticide: A substance or mixture of substances intended to prevent, destroy, repel, or migrate any 
pest.  

Pet waste (or animal waste): Excrement and other waste from domestic animals.  

Petroleum product: A product that is obtained from distilling and processing crude oil and that is 
capable of being used as a fuel or lubricant in a motor vehicle or aircraft, including motor oil, motor 
gasoline, gasohol, other alcohol-blended fuels, aviation gasoline, kerosene, distillate fuel oil, and #1 and 
#2 diesel.  

Point source: Any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to, any 
pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal 
feeding operation, landfill leachate collection system, vessel or other floating craft from which pollutants 
are or may be discharged. This term does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture or agricultural 
storm water runoff.  

Pollutant: Any item that may alter storm water from a natural state. Pollutants may include, but are 
not limited to, paints, varnishes, solvents, oil, automotive fluids, solid wastes, yard wastes, refuse, 
rubbish, garbage, litter, discarded or abandoned objects, pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, sewage, fecal 
coliform, heavy metals, animal wastes, sediment from construction sites, and noxious or offensive matter 
of any kind.  

Pollution: The alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, or biological quality of, or the 
contamination of, any water that renders the water harmful, detrimental, or injurious to humans, animal 
life, plant life, property, or public health, safety, or welfare, or impairs the usefulness or the public 
enjoyment of the water for any lawful or reasonable purpose.  

Positive drainage: Provision for overland paths for all areas of a property including depression areas 
that may also be drained by storm sewer.  

Potable water: Water that has been treated to drinking water standards and is safe for human 
consumption.  

Private drainage system: All privately or publicly owned ground, surfaces, structures or systems, 
excluding the MS4, that contribute to or convey storm water, including but not limited to roofs, gutters, 
downspouts, lawns, driveways, pavement, roads, streets, curbs, gutters, ditches, inlets, drains, catch 
basins, pipes, tunnels, culverts, channels, detention basins, ponds, draws, swales, streams and any 
ground surface.  

Public improvement plans: Engineering drawings subject to approval by the city engineer for the 
construction of public improvements.  

Qualified person: A person who possesses the required certification, license, or appropriate 
competence, skills, and ability as demonstrated by sufficient education, training, and/or experience to 
perform a specific activity in a timely and complete manner consistent with the regulatory requirements 
and generally accepted industry standards for such activity.  

Release: To dump, spill, leak, pump, pour, emit, empty, inject, leach, dispose or otherwise introduce 
into the storm drainage system.  

Re-developed property: Developed property that is altered or expanded by grading and/or 
construction activity at a time period following initial construction.  

-83-

Item F.3. 



Retention facility: Facility designed to hold storm water for a sufficient length of time to provide for 
the storm water to be consumed by evaporation into the air and/or infiltration into the immediate soil.  

Rubbish: Solid waste, including ashes, that consist of (i) combustible waste materials, including 
paper, rags, cartons, wood, excelsior, furniture, rubber, plastics, yard trimmings, leaves, and similar 
materials; and/or (ii) noncombustible waste materials, including glass, crockery, tin cans, aluminum cans, 
metal furniture, and similar materials that do not burn at ordinary incinerator temperatures (1,600 to 1,800 
degrees Fahrenheit).  

Sanitary sewage: The domestic sewage and/or industrial waste that is discharged into the city 
sanitary sewer system and passes through the sanitary sewer system to the city sewage treatment plant 
for treatment.  

Sanitary sewer: The system of pipes, conduits, and other conveyances which carry industrial waste 
and domestic sewage from residential dwellings, commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing 
facilities and institutions, whether treated or untreated, to the city sewage treatment plant (and to which 
storm water, surface water, and groundwater are not intentionally admitted).  

Sediment: Soil (or mud) that has been disturbed or eroded and transported naturally by water, wind, 
gravity, or equipment tracking (tires, vehicles).  

Sedimentation: The process that deposits soils, debris, and other materials either on other ground 
surfaces or in bodies of water or storm water drainage systems.  

Septic tank waste: Any domestic sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, 
campers, trailers, septic tanks and aerated tanks.  

Shall: Signifies an act that is mandatory.  

Significant materials: Includes, but is not limited to, raw materials; fuels; materials such as solvents, 
detergents, and plastic pellets; finished materials such as metallic products; raw materials used in food 
processing or production; hazardous substances designated under Section 101(14) of Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA); any chemical the facility is required 
to report pursuant to Section 313 of Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA); 
fertilizers; pesticides; and waste products such as ashes, slag and sludge that have the potential to be 
released with storm water discharges.  

Site: The land or water area where any facility or activity is physically located or conducted, including 
adjacent land used in connection with the facility or activity.  

Slope disturbance line: The line which delineates relatively level building areas from areas where 
slopes exceed seven percent and where special precautions must be taken.  

Small quantity generator waste: Any hazardous waste generated by a small quantity generator as 
defined by the US EPA.  

Solid waste: Any garbage, rubbish, refuse and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, 
semisolid, or contained gaseous material, resulting from industrial, municipal, commercial, construction, 
mining or agricultural operations, and residential, community and institutional activities.  

Storm sewer: A closed conduit for conveying collected storm water.  

Storm water: Storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage consisting 
entirely of water from any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation.  

Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity: The discharge from any conveyance that is 
used for collecting and conveying storm water and that is directly related to manufacturing, processing or 
raw materials storage areas at an industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from facilities or 
activities excluded from the NPDES program. For the categories of industries identified in paragraphs (1) 
through (10) of this definition, the term includes, but is not limited to, storm water discharges from 
industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail lines used or traveled by carriers of raw materials, 
manufactured products, waste material, or by-products used or created by the facility; material handling 
sites; refuse sites; sites used for the application or disposal of process waste waters (as defined at 40 

-84-

Item F.3. 



CFR Part 401); sites used for the storage and maintenance of material handling equipment; sites used for 
residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage 
areas (including tank farms) for raw materials, and intermediate and finished products; and areas where 
industrial activity has taken place in the past and significant materials remain and are exposed to storm 
water. For the categories of industries identified in paragraph (11) of this definition, the term includes only 
storm water discharges from all areas (except access roads and rail lines) listed in the previous sentence 
where material handling equipment or activities, raw materials, intermediate products, final products, 
waste materials, by-products, or industrial machinery are exposed to storm water. For the purposes of this 
paragraph, material handling activities include the storage, loading and unloading, transportation, or 
conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by-product or waste product. The 
term excludes areas located on plant lands separate from the plant's industrial activities, such as office 
buildings and accompanying parking lots, as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed 
with storm water drained from the above-described areas. Industrial facilities (including industrial facilities 
that are federally, state, or municipally-owned or operated that meet the description of the facilities listed 
in paragraphs (1) to (11) of this definition) include those facilities designated under 40 CFR § 
122.26(a)(1)(v). The following categories of facilities are considered to be engaging in "industrial activity" 
for purposes of this subsection:  

(1)  Facilities subject to storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance 
standards, or toxic pollutant effluent standards under 40 CFR Subchapter N (except facilities 
with toxic pollutant effluent standards that are exempted under category (11) of this definition);  

(2)  Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 24 (except 2434), 26 (except 265 and 
267), 28 (except 283 and 285), 29, 311, 32 (except 323), 33, 3441, or 373;  

(3)  Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 10 through 14 (mineral industry) 
including active or inactive mining operations (except for areas of coal mining operations no 
longer meeting the definition of a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11(l) because the 
performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA authority has been released, 
or except for areas of non-coal mining operations that have been released from applicable state 
or federal reclamation requirements after December 17, 1990) and oil and gas exploration, 
production, processing, or treatment operations, or transmission facilities that discharge storm 
water contaminated by contact with, or that has come into contact with, any overburden, raw 
material, intermediate products, finished products, by-products or waste products located on the 
site of such operations; inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively 
mined, but that have an identifiable owner/operator;  

(4)  Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities, including those that are operating 
under interim status or a permit under Subtitle C of RCRA;  

(5)  Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that have received any industrial wastes 
(waste that is received from any of the facilities described under this subsection) including those 
that are subject to regulation under Subtitle D of RCRA;  

(6)  Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal scrap yards, battery reclaimers, 
salvage yards, and automobile junkyards, including but limited to those classified as Standard 
Industrial Classification 5015 or 5093;  

(7)  Steam electric power generating facilities, including coal handling sites;  

(8)  Transportation facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 40, 41, 42 (except 
4221-4225), 43, 44, 45 or 5171 that have vehicle maintenance shops, equipment cleaning 
operations, or airport deicing operations. Only those portions of the facility that are either 
involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, 
fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations, airport deicing operations, or that are 
otherwise identified under paragraphs (1) to (7) or (9) to (11) of this subsection are associated 
with industrial activity;  

(9)  Treatment works treating domestic sewage or any other sewage sludge or wastewater 
treatment device or system, used in the storage treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 

-85-

Item F.3. 



municipal or domestic sewage, including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage sludge that 
are located within the confines of the facility, with a design flow of 1.0 mgd or more, or required 
to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR Part 403. Not included are farm 
lands, domestic gardens or lands used for sludge management where sludge is beneficially 
reused and that are not physically located in the confines of the facility, or areas that are in 
compliance with 40 CFR Part 503;  

(10)  Construction activity including clearing, grading and excavation activities that result in the 
disturbance of one acre or more of total land area or which result in the disturbance of less than 
one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development or sale of one acre or more;  

(11)  Facilities under Standard Industrial Classifications 20, 21, 22, 23, 2434, 25, 265, 267, 27, 283, 
285, 30, 31 (except 311), 323, 34 (except 3441), 35, 36, 37 (except 373), 38, 39, or 4221-4225 
(and that are not otherwise included within categories (1) to (10) above).  

Storm water drainage system: Any publicly or privately owned or operated surface, system, facility, 
structure, improvement, development, equipment, property or interest therein, or other structural or 
nonstructural element made, constructed, used or acquired, for the purpose of collecting, containing, 
storing, conveying and controlling storm water, including but not limited to storm sewers, curbs, street 
drains, conduits, lakes, rivers, creeks, other natural or manmade channels, pipes, culverts and detention 
ponds.  

Storm water management fee: Fee levied within the boundaries of the storm water drainage system 
district for use in the development and daily maintenance of the city's storm water management program 
and the city's storm sewer system.  

Storm water management program: Overall strategy and plan for the management of storm water 
drainage within the city as outlined originally in the city's notice of intent dated March 2003.  

Storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP): A document that describes the Best Management 
Practices to be implemented at a site, to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants.  

Storm water runoff: That portion of rainfall that drains into the storm sewer drainage system.  

Stream: Any river, creek, brook, branch, flowage, ravine, or natural or man-made drainage way 
which has a definite bed and banks or shoreline, in or into which surface or groundwater flows, either 
perennially or intermittently.  

Stripping: Any activity which removes the vegetative surface cover, including trees, by spraying or 
clearing, and storage or removal of topsoil.  

Subdivision development: Includes activities associated with the platting of any parcel of land into 
two or more lots and includes all construction activity taking place thereon.  

Surface water: Water bodies and any water temporarily residing on the surface of the ground, 
including oceans, lakes, reservoirs, rivers, ponds, streams, puddles, channelized flow and runoff.  

Ten-year event: A runoff, rainfall, or flood event having a ten percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Time of concentration: The elapsed time for storm water to flow from the most hydraulically remote 
point in a drainage basin to a particular point of interest in that watershed.  

Tributary watershed: All of the land surface area that contributes runoff to a given point.  

Two-year event: A runoff, rainfall, or flood event having two percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Uncontaminated: Not containing harmful quantities of pollutants.  

Used motor oil (or used oil): Any oil that as a result of use, storage, or handling, has become 
unsuitable for its original purpose because of impurities or the loss of original properties.  

Used oil: See Used Motor Oil.  

-86-

Item F.3. 



Utility agency: Private utility companies, city departments, or contractors working for private utility 
companies or city departments, engaged in the construction or maintenance of utility distribution lines and 
services, including water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electric, gas, telephone, television and 
communication services.  

Vacant: Land on which there are no structures or only structures which are secondary to the use or 
maintenance of the land itself.  

Waste water: Any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated storm water, discharged from a 
facility.  

Water quality standard: The designation of a body or segment of surface water in the State for 
desirable uses and the narrative and numerical criteria deemed by state or federal regulatory standards to 
be necessary to protect those uses.  

Waters of the state: Any river, stream, lake, pond, marsh, watercourse, waterway, well, spring, 
reservoir, aquifer, irrigation system, drainage system and any other body or accumulation of water, 
surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which are contained within, flow through or 
border upon the state or any portion thereof, but not including any waters of the United States.  

Waters of the United States: All waters which are currently used, were used in the past, or may be 
susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to the ebb and 
flow of the tide; all interstate waters, including interstate wetlands; all other waters the use, degradation, 
or destruction of which would affect or could affect interstate or foreign commerce; all impoundments of 
waters otherwise defined as waters of the United States under this definition; all tributaries of waters 
identified in this definition; all wetlands adjacent to waters identified in this definition; and any waters 
within the federal definition of "Waters of the United States" at 40 CFR Section 122.2; but not including 
any waste treatment systems treatment ponds, or lagoons designed to meet the requirements of the 
Federal Clean Water Act.  

Watershed: All land area drained by, or contributing water to, the same channel, lake, marsh, storm 
water facility, groundwater or area of depression.  

Wet basin: A detention basin designed to maintain a permanent pool of water after the temporary 
storage of storm water runoff.  

Wetlands: Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of 
vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, 
marshes, bogs, and similar areas. For general, but not inclusive locations of designated wetlands refer to 
mapping prepared jointly by the U.S. Department of Interior and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  

Yard waste: Leaves, grass clippings, tree limbs, brush, soil, rocks or debris that result from 
landscaping, gardening, yard maintenance or land clearing operations.  

Sec. 27-115. - Purpose, intent and objectives.  

(a)  The purpose of this article and other ordinances adopted under this chapter is to address mandates 
of the federal government, including but not limited to the Clean Water Act and National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase II permit regulations regarding the desired reduction 
of pollution in storm water runoff.  

(b)  The intent of this article and other ordinances adopted under this chapter is to establish policies to 
comprehensively manage and reduce the potential for storm water runoff pollution in a safe and 
economical manner within the city, for the purpose of promoting the health, safety and general 
welfare of the population, and for the protection of property. This article is also intended to provide 
for the study of, design, operation, construction, equipping, and maintenance of the storm water 
drainage system within the city limits.  

(c)  Following are objectives of the storm water management program:  

-87-

Item F.3. 



(1)  To maintain and improve the quality of water impacted by the storm drainage system of the 
city,  

(2)  Maintain emergency vehicle movement during storm or flood events,  

(3)  Protect, maintain and enhance the environment of the city, and the short-term and long-term 
public health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the city,  

(4)  Reduce pollutant discharge to the city's storm sewer system from construction sites, as well as 
the discharge of pollutants from industrial, commercial and residential areas of the city,  

(5)  Preserve the value of existing buildings and other assets by developing infrastructure that will 
assist in the reduction of storm event related losses,  

(6)  Assure that new developments and redevelopments do not increase flood or drainage potential 
or create unstable conditions susceptible to erosion,  

(7)  Facilitate compliance of construction site permits with regard to state and federal standards,  

(8)  Preserve the city's watercourses in good condition,  

(9)  Address and minimize obstruction of the city's watercourses,  

(10)  Enhance urban water resource management techniques, including both the reduction of 
pollution, and the enhancement of the urban environment, required by the NPDES permit and 
such other regulations of the city, state and federal government,  

(11)  Maintain temporary and permanent public storm water storage facilities within the city in good 
operational condition.  

(12)  Promote public awareness of the impact of improper discharge of garbage, hazardous 
substances and sediment to the storm water drainage system,  

(13)  Encourage the recycling and proper disposal of household hazardous wastes, and  

(14)  Maintain and improve the quality of the community water into which the storm water outfalls 
flow, including, without limitation, the lakes, rivers, streams, ponds, wetlands, sinkholes, and 
groundwater of the city, waters of the state and waters of the United States. 

Sec. 27-116. - Duties and authority of the city engineer in general.  

(a)  The city engineer, or designated representative, shall exercise all lawful powers necessary and 
appropriate to administer the storm water management program. The duties and authority herein 
described are in addition to other applicable legal duties and authority. The duties and authority of 
the city engineer, or designated representative, shall include, but are not limited to:  

(1)  Administration of the regulations contained in the NPDES permit and in this chapter of the 
Code,  

(2)  Development and administration of all phases of a comprehensive storm water management 
program, including, establishing, studying, planning, designing, developing, acquiring land for, 
constructing, administering, operating, improving, maintaining, and reconstructing the city's 
storm sewer system as necessary,  

(3)  Administration of the accounting, budgeting, record-keeping and support personnel necessary 
for the efficient operation of the storm water management program,  

(4)  Development of educational materials to increase public awareness that would improve the 
public's knowledge and reduce the introduction of pollution to the storm water drainage system 
by the general public,  

(5)  Coordinate enforcement of the regulations contained in this article and other ordinances 
adopted under this chapter with other city departments,  

-88-

Item F.3. 



(6)  Seek the cooperation of counties and municipalities in communities adjacent to the city with the 
goal of reducing storm water drainage system flooding,  

(7)  Cooperate with other affected political jurisdictions in preparing and implementing master 
drainage plans,  

(8)  Provide an exchange of information between the public and city employees on flooding areas 
and storm water drainage problems within the city,  

(9)  Perform studies and evaluation required to establish, maintain and/or modify the storm water 
management program,  

(10)  Require the preservation and enhancement of certain natural environmental features,  

(11)  Require submittal of appropriate federal, state and local permitting to perform work within the 
city limits,  

(12)  Review the installation of drainage improvements in new developments and in 
redevelopments,  

(13)  Administration of a program to periodically review erosion control features placed within new 
construction sites,  

(14)  Administration of a program to periodically review erosion control features placed during initial 
construction to ensure that they remain in good condition and are not removed without proper 
authorization,  

(15)  Recommend to the city council the establishment, and periodic adjustment of, storm water 
management fees,  

(16)  Review and recommend modification to the collection procedure for storm water management 
fees,  

(17)  Hear and consider challenges to the application of this article, the application of other 
ordinances adopted under this chapter, and the calculation of storm water management fees, 
and  

(18)  Recommend to the mayor and the city council policies for establishing additional storm water 
drainage services, preserving or expanding existing services and making changes in service for 
the benefit of the city.  

Sec. 27-117. - City council discretion to provide for, and approve improvements to, the storm 
water drainage system.  

(a)  Determination of storm water services to be provided by the city, and construction of storm water 
facilities and improvements to the storm water drainage system, shall be made at the sole discretion 
of the city council.  

(b)  The city engineer, or designated representative, shall recommend storm water services to be 
provided by the city, and construction of the storm water facilities and improvements to the storm 
water drainage system, to the city council based upon engineering analysis, taking into consideration 
frequency of flooding events, potential loss of life, potential property damage, effect upon the general 
public and other factors affecting the purpose of this chapter. 

Sec. 27-118. - Storm water management authority.  

(a)  All areas within the city limits of the city are hereby declared and designated as a storm water 
drainage system district within the meaning and intent of, and for the purposes authorized by, § 
384.84 of the Code of Iowa. Said district shall be governed by a storm water management authority.  

(b)  In furtherance of the purposes for which a storm water drainage system district is authorized, and to 
protect and promote the public health, safety, welfare, and convenience of the city and its citizens, 
charges shall be levied upon and collected from the owners of all real estate that discharges storm 

-89-

Item F.3. 



water, directly or indirectly, to the storm water drainage system. The proceeds of such charges shall 
be deposited in a storm water management enterprise fund and used for purposes authorized by this 
article.  

(c)  The city council shall be the governing body of the storm water management authority, and the 
authority shall be under the direction, management and control of the city engineer. The city 
engineer shall oversee the daily operation of the storm water management authority, shall enforce 
the provisions of this article and all other ordinances adopted under this chapter, and shall carry out 
the policy directives of the city council acting in its role as governing body of the storm water 
management authority.  

Sec. 27-119. - Storm water management enterprise fund.  

(a)  A storm water management enterprise fund shall be established and maintained for the purpose of 
identifying, receiving and controlling all revenues and expenses attributable to the city's storm water 
management program, and to meet applicable local, state and federal regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the city's NPDES permit requirements. Storm water charges, loans, grants or funds 
received for the administration, operation, construction and improvement of the city storm water 
drainage system and facilities and the city's storm water management program shall be deposited in 
such fund.  

(b)  The following expenditures shall be acceptable uses of storm water management enterprise funds:  

(1)  NPDES permit fees,  

(2)  Development of public outreach and education materials,  

(3)  Costs associated with public involvement and participation related to the storm water 
management program,  

(4)  Storm water policy development assistance,  

(5)  Illicit discharge detection and elimination procedures, equipment, testing, and investigation,  

(6)  Water collection and sampling fees and related equipment,  

(7)  Planning, design, engineering, construction, maintenance, operation, and improvement of 
drainage services, facilities and structures, which shall include but are not limited to conduits, 
drains, manholes, storm water detention devices, flow impediments, ponds, ditches, sloughs, 
streams, filter strips, rip-raps, and erosion control devices,  

(8)  Construction site and post-construction site inspection costs,  

(9)  Staff time related to the storm water management program,  

(10)  Employee training, and  

(11)  Consulting fees related to the storm water management program and construction of storm 
water related projects.  

(c)  Additional expenditures and disbursements from the storm water management enterprise fund shall 
be at the direction and discretion of the city engineer, or designated representative, with approval of 
the city council.  

Sec. 27-120. - Establishment of storm water management fee.  

(a)  Monthly fee. Subject to the exemptions provided for in section 27-121, each owner or tenant of 
property within the city shall pay to the city a monthly storm water management fee, as follows:  

(1)  Residential property . Each single-unit residential dwelling shall be assessed a fee in 
accordance with the following table: 

 

-90-

Item F.3. 



Effective Date of Rate Rate 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month 

 

For every two-unit and multi-unit residential property, a fee in accordance with the following 
table  shall be assessed to each individual dwelling unit located on said property:  

Effective Date of Rate Rate 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month 

 

(2)  Commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-residential property . Each commercial, 
industrial, institutional or other non-residential property shall be assessed a base fee in 
accordance with the following table, plus an additional fee in accordance with the following table  
for the first 10,000 square feet, or any part thereof, of impervious surface (as such term is 
defined in section 27-114(55) of this article), and a fee in accordance with the following table  for 
each additional 10,000 square feet, or any part thereof, of impervious surface, located on the 
property.  

Effective Date of Rate Base Rate 1st 10,000 sq. ft of 
impervious area 

Each additional 10,000 sq. ft of 
impervious area 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month $5.00 per month $5.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month $5.25 per month $5.25 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month $5.51 per month $5.51 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month $5.79 per month $5.79 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month $6.08 per month $6.08 per month 

 

(3)  Mixed uses . For each property which has mixed residential, commercial, industrial, institutional 
or other non-residential uses located on the same property, the residential portions shall be 
assessed the residential rate, and the commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-
residential portions shall be assessed the commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-
residential rate, as set forth in this subsection.  

(b)  Effective date . Storm water management fees shall be assessed beginning on July 1, 2006, and 
shall be billed and paid on a monthly basis.  

-91-

Item F.3. 



(c)  Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates set forth in this 
section.  

(d)  Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial, industrial, 
institutional or other non-residential user that can demonstrate to the city engineer that storm water 
from that owner's property does not directly or indirectly enter the MS4 of the city.  

(e)  Payment. All storm water management fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the 
same time the payment for city water service is made, or on the first day of the month for those users 
of sewer service who do not use city water service, or for those property owners whose property is 
served by neither city water nor city sewer service. All required payments are to be made at the 
office of the municipal utilities. Amounts collected shall be deposited in the storm water management 
enterprise fund for use as authorized by this article.  

(f)  Periodic review . The storm water management fees provided for in this section shall be reviewed by 
the city council at least annually, and shall be revised as necessary to ensure that such fees 
generate sufficient revenues to pay all costs and expenses of operation and maintenance of the 
city's storm water management program created under this article, including capital improvements, 
debt service and including but not limited to those expenditures described in section 27-119(b), and 
to ensure that such costs are properly apportioned among the users and classes of users identified 
in this section.  

(g)  Reduction for low-income households. The owner or occupant of every household unit which meets 
the low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of community development for, 
and be granted, a 50 percent reduction in the monthly storm water management fee.  

Sec. 27-121. - Storm water management fee exemptions.  

Storm water management fees shall not be imposed on the following types of property:  

(1)  City, county, state and federal roads, bridges, highways, streets, rights-of-way, sidewalks, 
pathways, parks and open spaces.  

(2)  Agricultural use property, and any undeveloped property that has no impervious surface 
located within the boundaries of the property.  

Sec. 27-122. - Collection of storm water management fees.  

(a)  The office of the municipal utilities is hereby authorized and directed to render and collect storm 
water management fees in accordance with the fees established in this article. Storm water 
management fees shall be collected with the property owner's regular municipal utilities bill, and shall 
be shown as a separate item on the bill.  

(b)  The city shall have a lien upon the property served by the city storm water utility established by this 
article, for all delinquent fees, in accordance with Iowa Code § 384.84. Prior written notice of intent to 
certify a lien shall be given to the account holder of the delinquent account at least 30 days prior to 
certification. If the account holder is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord of the property has made a 
written request for notice, the notice shall also be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be 
sent to the appropriate persons by ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the certification of the 
lien to the county treasurer. After compliance with the foregoing provisions, the city clerk shall certify 
for taxation purposes and for the purpose of establishing the property lien to the county treasurer all 
delinquent storm water management fees, together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien 
shall not be certified to the county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the 
purpose of the certification and for no other purpose whatsoever, storm water management fees 
shall be designated as delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books carrying 
such fee payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months following their due date.  

(c)  In the event that any person, firm or corporation shall tender as payment of water, sewer, refuse and 
storm water management fees an amount insufficient to pay in full all of the charges so billed, 
payment shall be credited proportionately among all charges.  

-92-

Item F.3. 



(d)  The provision for collection of fees provided herein shall be in addition to any rights or remedies that 
the city may have under the laws of the State of Iowa or this Code.  

Sec. 27-123. - Appeal or adjustment of storm water management fee.  

(a)  Any user who considers storm water management fees to be inaccurate or erroneous may request 
review thereof by the city engineer, or designated representative.  

(b)  The determination of the city engineer, or designated representative, shall be in writing and may be 
appealed to the city council by written notice of appeal stating the reason and basis for the appeal. 
The appeal shall be filed with the city engineer, or designated representative, and the city clerk within 
30 days of the date of notice of the determination of the city engineer, or designated representative. 
Hearing on the appeal before the city council, or a designated committee of the city council, shall 
take place within 30 days from the date of the notice of appeal was filed with the city clerk. The 
decision of the city council or its designated committee, shall be considered final.  

Sec. 27-124. - Severability.  

The provisions of this article are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, clause, sentence, 
or paragraph of this article or the application thereof to any person, establishment, or circumstances shall 
be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or applications of this article.  

Secs. 27-125—27-200. - Reserved.  

 

INTRODUCED:     May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:        
 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 

ADOPTED:           
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 

      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-93-

Item F.3. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: May 18, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointment and Reappointments 

 

I am recommending the following appointment and reappointments: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term 
Ending: 

   
Katy Susong Board of Appeals (replaces Jamie Castle) Indefinite 
   
Phyllis Carter Community Center & Senior Services Board (reappointment) 06/30/2021 
Betty Danielson Community Center & Senior Services Board (reappointment) 06/30/2021 
   
Clare Struck Parks & Recreation Commission (reappointment) 06/30/2021 
   
Mary Carlson Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
Annie Gougler Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
Leslie Prideaux Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

 
 

-95-

Item G.1.a. 



 



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 
Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: ___________________________________________ Gender: ______ Date: __________________ 
      First                             MI                             Last     

Home Address: ______________________________________________   Phone:  __________________ 

Work Address: ______________________________________________    Phone: ___________________ 

Email Address: _______________________________________________   Cell: ____________________ 

Employer:  _______________________________   Position/Occupation: ___________________________  

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: _____________________________ Ward: ______________ 

NOMINEE FOR: _______________________________________________________ Board/Commission 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of 
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 
please describe. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  
50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.  

Katherine (Katy)       C.       Susong Fem. May 10, 2018

5714 Arbors Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 319.830.8635

531 Commercial Street, #700, Waterloo, IA 50701 319.232.5400
ksusong@cardinalconst.com 319.830.6385

Cardinal Construction, Inc. Executive VP/ COO

9 months 2
Board of Appeals

Please see attached sheet. Thank you. 

2004 - Bachelor of Arts in Organizational Communication/ Minor in Marketing, University of 
Northern Iowa. 

No. 

I've lived in the Cedar Valley my entire life, and would like the opportunity to serve my Cedar Falls
community in a capacity that is helpful. I believe my knowledge and experience would be a good
fit for the Board of Appeals. 

-97-

Item G.1.a. 



City of Cedar Falls 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
Nominee’s Questionnaire 

1. Please explain why or why not you believe the City’s two “building codes”, the
International Residential Code and the International Building Code, protect the health
and safety of the general public.

2. Construction work being completed in Cedar Falls generally requires a permit and
follow-up inspections. Do you believe this standard is appropriate or not? Please
comment.

3. How much flexibility should be given to City inspectors when completing building
inspections to ensure that construction is being performed in accordance with approved
plans?

4. How do you feel about homeowners performing construction work in their own
residences?

5. Are you familiar with the International Residential Code and the International Building
Code? Please comment on your general attitude regarding these Codes.

_____________________________ _________________________ 
Signature Date 

I think it's inevitably going to happen, and that's why it's important to have the 
appropriate policies/processes in place to ensure construction is performed
correctly and safely for current and future homeowners. 

I believe the standard is appropriate to ensure the City is aware of construction 
projects are occurring, and consequently, that they've been performed 
correctly  with regard to applicable codes and regulations. 

Both codes are widely recognized, supported and utilized by designers, engineers, 
contractors and building officials; and are routinely scrutinized to ensure they 
protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public. 

The Codes are designed to allow for some flexibility on the part of City Inspectors. 
I would anticipate inspectors to stay within the guidelines established by the two 
building codes the City recognizes as standards. 

I am familiar with their content and purpose, and would know how to locate 
pertinent information within Codes. I believe they're widely recognized and used, and 
my general attitude would be that they're a good resource to ensure design and installation
standards are met. 

May 10, 2018

-98-

Item G.1.a. 



Volunteer Positions 
Master Builders of Iowa  

• Board of Directors, Board Member, February 2015-February 2016 
 
Construction Safety Services of Iowa (CSSI)  

• Vice Chairperson, April 2018-Present 
• Board Secretary and Treasurer, April 2017-March 2018 
• Board of Directors, Founding Board Member, April 2017-Present 

 
Boys and Girls Clubs of the Cedar Valley 

• Board Member, August 2015-Present 
• First Vice President, August 2016 – Present  
• Capital Campaign, Building Committee Co-Chairperson, 2017-Present  

 
Junior League of Waterloo-Cedar Falls  
Junior League is a women’s organization dedicated to promoting volunteerism through the 
effective action and leadership of trained volunteers. During my seven years of active 
membership, I served in a variety of leadership roles. In 2012-2013, I served as President of our 
local chapter. As President, I sought to increase member engagement, and improve our 
organizational image, through strategic management of our four council leaders and their 
committees. Councils included: Marketing, Fund Development, Community Impact and 
Membership. Other leadership roles within Junior League included: 

• 80th Anniversary Charity Ball, Sustainer Ad-Hoc Planning Committee, Sept 2017 -Dec 
2017 

• Sustaining Member, 2013-Present 
• New Member Education Chairperson, 2013 
• President-Elect, 2011 
• Meetings and Education Chairperson, 2010 
• Vice President of Fund Development, 2009 
• Assistant Vice President of Fund Development, 2008 

 
Community Foundation of Northeast Iowa 

• Grant Distribution Committee Member, 2013-2015  
 
Prairie Lakes Church  

• First Impressions Team Member, Greeter, 2014-2016 
• Wee Kids Classroom Volunteer, 2012-2013 

 
Waterloo Center for the Arts (2007-2012) 

• Waterloo Center for the Arts, Past Marketing Committee Member  
• City of Waterloo Cultural and Arts Commissioner, Past Commissioner   

-99-

Item G.1.a. 



• Friends of the Arts Center, Past Board President  
 

-100-

Item G.1.a. 



-101-

Item G.1.a. 



-102-

Item G.1.a. 



-103-

Item G.1.a. 



-104-

Item G.1.a. 



-105-

Item G.1.a. 



 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

May 7, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:55 p.m. on May 7, 2018, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, 
Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David Wieland. 
Staff members attended from all City Departments. Tom Nelson with the Waterloo 
Courier and other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda of 
Public Safety Awards.  Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety Services/Police Chief 
presented the following awards to individuals in the Public Safety Department.  He 
thanked the Mayor and Council for their direction and support this past year.  He 
thanked the Public Safety team and stated the city benefits greatly from their hard work 
and dedication and this can be seen in the low crime rate and low fire rate. 

• Police Officer of the Year Jovan Creighton 

• Firefighter of the Year Jason Campbell 

• R.J. Voss Management Excellence Award - Police Supervisor of the Year Kelli 
Yates 

• Fire Supervisor of the Year Fire Battalion Chief Roger Stensland 

• Conger Police Reserve Officer of the Year Matt Buck 

• Reserve Firefighter of the Year Jason Dolf 

• Award of Excellence to Police Officer Dan Brown 

• Award of Excellence to Fire Captain Derek Brown 

• Award of Excellence to Public Safety Officer Mike Haislet 

• Award of Excellence to Fire Captain Bobby Wright 

• Award of Excellence to Public Safety Officer Kari Rea 

• Award of Excellence to Fire Captain Rob Inouye 

• Award of Excellence to Public Safety Officer Brian Johannsen 

• Award of Excellence to Public Safety Officer Mike Marcotte 

• Award of Excellence to Community Service Officer II Sam Zobel 

 

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda University Avenue Update.  
Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development, stated Phase I was 
completed in 2017, Phase II has a two year construction season, 2017 and 2018, and 
Phase III will be constructed in 2018.  She stated the plan is for all phases to be 
complete by November 2018.  Jon Resler, City Engineer reviewed the current 
construction taking place in Phase II.  He stated this phase is 65% complete and on 

-107-

Item G.1.b. 



target for completion in November 2018.  He reviewed Phase III construction and stated 
construction will take place in two stages.  Stage 1 is currently taking place on the North 
side and should be finished in July and stage 2 of construction will be on the south side 
from July – October.   He stated there is an incentive/disincentive for Phase III; stage 1 
has a target date of July 14, and stage 2 of October 26.  Mr. Resler stated Phase III is 
15% complete.  Ms. Sheetz updated the Council on the budget for University Avenue 
project.  A brief discussion was held. 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  David Wieland 
moved to approve the bills as presented and Daryl Kruse seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:24 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-108-

Item G.1.b. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 16, 2018 
 
 RE: Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
  Project No. RT-000-3107 
  Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(651)—8I-07 
  Bid Opening Approval 
 
On May 15th, 2018 at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened by the Iowa 
Department of Transportation for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. A total of 
5 bids were received, with K. Cunningham Construction Inc. submitting the apparent low 
bid: 
 

 Bid Total 

K. Cunningham Construction, Inc. $457,535.03  

Lodge Construction, Inc. $499,525.10  

Vieth Construction Corporation $510,820.27  

Midwest Concrete, Inc. $575,718.80  

Peterson Contractors Inc.  $596.154.70  

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was originally $531,283.67. K. Cunningham 
Construction Inc. bid of $457,535.03 is 13.8% below the Engineer's Estimate.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the apparent low bid from K. Cunningham Construction 
Inc. in the amount of $457,535.03 subject to the recommendation of the Iowa 
Department of Transportation. On June 4, 2018, the Contract, Bond and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-109-

Item G.1.c. 



 



Letting ID:
Cut-Off Time:

Apparent Bids for Proposal 07-1185-651

PCC SIDEWALK/TRAIL

18/05/15
10:00:59 AM

Bidder Name DBE Bid Amount
CUNNINGHAM, K. CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 1.99% $457,535.03

LODGE CONSTRUCTION INC. 2.15% $499,525.10

VIETH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 2.00% $510,820.27

MIDWEST CONCRETE, INC. 2.86% $575,718.80

PETERSON CONTRACTORS INC. 2.01% $596,154.70

(5 Apparent Bids)

Letting of 05/15/2018 IADOT Apparent Bids

IADOT Page 1 of 1

-111-

Item
 G

.1.c. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 17, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  SW-000-3148 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, June 4, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, June 12, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders 
be published by May 25, 2018. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications will be 
ready for distribution to contractors on May 25, 2018 allowing more than two (2) weeks 
of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk and trails on City property, and also 
will provide sidewalk and trail infills around the City where none currently exist.  
 
The total estimated cost of the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project is $132,429.38. The funding for the project will be provided by the GO Bonds 
and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-113-

Item G.1.d. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  May 10, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closure, College Street (College Hill Farmers Market Kickoff Event), June 7, 
2018 (with an alternate date of June 14, 2018). 

(2) Street closure, East 10th Street (Radiance Chiropractic Grand Opening Block 
Party), June 8, 2018. 

(3) Parking variances, College Hill Arts Festival, June 15-16, 2018. 

(4) Street closures & parking variances, Gran Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride & 
FondoFest, August 18, 2018. 

-115-

Item G.1.e. 



 



-117-

Item G.1.e. 



-118-

Item G.1.e. 



-119-

Item G.1.e. 



 



-121-

Item G.1.e. 



-122-

Item G.1.e. 



-123-

Item G.1.e. 



-124-

Item G.1.e. 



-125-

Item G.1.e. 



-126-

Item G.1.e. 



-127-

Item G.1.e. 



 



-129-

Item G.1.e. 



-130-

Item G.1.e. 



-131-

Item G.1.e. 



 



-133-

Item G.1.f. 



-134-

Item G.1.f. 



-135-

Item G.1.f. 



-136-

Item G.1.f. 



-137-

Item G.1.f. 



-138-

Item G.1.f. 



-139-

Item G.1.f. 



-140-

Item G.1.f. 



-141-

Item G.1.f. 



-142-

Item G.1.f. 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  May 16, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
 

(2) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
 

(3) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

 
(4) Old Chicago Pizza and Taproom, College Square Mall, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
 

(5) The Other Place, 2214 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
 

(6) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
   

-143-

Item G.1.g. 



 



 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 
RESOLUTION RESCHEDULING THE DATE OF THE REGULARLY SCHEDULED 

CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 2, 2018 
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 2-41, Regular and special meetings, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, authorizes the City Council to change the 

dates and times of regularly scheduled City Council meetings by resolution, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to reschedule the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of July 2, 2018. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the regularly scheduled City Council meeting of July 2, 2018 is hereby 

rescheduled to July 9, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of City Hall, 220 

Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

ADOPTED this 21st day of May, 2018. 

                                          
                                                                           
                         _____________________ 

                                                                                         James P. Brown, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 
 

 
 

-145-

Item G.2.a. 



 



-147-

Item G.2.b. 



-148-

Item G.2.b. 



-149-

Item G.2.b. 



-150-

Item G.2.b. 



-151-

Item G.2.b. 



-152-

Item G.2.b. 



-153-

Item G.2.b. 



-154-

Item G.2.b. 



-155-

Item G.2.b. 



-156-

Item G.2.b. 



-157-

Item G.2.b. 



-158-

Item G.2.b. 



-159-

Item G.2.b. 



-160-

Item G.2.b. 



-161-

Item G.2.b. 



-162-

Item G.2.b. 



-163-

Item G.2.b. 



-164-

Item G.2.b. 



-165-

Item G.2.b. 



-166-

Item G.2.b. 



-167-

Item G.2.b. 



-168-

Item G.2.b. 



-169-

Item G.2.b. 



-170-

Item G.2.b. 



-171-

Item G.2.b. 



-172-

Item G.2.b. 



-173-

Item G.2.b. 



-174-

Item G.2.b. 



-175-

Item G.2.b. 



-176-

Item G.2.b. 



-177-

Item G.2.b. 



-178-

Item G.2.b. 



-179-

Item G.2.b. 



-180-

Item G.2.b. 



-181-

Item G.2.b. 



-182-

Item G.2.b. 



-183-

Item G.2.b. 



-184-

Item G.2.b. 



-185-

Item G.2.b. 



-186-

Item G.2.b. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 18, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2019 Payroll Resolution 

 
Please find attached the FY2019 Payroll Resolution, the FY2019 Pay Plan Schedule, 
and FY2019 Workshop/Session/Event Pay Plan.  These items cover the period from 
June 30, 2018 to June 28, 2019.  
 
The payroll resolution implements the 2.75% across the board increase for the second 
year of the 5-year contract as negotiated with the Parks/Public Works Union, the Police 
union, and the Fire Union.  The resolution also implements the merit awards for the 
non-union group.  These increases are based on a pool that is equivalent to the 
weighted average of the three bargaining groups, each employee’s performance 
evaluation, and their respective pay band classification. The payroll resolution 
implements the new pay grades as set under the pay plan study and the pay for the 
Paid-On-Call (POC’s) not covered under union contract.       

 
 
 

 
 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 

-187-

Item G.2.c. 



 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

Ron Gaines City Administrator 84.428

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, February 16, 2019 0.260

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Jennifer Rodenbeck Director of Finance & Business Operations 420 73.500

Longevity 0.433

FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION

Brenda Balvanz Personnel Specialist 309 F 41.268

Longevity 0.375

Patricia Freese Financial Clerk  (Part-Time) 306 18.166

Katherine Kelly Payroll/HR Technician 307 20.317

Longevity 0.087

Andrea Ludwig Financial Clerk 306 18.725

Longevity, January 7, 2019 0.087

Cathy Niebergall Financial Technician (Part-Time) 308 28.288

Lisa Roeding Controller/City Treasurer 414 42.839

Longevity 0.260

PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

Heidi Andersen Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 18.006

Marcie Breitbach Administrative Assistant 305 18.006

Jacqueline Danielsen City Clerk 413 40.502

Longevity 0.548

Amy Eggleston Administrative Assistant 305 16.926

Courtney Fisher Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.439

Joanne Goodrich Administrative Assistant 305 21.816

Longevity 0.317

Karen Kuba Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.439

Dee Paulsen Administrative Assistant 305 18.678

Lisa Reiter Administrative Assistant 305 21.865

Longevity 0.087

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

-189-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Longevity, September 6, 2018 0.144

Mandy Thurm Administrative Supervisor 409 24.801

Longevity 0.144

INFORMATION SYSTEMS DIVISION

Denny Bowman Cable Television & Telecommunications Supervisor 412 37.451

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, February 23, 2019 0.260

Dan Clark Information Systems Technician II 308 POC 28.085

Longevity 0.202

Shelby Gappa Production Assistant I (Part-Time) 018 12.076

Cory Hines GIS Analyst 411 33.806

Dan Jaeger Information Systems Technician II 308 POC 28.085

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, September 6, 2018 0.260

Kim Kerr Administrative Assistant - Lead 306 21.382

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, November 17, 2018 0.202

Angela Lindley Graphic Designer/Web Maint. Technician (Part-Time) 307 POC 20.162

Jeremy Ott Video Production Supervisor 311 29.117

Longevity, December 1, 2018 0.087

Jordan Rottinghaus Production Assistant I (Part-Time) 018 11.322

Julia Sorensen Information Systems Manager 415 42.554

John Stanish Production Assistant I (Part-Time) 018 11.322

Christian Stow Production Assistant I (Part-Time) 018 11.322

Evan Wheeler Production Assistant I (Part-Time) 018 11.322

Pat Williams Network Administrator 411 40.073

Longevity 0.317

LEGAL SERVICES DIVISION

Kevin Rogers City Attorney 419 65.297

Colleen Sole Personnel Specialist 309 33.591

Longevity 0.202

PARKING

Jillane Conradi-Croes PT - Parking Meter Attendant PT-1 H 18.126

-190-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Victoria Satterlee PT-Parking Metter Attendant PT-1 H 18.126

LIBRARY

Heather Anfinson Intern I (Part-Time) 011 8.909

Jessica Bamford-Love Library Assistant 305 16.355

Mary Kaye Barnes Library Assistant 305 16.379

Longevity, June 21, 2019 0.087

Mary Billerbeck Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.207

William Boelts Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.207

Claire Bowling Intern II (Part-Time) 015 9.754

Morgan Christensen Intern I (Part-Time) 011 8.671

Bryony Diaz Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.379

Aimee Erne Library Page  (Part-Time) 301 9.954

Dawn Groskurth Library Page  (Part-Time) 301 10.203

Ryan Hansen Intern I (Part-Time) 011 8.909

Nancy Hasenwinkel Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.207

Neal Jacobs Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 19.447

Mary Kabel Library Education Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 25.453

Nona Kanago Library Page (Part-Time) 301 10.810

David Keiser Library Page (Part-Time) 301 9.601

Renae Loomis Library Assistant 305 21.990

Longevity 0.606

Longevity, July 23, 2018 0.663

Chelsea McNamee Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.036

Dan  Meier Library Assistant 305 20.352

Longevity 0.087

Katherine Nedwick Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.379

Kimberly Nicholson Library Assistant 306 17.489

Laura Pagel Library Assistant 305 16.379

Ambri Refer Librarian (Part Time) 409 24.316

-191-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Jay Robinson Library Director 417 42.308

Ryan Scholl Library Shelver (Part-Time) 010 7.604

Kelly Stern Senior Librarian 412 39.560

Longevity 0.144

Amy Stuenkel Senior Librarian 412 33.417

Longevity 0.087

Erin Thompson Technology Librarian 409 24.836

Julie Tilton Librarian (Part-Time) 409 24.316

Jacilyn Valero Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 16.207

Michael Welch Librarian (Part Time) 409 24.316

Debra Wilkinson Library Assistant 305 20.889

Longevity 0.606

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development 420 61.080

Longevity, July 28, 2018 0.087

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

Lisa Ahern Planner I 307 27.885

August 5, 2018 307 28.722

Shane Graham Planner II 410 33.943

Karen Howard Planning & Comm Serv. Manager 415 45.673

September 12, 2018 415 47.386

Iris Lehmann Planner I 307 29.295

Longevity, January 5, 2019 0.087

David Sturch Planner III 412 41.621

Longevity 0.375

ENGINEERING DIVISION

James Ackles Engineering Technician II 309 32.562

Longevity 0.375

Darwin Bentley Engineering Technician II 309 32.596

Longevity 0.663

Nicholas Erickson Engineering Technician II 309 26.328

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

-192-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Brad Foulk Engineering Technician II 309 24.422

J. Cody Hager Engineering Technician II 309 32.914

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, April 3, 2019 0.260

Kevin Niebuhr Engineering Technician II 309 30.658

Longevity 0.606

Longevity, May 6, 2019 0.663

Terra Ray Engineering Technician II 309 30.910

Longevity 0.144

Jon Resler City Engineer 417 56.010

Chase Schrage Principal Engineer 413 35.173

Longevity 0.087

Matthew Tolan Civil Engineer II 411 28.722

Sushil Tuladhar Storm Water Specialist 309 24.422

INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION

Jamie Castle Inspection Services Mgr. 414 37.019

October 24, 2018 414 38.462

John Henderson Inspector 309 32.972

Longevity 0.144

Jason Mai Inspector 309 26.829

Mark Sturm Inspector 309 33.944

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, March 9, 2019 0.202

Benjamin Wilkens Inspector 309 30.954

Longevity 0.144

Craig Witry Inspection Services Mgr. 414 51.443

Longevity 0.433

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION

Ryan Bonjour Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Scott Crawford Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 C 20.758

October 11, 2018 15 D 21.377

Tyler Griffin Water Reclamation Supervisor 411 POC 33.898

Longevity 0.144

Danial Klatt Waste Water Operator I 16 F 23.724

-193-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

May 22, 2019 16 G 24.433

John Koch Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 E 22.013

April 7, 2019 15 F 22.680

Keith Lewis Waste Water Operator I 16 H 25.419

Jeremy Northrup Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Michael Nyman Water Reclamation Manager 414 POC 42.326

Longevity 0.490

Longevity, July 30, 2018 0.548

Chris Robinson Equipment Mechanic 18 H 27.805

Rodney Smith Waste Water Operator II 18 H 27.805

Longevity 0.548

Danny Surratt Waste Water Operator I 16 H 25.419

Longevity 0.548

Longevity, December 14, 2018 0.606

Kelly Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Longevity 0.663

Ted Timson Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 E 22.013

July 7, 2018 15 F 22.680

Patricia Tometich Laboratory Technician 18 D 24.469

May 23, 2019 18 E 25.196

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Mark Ripplinger Director of Municipal Operations & Programs 420 65.392

Longevity 0.548

Julia Donahue Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 22.331

Brian Heath Public Works & Parks Manager 415 56.748

Longevity 0.663

Jane Tangen Administrative Assistant 305 F 25.363

Longevity 0.663

V&T/CULTURAL SERVICES DIVISION

Vicki Bailey Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 15.059

Emily Drennen Hearst Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 25.536

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS DEPARTMENT

-194-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Travis Gingrich Hearst Lab Technician (Part-Time) 017 10.516

Abby Haigh Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 15.022

Angela Hickok Education Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 22.249

Maggie Hines Hearst Assistant (Part-Time) 013 9.354

Sheri Huber-Otting Program Coordinator (Part-Time) 307 20.023

Debra Lewis Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 14.863

Kimberly Manning Visitors & Tourism/Cultural Programs Manager 413 46.102

Longevity 0.317

Linda Maughan Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 15.022

Heather Skeens Cultural Programs Supervisor 411 27.930

Lea Stewart Sr. Service Coordinator (Part-Time) 305 17.638

Ana Verastegui Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 14.510

Rebekah Wagner V&T Coordinator (Part-Time) 307 20.239

RECREATION & MUNICIPAL PROGRAMS DIVISION

Christine Anderson Recreation Program Coordinator (Part-Time) 309 26.700

Peggee Frost Administrative Assistant - Lead 306 23.501

Longevity 0.317

Brock Goos Recreation Program Supervisor 411 36.602

Longevity 0.375

Chris Schoentag Recreation Program Supervisor 411 28.916

Longevity 0.317

Bruce Verink Recreation & Community Programs Manager 413 F 53.091

Longevity 0.663

Megan Wilmot Fitness Coordinator (Part-Time) 409 25.000

July 12, 2018 409 26.000

CEMETERY SECTION

Jeremiah Hook Equipment Operator 17 G 25.563

April 11, 2019 17 H 26.589

Trevor Johnson Laborer (Part-Time) 8 C 15.156

May 16, 2019 8 D 15.614

John Murray Laborer (Part-Time) 8 H 17.749

-195-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Mike Soppe Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 29.229

Longevity 0.260

GOLF SECTION

Denis Schilling Golf Course Maintenance Supervisor 409 34.618

Longevity 0.663

PARK SECTION

Kim Armstrong Laborer (Part-Time) 8 C 15.156

March 27, 2019 8 D 15.614

Robert Conrad Laborer (Part-Time) 8 E 16.082

June 24, 2019 8 F 16.562

Kevin Cross Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 POC 39.188

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, April 6, 2019 0.202

Devon Dyer Laborer (Part-Time) 8 B 14.715

September 6, 2018 8 C 15.156

Russell Kinkaid Senior Groundskeeper 17 G 25.563

May 25, 2019 17 H 26.589

Greg Miller Laborer (Part-Time) 8 H 17.749

Brett Morris Arborist 308 25.350

Harold Runkle Senior Groundskeeper 17 H 26.589

Longevity 0.663

Joel Sires Laborer (Part-Time) 8 A 14.280

October 2, 2018 8 B 14.715

April 2, 2019 8C 15.156

Rachel Schnebbe Laborer (Part-Time) 8 B 14.715

September 25, 2018 8 C 15.156

BUILDING MAINTENANCE SECTION

Matthew Buck Bldg. Maintenance Supervisor 411 POC 34.391

Longevity 0.144

Shannon Willett Laborer (Part-Time) 8 C 15.156

September 12, 2018 8 D 15.614

REFUSE OPERATIONS SECTION

-196-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Jeff Bass Laborer (Part-Time) 8 H 17.749

Christopher Blohn Maintenance Worker 15 D 21.377

May 23, 2019 15 E 22.013

Richard Christensen Transfer Station Laborer (Part-Time) 10 H 19.405

Lisa Conrad Laborer (Part-Time) 8 H 17.749

James Dietz Maintenance Worker 15 D 21.377

September 19, 2018 15 E 22.013

Chris Finke Maintenance Worker 15 F 22.680

October 7, 2018 15 G 23.360

Darwin Fleshner Laborer (Part-Time) 8 D 15.614

June 6, 2019 8 E 16.082

Jeffry Geiger Transfer Station Laborer (Part-Time) 10 C 16.578

December 19, 2018 10 D 17.075

Scott Goodenbour Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Mike Ravn Transfer Station Laborer (Part-Time) 10 C 16.578

August 10, 2018 10 D 17.075

Mark Robinson Laborer (Part-Time) 8 A 14.280

July 17, 2018 8 B 14.715

January 17, 2019 8 C 15.156

Doyle Smith Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 33.405

Longevity 0.317

Longevity, March 14, 2019 0.375

Kevin Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Longevity 0.663

Roy Trenkamp Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

SANITARY SEWER SECTION

Larry Camarata Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Josh Timmerman Equipment Operator 17 H 26.589

STREET CONSTRUCTION SECTION

Randy Bennett Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 35.194

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, July 28, 2018 0.260

-197-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Dustin Brown Maintenance Worker 15 D 21.377

July 13, 2018 15 E 22.013

Adam Burg Maintenance Worker 15 H POC 24.303

Virgil Butterfield Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 F 22.680

Dennis Douglas Equipment Operator 17 H 26.589

Rick Ehmen Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Royce Eiklenborg Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Mark Forrester Equipment Operator 17 H 26.589

Longevity 0.663

Kathy Gaede Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 A 19.563

August 13, 2018 15 B 20.150

February 13, 2019 15 C 20.758

Thomas Hallman Equipment Operator 17 H 26.589

Robert Henry, Jr. Maintenance Worker 15 G 23.360

December 22, 2018 15 H 24.303

Andrew Hoyer Maintenance Worker 15 C 20.758

August 15, 2018 15 D 21.377

Cody Kayser Equipment Operator 17 C 22.704

July 18, 2018 17 D 23.387

Ken Lewis Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Steven Ravn Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 37.406

Longevity 0.663

Travis Schlamp Equipment Operator 17 H 26.589

Joe Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 F 22.680

Daniel Warrior Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

Longevity 0.663

Jason Yearous Equipment Operator 17 C 22.704

March 27, 2019 17 D 23.387

Carl Yokem Maintenance Worker 15 H 24.303

TRAFFIC OPERATIONS SECTION

Brian Graham Maintenance Worker 15 H POC 24.303

-198-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Laverne Junker Laborer (Part-Time) 8 H 17.749

Matthew Lukehart Traffic Operations Supervisor 411 28.500

September 1, 2018 411 29.355

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SECTION

Derek Gearhart Equipment Mechanic 18 A 22.384

October 30, 2018 18 B 23.059

April 30, 2019 18 C 23.751

Nick Martin Asst. Equipment Mechanic (Part-Time) 10 A 15.625

August 19, 2018 10 B 16.095

February 19, 2019 10 C 16.578

Robert Martin Asst. Equipment Mechanic (Part-Time) 10 B 16.095

September 11, 2018 10 C 16.578

Dustin Rawdon Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 411 30.499

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, February 16, 2019 0.202

Robert Richardson Equipment Mechanic 18 H 27.805

S. Aaron Sorenson Asst. Equipment Mechanic (Part-Time) 10 D 17.075

October 15, 2018 10 E 17.584

Brian Steinlage Equipment Mechanic 18 H 27.805

FIRE DIVISION

John Bostwick Asst. Director of Public Safety Serv./Fire Chief 416 POC 56.769

Longevity 0.663

Derek Brown Fire Captain 411 POC 42.519

Longevity 0.375

Michael Buhrow Fire Captain 411 39.156

Longevity 0.663

Jason Campbell Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.202

Jim Cook Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, January 17, 2019 0.260

Jeffrey Danielson Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

-199-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Scott Dix Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

Jason Dolf Firefighter (Part-Time) F-1 P-D 14.624

Kurt Eichelberger Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.260

Shane Farmer Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, January 17, 2019 0.260

Riley Freilinger Firefighter (Part-Time) F-1 P-D 14.624

Jeffrey Haler Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.317

Longevity, November 3, 2018 0.375

Curtis Hildebrand Battalion Chief 413 40.796

Longevity 0.375

Robert Inouye Fire Captain 411 36.485

Longevity 0.433

Eric L. Jensen Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

Jack Johnson Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

Shawn Koenen Firefighter F1 E 29.370

March 4, 2019 F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.317

Josh Lux Fire Captain 411 34.308

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, April 24, 2019 0.260

Troy Purdy Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.317

Longevity, November 3, 2018 0.375

Casey Schares Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

Rick Schmidt Battalion Chief 413 40.045

Longevity 0.375

Rick Sharp Firefighter F1 F 29.664

Longevity 0.433

-200-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Brad Sherwood Fire Captain 411 34.569

Longevity 0.317

Ryan Siems Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.144

Roger Stensland Battalion Chief 413 41.108

Longevity 0.490

Dustin Stotler Firefighter F1 D 26.931

June 14, 2019 F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.087

Longevity, June 14, 2019 0.144

Todd Taylor Firefighter F1 E 29.370

Longevity 0.202

Bobby Wright Acting Battalion Chief 413 POC 41.812

Fire Captain 411 POC 40.699

Longevity 0.317

Longevity, November 3, 2018 0.375

Jeffrey Olson Director of Public Safety Services/Police Chief 420 71.866

Longevity 0.606

Marissa Abbott Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.104

October 6, 2018 013 9.354

Admir Babic Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

January 30, 2019 PSO-2-II 31.051

Carson Barron Public Safety Officer PSO-2-III 31.675

Dixie Beard Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Martin Beckner Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 44.626

Longevity 0.317

Ryan Bellis Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 36.641

Longevity 0.260

Longevity, September 3, 2018 0.317

Matthew Belz Police Officer P2-IX 32.862

Longevity 0.202

Craig Berte Asst. Director of Public Safety Serv./Asst. Police Chief 416 PSO 56.633

Longevity 0.490

Longevity, January 28, 2019 0.548

Adrianna Brenny Community Service Officer II (Part-Time) 017 10.516

Michael Briggs Police Officer P2-IX 32.862

POLICE DIVISION

-201-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Longevity 0.490

Longevity, July 30, 2018 0.548

Daniel Brown Police Lieutenant 412 41.256

Longevity 0.663

Kaleb Bruggeman Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.104

August 26, 2018 013 9.354

Katie Burkhardt Police Officer P2-IX 32.862

Longevity 0.260

Gavin Carman Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VI 33.616

August 26, 2018 PSO-2-VII 34.789

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, August 26, 2018 0.202

Chris Copp Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VI 33.616

August 26, 2018 PSO-2-VII 34.789

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, August 26, 2018 0.202

Madison Cornwell Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.678

Jovan Creighton Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IV 32.309

Longevity 0.087

Paula Czarnetzki Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Cedric Danilson Public Safety Officer PSO-1-I 25.225

April 23, 2019 PSO-1-II 27.848

Dusanka Devic Public Safety Officer PSO-2-II 31.051

August 9, 2018 PSO-2-III 31.675

Clinton Ferguson Public Safety Officer PSO-2-III 31.675

Steve Ferguson Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Thomas Fey Public Safety Officer PSO-2-II 31.051

May 1, 2019 PSO-2-III 31.675

Christina Flores-Henriquez Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.104

September 19, 2018 013 9.354

Dee Gallaher Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Jonathan Gerzema Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IV 32.309

December 27, 2018 PSO-2-V 32.957

Longevity 0.087

-202-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Longevity, December 27, 2018 0.144

Kathy Gill Computer Operator - Police C1-H 25.233

Longevity 0.317

Dennis Gilroy Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Michael Haislet Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 36.641

Longevity 0.317

Gene Haller Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Kenzie Hamlett Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.611

Adam Hancock Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

January 30, 2019 PSO-2-II 31.051

Jeff Harrenstein Police Captain 414 47.502

Longevity 0.490

Longevity, January 28, 2019 0.548

Michael Hayes Police Captain 414 49.607

Longevity 0.606

Kevin Hernandez Public Safety Officer PSO-2-II 31.051

January 29, 2019 PSO-2-III 31.675

Brooke Heuer Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 45.706

Longevity 0.317

Mark Howard Police Captain 414 PSO 48.133

Longevity 0.202

Brian Johannsen Public Safety Officer   PSO-2-VI 33.616

August 29, 2018 PSO-2-VII 34.789

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, August 29, 2018 0.202

Brennan Kohls Community Service Officer I (Part-Time) 013 9.611

Keith Konigsmark Police Officer P2-IX 32.862

Longevity 0.606

Longevity, August 27, 2018 0.663

Matt Krueger Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VI 33.616

August 26, 2018 PSO-2-VII 34.789

Longevity 0.144

Longevity, August 26, 2018 0.202

Zachary Ladage Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VII 34.789

March 20, 2019 PSO-2-VIII 35.659

Longevity 0.202

-203-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Robert Lee Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 14.737

Branden Madsen Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

August 21, 2018 PSO-2-II 31.051

Michael Marcotte Public Safety Officer PSO-2-III 31.675

Shea McNamara Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IV 32.309

Longevity 0.087

Javier Mercado Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IV 32.309

January 17, 2019 PSO-2-V 32.957

Longevity 0.087

Stephanie Moore Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 36.641

Longevity 0.260

Brooke Neymeyer Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

August 21, 2018 PSO-2-II 31.051

Dennis O'Neill Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 45.376

Longevity 0.317

Longevity, August 30, 2018 0.375

Nicholas Puls Police Officer P2-IX 32.862

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, September 19, 2018 0.260

Kari Rea Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 36.641
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, November 26, 2018 0.317

Liesel Alexandria Reimers Public Safety Officer PSO-1-I 25.225

April 23, 2019 PSO-1-II 27.848

Preston Russell Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

October 30, 2018 PSO-2-II 31.051

Kurt Schreiber Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 43.750

Longevity 0.375

Longevity, May 27, 2019 0.433

Jeffrey Schultz Public Safety Officer PSO-2-II 31.051

February 1, 2019 PSO-2-III 31.675

Kendall Schwan Public Safety Officer PSO-2-II 31.051

October 3, 2018 PSO-2-III 31.675

Samual Shafer Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VII 34.789

October 6, 2018 PSO-2-VIII 35.659

Longevity 0.144

-204-

Item G.2.c. 



FY2019

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2019

June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

Longevity, October 6, 2018 0.202

Jeffrey Sitzmann Police Captain 414 47.423

Longevity 0.433

Timothy Smith Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 45.399

Longevity 0.202

Longevity, August 8, 2018 0.260

Tami Taber Office Assistant 304 14.510

Kelli Yates Police Lieutenant 412 41.411

Longevity 0.260

Longevity, September 3, 2018 0.317

Nolan Young Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 28.126

January 29, 2019 PSO-2-II 31.051

John Zolondek Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VII 34.789

September 4, 2018 PSO-2-VIII 35.659

Longevity 0.202

F- Frozen Pay

M - Maximum pay 

POC - Paid-On-Call

PSO - Public Safety Officer

-205-

Item G.2.c. 



 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting

CITY	OF	CEDAR	FALLS Effective	7/1/2018

Final	-	Post	Appeal Control	Point

80.0% 100.0% 130.0%
Grade Job	Title Department Minimum Control	Point Maximum FLSA

20 DIRECTOR	OF	COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT CD-ADMIN $54.82 $68.53 $89.09 E
DIRECTOR	OF	FINANCE	&	BUSINESS	OPERATIONS FINANCE	ADMIN E
DIRECTOR	OF	MUNICIPAL	OPERATIONS	&	PROGRAMS PUBLIC	WORKS	ADMIN E
DIRECTOR	OF	PUBLIC	SAFETY	SERVICES PUBLIC	SAFETY	ADMIN E

19 CITY	ATTORNEY LEGAL $50.46 $63.08 $82.00 E

18 VACANT $46.18 $57.72 $75.04

17 CITY	ENGINEER ENGINEERING $41.88 $52.35 $68.06 E
LIBRARY	DIRECTOR LIBRARY E

16 ASST	PUBLIC	SAFETY	DIRECTOR/ASST	CHIEF	-	POLICE POLICE $38.66 $48.33 $62.83 E
ASST	PUBLIC	SAFETY	DIRECTOR/CHIEF	-	FIRE FIRE E

15 INFORMATION	SYSTEMS	MANAGER INFORMATION	SYSTEMS $36.51 $45.64 $59.33 E
PUBLIC	WORKS	&	PARKS	MANAGER PUBLIC	WORKS	ADMIN E
PLANNING	&	COMMUNITY	SERVICES	MANAGER PLANNING E

14 WATER	RECLAMATION	MANAGER WATER	RECLAMATION $34.38 $42.97 $55.86 E
INSPECTION	SERVICES	MANAGER INSPECTION	SERVICES E
CONTROLLER/CITY	TREASURER FINANCIAL	SERVICES E
POLICE	CAPTAIN POLICE E

13 PRINCIPAL	ENGINEER ENGINEERING $32.22 $40.28 $52.36 E
RECREATION	&	COMMUNITY	PROGRAMS	MANAGER RECREATION E
V	&	T/CULTURAL	MANAGER V	&	T E
CITY	CLERK PUBLIC	RECORDS E
FIRE	BATTALION	CHIEF FIRE E

12 CABLE	TV	&	TELECOMMUNICATIONS	SUPERVISOR CABLE	TV $30.08 $37.60 $48.88 E
PLANNER	III PLANNING E
SENIOR	LIBRARIAN LIBRARY E
POLICE	LIEUTENANT POLICE E
POLICE	LIEUTENANT	-	PSO	FIRE POLICE E

11 BUILDING	MAINTENANCE	SUPERVISOR PUBLIC	BUILDINGS $27.93 $34.91 $45.38 E
FLEET	MAINTENANCE	SUPERVISOR VEHICLE	MAINTENANCE E
PUBLIC	WORKS	&	PARKS	SUPERVISOR STREETS E
LAND	SURVEYOR ENGINEERING E
TRAFFIC	OPERATIONS	SUPERVISOR TRAFFIC E
RECREATION	PROGRAM	SUPERVISOR RECREATION E
VIDEO	PRODUCTION	SUPERVISOR CABLE	TV NE
WATER	RECLAMATION	SUPERVISOR WATER	RECLAMATION E
GIS	ANALYST PLANNING E
CULTURAL	PROGRAMS	SUPERVISOR CULTURAL E
CIVIL	ENGINEER	II ENGINEERING E
NETWORK	ADMINISTRATOR INFORMATION	SYSTEMS E
FIRE	CAPTAIN FIRE E

10 PLANNER	II PLANNING $25.78 $32.22 $41.89 E
CIVIL	ENGINEER	I ENGINEERING E

2018	GRADE	ORDER	LIST:	OPEN	PLAN

-207-

Item G.2.c. 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting

CITY	OF	CEDAR	FALLS Effective	7/1/2018

Final	-	Post	Appeal Control	Point

80.0% 100.0% 130.0%
Grade Job	Title Department Minimum Control	Point Maximum FLSA

2018	GRADE	ORDER	LIST:	OPEN	PLAN

9 ACCOUNTANT FINANCIAL	SERVICES $23.64 $29.55 $38.42 E
LIBRARIAN LIBRARY E
FITNESS	COORDINATOR RECREATION E
GOLF	COURSE	MAINTENANCE	SUPERVISOR GOLF E
ADMINISTRATIVE	SUPERVISOR PUBLIC	RECORDS E
TECHNOLOGY	LIBRARIAN LIBRARY E
STORMWATER	SPECIALIST ENGINEERING NE
PERSONNEL	SPECIALIST LEGAL NE
REC	PROGRAM	COORDINATOR RECREATION NE
ENGINEERING	TECHNICIAN	II ENGINEERING NE
INSPECTOR INSPECTION	SERVICES NE

8 FINANCIAL	TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL	SERVICES $21.49 $26.86 $34.92 NE
INFORMATION	SYSTEMS	TECHNICIAN	II INFORMATION	SYSTEMS NE
EDUCATION	COORDINATOR CULTURAL NE
HEARST	COORDINATOR CULTURAL NE
ARBORIST PARKS NE
LIBRARY	EDUCATION	COORDINATOR LIBRARY NE

7 PROGRAM	COORDINATOR CULTURAL $19.34 $24.18 $31.43 NE
PLANNER	I PLANNING NE
GRAPHIC	DESIGNER INFORMATION	SYSTEMS NE
V	&	T	COORDINATOR V	&	T NE
PAYROLL/HR	TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL	SERVICES NE
ENGINEERING	TECHNICIAN	I ENGINEERING NE

6 ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT	-	LIBRARY LIBRARY $17.19 $21.49 $27.94 NE
INFORMATION	SYSTEMS	TECHNICIAN	I INFORMATION	SYSTEMS NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT	-	LEAD RECREATION NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT	-	LEAD PUBLIC	RECORDS NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	CLERK	-	FINANCIAL	CLERK FINANCIAL	SERVICES NE

5 LIBRARY	ASSISTANT LIBRARY $15.59 $19.49 $25.34 NE
SENIOR	SERVICES	COORDINATOR CULTURAL NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT PUBLIC	RECORDS NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT PUBLIC	WORKS NE
ADMINISTRATIVE	ASSISTANT COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT NE

4 OFFICE	ASSISTANT CULTURAL $14.51 $18.14 $23.58 NE
OFFICE	ASSISTANT V	&	T NE

3 HOUSING	SPECIALIST PLANNING $13.44 $16.80 $21.84 NE

2 VACANT $11.26 $14.07 $18.29

1 LIBRARY	PAGE LIBRARY $9.07 $11.34 $14.74 NE

-208-

Item G.2.c. 



WORKSHOP/SESSION/EVENT

PAY PLAN

Effective June 30, 2018 - June 28, 2019

RANGE CLASSIFICATION DURATION PAY RANGE & MODE

I Workshop Instructors Days Per Workshop

     1 Total Contact Hour $15.00

     1.5 Total Contact Hours $25.00

     2 Total Contact Hours $35.00

     3 Total Contact Hours $50.00

     4 Total Contact Hours $65.00

     6 Total Contact Hours $95.00

   II Session Instructors 2 or more weeks  Per Session

     30 Minutes     $6.00-19.00

     1 Hour     $9.50-25.00

     1.5 Hours    $12.50-39.00

     2  Hours    $15.00-40.00

     3  Hours    $21.00-55.00

     4  Hours    $30.00-60.00

     5  Hours    $37.50-65.00

     Golf Instructor    $30.00-50.00

     Library Instructors $80.00-120.00

  III Event Supervisors & Officials Various      Per Event

     Basketball - Non-Registered          $12.00 -20.00

     Basketball - Registered         $15.00-28.00

     Youth League (Umpire)            $9.50-30.00

     Umpires - Adult Softball         $15.00-30.00

     Senior Citizen         $17.00-35.00

     Basketball & Volleyball League         $17.00-35.00

     Adult Softball League Supervisor        $35.00-65.00

     Specialty Class Trainer              $16.00-35.00

     Fitness Equipment Repair    $25.00-55.00

  IV Cable Division Events Various      Per Event

    Sports Commentators              $75.00-250.00

    Camera Operators              $60.00-250.00

    Director              $100.00-250.00

    Video Replay/Scorebug Operator              $60.00-250.00

    Field Producer/Stage Manager              $50.00-100.00

    Time Out Coordinator              $50.00-150.00

    Show Hosts              $50.00-150.00

    Announcers for Videos or Commercials              $25.00-150.00

workshop-session-event.xls

-209-

Item G.2.c. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Kate Kelly, Administrative Clerk 

 DATE: May 18, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Fee Schedule 

 

 
Attached is a copy of the proposed FY19 Fee Schedule.  The Fee Schedule establishes 
fees for all City operations except Enterprise Fund fees, which are established by 
ordinance (refuse, sanitary sewer collection and parking meter fees). 
 
It is recommended that the attached FY19 Fee Schedule be adopted as proposed.  
Following adoption, staff will schedule the fees for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2018.  If you have any questions regarding proposed fees, please contact the 
department director responsible for the fee in question.   
 

 

-211-

Item G.2.d. 



 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATE

Civil Service Test No charge

Civil Service Promotional Test No charge

Video Duplication $15.00 Each DVD

SEC. 2-373

Sale of City Code of Ordinances $100.00
$200.00, Includes cost of new hard 

cover book and mailing subsequent 

code supplements

Sale of City Zoning Ordinance $10.00
$50.00, Includes cost of new paper 

cover book and mailing subsequent 

code supplements

Sale of National/Uniform Code Books adopted by 
reference, i.e. Building, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Mechanical, Fire, Life Safety, Housing, etc.

Sold at cost

Sale of Official Financial Publications Sold at cost

Copying of City Records No Charge Five pages or less

$0.10 Each, six or more pages

  Copying of City Records - major projects $0.10 Each, six or more pages + staff time 

Inspection and Design
Negotiated charges approved by 
City Council in Contract form

Copying of maps, drawings, etc. No Charge Five standard pages or less 

$0.10 Each, six or more pages

Copying of oversized maps, drawings, etc. $5.00 Each

Copy of Aerial Map per development $85.00

Copy of Aerial Map entire City $425.00

Sanitary Sewer Permit $100.00

City Banners - For "For Profit" Groups, Installation 
and removal $10.00 Each Banner

Electrical Panels For Special Events $50.00 Per Panel

$250.00 Deposit Fee

Delivery of Picnic Tables for Special Events $10.00 Per Table

Salt/Sand Mix $20.00 Each Ton

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_

rates_16.pdf

Aerial Lift Truck $125.00 Per hour

Traffic Control Devices Placement & Removal $100.00 Per placement

All equipment listed above:

1 Hour Minimum

Personnel:
1 Hour Minimum

Employee’s 
Effective Rate

Plus 20% Administrative Fee

SEC. 3-1
LICENSE TO DISTRIBUTE/POST ADVERTISING 
MATERIALS

$20.00
$200.00

Daily or
Annually

SEC. 3-43
SIGN PERMITS $25.00 Minimum all signs and

$1.00 Each additional sq. ft. of sign area > 
100 sq. ft.  $200.00 max.

Painter’s License $15.00 One year

Erector’s License $150.00 First year and

$35.00 For renewal

SEC. 5-53
KEG PERMIT $20.00

REMOVE

Code Section being deleted- 

Preempted by Iowa Code

Dog or Cat Altered $6.00 Each year

Dog or Cat Not Altered $12.00 Each year

Late Licensing Doubles After March 31

Duplicate License & Tag $1.00

Tag & License Mailing Fee $1.00 Each Tag/License

SEC. 6-86
LICENSE FOR RIDING SCHOOLS OR STABLES $30.00 One year

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS

International Building Code Plan Review.  (Base 
project value of $1,000 or more)

65% of Building Permit Fee

SEC. 7-26

BUILDING PERMITS

Valuation

$1.00 TO $500.00 $24.75

$500.01 TO $600.00 $27.75

$600.01 TO $700.00 $31.00

ADOPTED RATE

SEC. 2-239
CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINATIONS

SEC. 2-332
CABLE TELEVSION DIVISION

SEC. 2-417
PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

SEC. 2-542
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS

SEC. 2-482
ENGINEERING SERVICES

SEC. 3-46

SIGN PAINTER'S OR ERECTOR'S LICENSE

SEC. 6-44
DOG AND CAT LICENSE

Page 1-213-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$700.01 TO $800.00 $34.00

$800.01 TO $900.00 $37.00

$900.01 TO $1,000.00 $40.25

$1,001.01 TO $1,100.00 $43.25

$1,100.01 TO $1,200.00 $46.25

$1,200.01 TO $1,300.00 $49.50

$1,300.01 TO $1,400.00 $52.50

$1,400.01 TO $1,500.00 $55.50

$1,500.01 TO $1,600.00 $58.75

$1,600.01 TO $1,700.00 $61.75

$1,700.01 TO $1,800.00 $65.00

$1,800.01 TO $1,900.00 $68.00

$1,900.01 TO $2,000.00 $71.00

$2,000.01 TO $3,000.00 $85.50

$3,000.01 TO $4,000.00 $100.00

$4,000.01 TO $5,000.00 $114.25

$5,000.01 TO $6,000.00 $128.75

$6,000.01 TO $7,000.00 $143.25

$7,000.01 TO $8,000.00 $157.50

$8,000.01 TO $9,000.00 $172.00

$9,000.01 TO $10,0000 $186.50

$10,000.01 TO $11,000.00 $200.75

$11,000.01 TO $12,000.00 $215.25

$12,000.01 TO $13,000.00 $229.75

$13,000.01 TO $14,000.00 $244.00

$14,000.01 TO $15,000.00 $258.50

$15,000.01 TO $16,000.00 $273.00

$16,000.01 TO $17,000.00 $287.25

$17,000.01 TO $18,000.00 $301.75

$18,000.01 TO $19,000.00 $316.25

$19,000.01 TO $20,000.00 $330.75

$20,000.01 TO $21,000.00 $345.00

$21,000.01 TO $22,000.00 $359.50

$22,000.01 TO $23,000.00 $374.00

$23,000.01 TO $24,000.00 $388.25

$24,000.01 TO $25,000.00 $402.75

$25,000.01 TO $26,000.00 $413.00

$26,000.01 TO $27,000.00 $423.25

$27,000.01 TO $28,000.00 $433.75

$28,000.01 TO $29,000.00 $444.00

$29,000.01 TO $30,000.00 $454.25

$30,000.01 TO $31,000.00 $464.50

$31,000.01 TO $32,000.00 $474.75

$32,000.01 TO $33,000.00 $485.25

Page 2-214-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$33,000.01 TO $34,000.00 $495.50

$34,000.01 TO $35,000.00 $505.75

$35,000.01 TO $36,000.00 $516.00

$36,000.01 TO $37,000.00 $526.25

$37,000.01 TO $38,000.00 $536.75

$38,000.01 TO $39,000.00 $547.00

$39,000.01 TO $40,000.00 $557.25

$40,000.01 TO $41,000.00 $567.50

$41,000.01 TO $42,000.00 $577.75

$42,000.01 TO $43,000.00 $588.25

$43,000.01 TO $44,000.00 $598.50

$44,000.01 TO $45,000.00 $608.75

$45,000.01 TO $46,000.00 $619.00

$46,000.01 TO $47,000.00 $629.25

$47,000.01 TO $48,000.00 $639.75

$48,000.01 TO $49,000.00 $650.00

$49,000.01 TO $50,000.00 $660.25

$50,000.01 TO $51,000.00 $667.50

$51,000.01 TO $52,000.00 $674.75

$52,000.01 TO $53,000.00 $681.75

$53,000.01 TO $54,000.00 $689.00

$54,000.01 TO $55,000.00 $696.25

$55,000.01 TO $56,000.00 $703.50

$56,000.01 TO $57,000.00 $710.75

$57,000.01 TO $58,000.00 $718.00

$58,000.01 TO $59,000.00 $725.00

$59,000.01 TO $60,000.00 $732.25

$60,000.01 TO$ 61,000.00 $739.50

$61,000.01 TO $62,000.00 $746.75

$62,000.01 TO $63,000.00 $754.00

$63,000.01 TO $64,000.00 $761.25

$64,000.01 TO $65,000.00 $768.50

$65,000.01 TO $66,000.00 $775.50

$66,000.01 TO $67,000.00 $782.75

$67,000.01 TO $68,000.00 $790.00

$68,000.01 TO $69,000.00 $797.25

$69,000.01 TO $70,000.00 $804.50

$70,000.01 TO $71,000.00 $811.75

$71,000.01 TO $72,000.00 $818.75

$72,000.01 TO $73,000.00 $826.00

$73,000.01 TO $74,000.00 $833.25

$74,000.01 TO $75,000.00 $840.50

$75,000.01 TO $76,000.00 $847.75

$76,000.01 TO $77,000.00 $855.00

Page 3-215-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$77,000.01 TO $78,000.00 $862.00

$78,000.01 TO $79,000.00 $869.25

$79,000.01 TO $80,000.00 $876.50

$80,000.01 TO $81,000.00 $883.75

$81,000.01 TO $82,000.00 $891.00

$82,000.01 TO $83,000.00 $898.25

$83,000.01 TO $84,000.00 $905.25

$84,000.01 TO $85,000.00 $912.50

$85,000.01 TO $86,000.00 $919.75

$86,000.01 TO $87,000.00 $927.00

$87,000.01 TO $88,000.00 $934.25

$88,000.01 TO $89,000.00 $941.50

$89,000.01 TO $90,000.00 $948.75

$90,000.01 TO $91,000.00 $955.75

$91,000.01 TO $92,000.00 $963.00

$92,000.01 TO $93,000.00 $970.25

$93,000.01 TO $94,000.00 $977.50

$94,000.01 TO $95,000.00 $984.75

$95,000.01 TO $96,000.00 $992.00

$96,000.01 TO $97,000.00 $999.00

$97,000.01 TO $98,000.00 $1,006.25

$98,000.01 TO $99,000.00 $1,013.50

$99,000.01 TO $100,000.00 $1,020.75

$100,000.01 TO $500,000.00

$1,020.75 + $6.20 for each additional 

$1,000.00

Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$500,000.01 TO $1,000,000.00

$3,492.75 + $5.15 for each additional 

$1,000.00

Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$1,000,000.01 AND UP

$6,067.75 + $4.15 for each additional 

$1,000.00

Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

Shed over 120 sq. ft. needs permit

(All sheds need Land Use Permits)

Land Use Permit $25.75

Fence Permit $25.75

SEC. 7-126
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

SEC. 7-127
SPECIAL ELECTRICIAN REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

   Electrical Contractors
$100,000/

$300,000

 Special Electricians
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

New House $150.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.20 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures:
Incandescent/Fluorescent/Porcelain Bases $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

Electrical Services:
Temporary/Permanent $15.00 Temporary Service

$20.00 To 225-ampere capacity

$30.00 Over 225-ampere capacity

SEC. 7-149
RESIDENTIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-132

CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

Page 4-216-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$10.00 Additional replacement services

$7.00 Subpanels

Motors, Per Unit $8.00 0 to 10 HP

$10.00 Over 10 HP

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump Pump, 
Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking Equipment, 
Bath Fan, Etc. $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

 Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Generators, Transfer Switch, Car Charging Station, 
Hot Tub, Feeder Panel, Etc. $10.00 Each Unit

Reinspection of Unapproved Work $75.00

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 
Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 
Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 
Violations. $10.00 Each Trip

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures: $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, per additional opening

Electrical Services:
Temporary/Permanent $20.00 Temporary Service

$40.00
Permanent Service up to 400 

ampere

$60.00
Permanent Service 401-800 
ampere

$80.00
Permanent Service over 800 
ampere

$10.00 Additional replacement services

Motors, Per Unit $10.00 0 to 10 HP

$15.00 Over 10 HP

Transformers, Per Unit $20.00 0 to 75 KVA

$30.00 Over 75 KVA

Feeder Panels $15.00 Up to 225 A

$20.00 Above 225 A

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump Pump, 
Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking Equipment, 
Exhaust Fans $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Illuminated Signs and Outline Lighting $10.00 Each sign

Neon and All Signs Using Secondary Voltage of 600 
Volts or More $10.00 Each transformer

Special Equipment such as Generators, X-ray 
Equipment, Converters, Welders Etc. $15.00 Each Unit

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 
Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 
Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 
Violations $75.00 Each Trip

In-Ground Swimming Pool/Hot Tub Bonding 
Inspection $30.00

Specialized Systems such as Solar PV Systems, 
Wind Generated Systems, Etc. $30.00

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 7-364
ANNUAL PERMIT FOR PLUMBING WORK $100.00 One year

Base Rate $30.00

Water closet, urinals, bidets, tubs, showers, 
lavatories, sinks, hand sinks, floor sinks, grease 
trap, disposal, dishwasher, drinking fountain, 

laundry drain, laundry sink, sump, floor drains, 
roof drains, backwater valve, sewage eject, 
vacuum breakers, mop sinks. $8.50

Water softener, Water heater $15.00

Sewer Connections To/Or Continuation from Main
$30.00

Multiple Sewer Stubs $15.00 Each

Additional Fixture, Trap or Trap Opening (To 
Apply Towards Minimum Fee) $8.50

Reinspection of Unapproved work $75.00

Water Treatment or Storage Units $20.00

Backflow Protective Devices-Water $8.50

Reconstruction or Alteration of Drains, Stacks or 
Vents $20.00

One bathroom house $135.00

Two bathroom house $161.00

Three bathroom house $208.00

Working w/o permit $100.00
SEC. 7-450

LICENSE FEE, MOVING A BUILDING $30.00 One Week

SEC. 7-149
COMMERICAL AND INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-365
PLUMBING FEES

Page 5-217-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$60.00 One Month

$100.00 Six Months

$200.00 One Year

Structure Less than 200 sq. ft. $10.00

Structure More than 200 sq. ft. and Less than 500 
sq. ft. $50.00

Structure More than 500 sq. ft. $100.00

Base Rate $30.00

New House $150.00

Apartments $70.00 Per Unit

AC 0 to 3 Ton $20.00

AC 3.5 Ton – 5 Ton $40.00

AC 5.5 Ton – 30 Ton $50.00

AC 30.5 – 50 Ton $60.00

AC over 50 Ton $3.00 Per Ton

AH 0 to 10,000 CFM $20.00

AH over 10,000 CFM $30.00

Air-to-Air Heat Exchanger $15.00

Bath Exhaust $5.00

Boiler – 0 to 100,000 $20.00

Boiler – 100,001 to 500,000 $30.00

Boiler – 500,001 to 1,000,000 $45.00

Boiler 1,000,000 to 1,750,000 $60.00

Boiler over 1,750,000 $100.00

Duct Alterations $20.00

Fireplace $15.00

Furnace – Electric $25.00

Furnace – Gas $25.00

Furnace Vents $15.00

HPP 1-4 Outlets $0.00 No charge

HPP 5+ Outlets $2.00 Per Outlet

In-floor Heat $20.00

VAV Boxes $10.00

Ventilation – Multiple $10.00

Ventilation – OH $10.00

Ventilation – Type 1 Hood $50.00

Ventilation – Type 2 Hood $25.00

Working w/o Permit $100.00

Incinerator – Comm/Ind $70.00

Incinerator – Residential $16.25

Miscellaneous $20.00

NPP 1-4 Outlets $2.00

NPP 5+ per Outlet $0.50

Other per Hr $40.00 Per Hour

Outside Hr Change $40.00 Per Hour

Plan Review $30.00 Per Hour

Reinspection Fee $75.00

Base Rate $20.00

1/6 hp – 1/3 hp $15.00

1/3 hp – 1 hp $20.00

1 hp or greater $30.00

Cooling Towers $20.00

Walk-in Coolers/Freezers $20.00

Unit Coolers $20.00

Industrial Refrigeration $8.00 Per hp

Condominium Conversion $400.00 Per Unit

Initial Inspection See Attached

First Re-inspection $100.00

Second Re-inspection $150.00

Third and Each Subsequent Re-inspection $200.00

Owner does not show $50.00
With verbal acknowledgement of 
appointment by owner/occupant

Inspection after normal business hours $50.00

Day Care Inspections $50.00

Temporary Structure Inspection $50.00 Initial structure

$25.00 each additional temp structure

FALSE ALARMS

1st  occurrence of year $0.00

2nd occurrence of year $0.00

3
rd

 occurrence of year $200.00

4th occurrence of year $200.00

5th-9th occurrence of year $275.00 Each

10th and above occurrence of year $425.00 Each

Evidence of Repair in Lieu of Fee Fire Chief discretion

Alarm activation without notification $200.00 Each occurrence

   One & Two Single Family Home $100.00

   Condensing Units:

SEC. 7-476
MOVING PERMIT FEE ACCORDING TO STRUCTURE

SEC. 7-553
MECHANICAL FEES

REFRIGERATION FEES

SEC. 7-561
CONDOMINIUM CONVERSION

SEC. 11-32
COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION

RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM

FIRE ALARM/SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTIONS

Page 6-218-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

System Hydro Test (additional) $80.00

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

Stand Pipe (additional) $150.00

Fire Pump (additional) $150.00

Kitchen Hood Permits $40.00

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o testing $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

Acceptance testing of Newly installed and/or 
modified alarm systems $40.00 Per Hour, Per Inspector

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o test $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00

7,500+ square foot $240.00

Initial permits $100.00

Plan review and inspection $80.00

Re-inspection due to test failure $40.00

Inspection after normal hours $40.00

Passenger vehicle fire (<10,000 lbs) $150.00

Comm. vehicle fire (>10,000 lbs) $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Personnel without equipment $30.00 Per Hour, Per Person

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Additional response personnel $20.00 Each- Per hour

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Specialized Technical Rescue Equip $400.00 Per incident

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

New Location $150.00 Each Event

Repeat Location - Display Cost $1-$1,000 $50.00

Repeat Location – Display Cost $1,001 or greater $75.00

Permanent & Temporary Structure Inspection $100.00 per inspection, per location, 

if not reimbursed by the state

Installation of new above or below ground tank
$200.00 Per Tank

Removal of above or below ground tanks $150.00 Per Tank

Modification of tanks, piping, valves and 
dispensing equipment to include reconstruction, 
tapping, tank cutting, vent pipe relocations, 
dispenser piping, repiping and tank repair of 

repiping. $75.00

Permanent LP Tank Installation $80.00 Per tank

Temporary LP Tank Installation $40.00 Per tank

32 Gallon Garbage Cart $9.00 Per Month

     32 Gallon Replacement Cart $38.70

68 Gallon Garbage Cart $17.00 Per Month

     68 Gallon Replacement Cart $45.55

95 Gallon Garbage Cart $26.50 Per Month

     95 Gallon Replacement Cart $53.60

95 Gallon Yard Waste Cart $10.00 Per Dump

     April, October, November $5.00 Per Dump

     Replacement Yard Waste Cart $63.58

     Additional Yard Waste Cart 50.00 (no more than 2)

Christmas Tree Tags $1.25 Each

Appliances $7.50 Each

Computers/Televisions $5.00 Each

Bicycle Tire $1.00 Each

TECHNICAL RESCUE

FIREWORKS PERMIT

FLAMMABLE/COMBUSTIBLE LIQUID TANK PERMIT

   Fire Alarm Systems Construction Permits

   Clean Agent Fire Suppression System Construction Permits

VEHICLE FIRES & EXTRICATIONS

SPECIAL EVENT STANDBY

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL RESPONSE

   Solar Panel Fire Permit

SEC. 12-5
GARBAGE AND REFUSE

   Fire Sprinkler System Construction Permits

Page 7-219-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Motorcycle Tire $2.00 Each

Automobile Tire $2.50 Each

     With Rim $5.00 Each

Truck/Tractor Tire $6.50 Each

     With Rim $9.00 Each

Sand Bags $.50 Each

Extra Refuse Bag Tag $1.25 Each

Demolition Waste $59.15/Ton

Solid Waste $57.50/Ton

Yard Waste $29.50/Ton

Scale Charge $3.00

Leaf Vacuum Service $50.00/Visit

Asphalt Shingles- free of contaminants $30.00/Ton

Asphalt Shingles- with contaminants
$59.15/Ton plus $10.00/Ton Service 

Charge

For information only. Fees set by Code of 
Ordinances

Permit $300.00 Per Year Per Receptacle, Per Year

Initial Inspection $50.00 Each building and

$20.00 Each additional unit

First Re-inspection

*If violations are corrected at the time of first re-
inspection; fee will be waived.

Second Re-inspection $80.00 Each unit re-inspected

Third Re-inspection $160.00 Each unit re-inspected

Fourth Re-inspection $320.00 Each unit re-inspected

Inaccessible Unit $25.00 Each unit

Tri-Annual Registration Fee $75.00 Each building

Replacement of Occupancy Permit $5.00 Each unit

Permit Unavailable During Any Inspection $25.00 Each unit

Re-scheduling fee-

*If owner/agent canceled within 48 hrs of 
inspection or does not show for inspection $50.00* Each Unit

Requested inspection outside normal cycle $50.00 *if violations exist

0-25 Students $40.00

25-50 Students $80.00

More than 50 Students $120.00

Fire Extinguisher recharge $25.00 Per extinguisher

SEC. 16-35
MOBILE MERCHANT $50.00 Per month

$500.00 Each year

SEC. 16-52
PAWNBROKER LICENSE $65.00 Each year

If a Resident Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 
thousand dollars or less. $35.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 
of five thousand dollars, but not more than fifteen 
thousand dollars. $65.00

C.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 
of fifteen thousand dollars. $110.00

If a Transient Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 

thousand dollars or less. $165.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 
of five thousand dollars, but not in excess of fifteen 
thousand dollars. $330.00

C.  The stock of goods is valued in excess of fifteen 
thousand dollars. $550.00

Alarm Business Permit $0.00

Alarm Agent Permit $0.00

Alarm System Permit $0.00

SEC. 16-237
FALSE ALARM CALLS

$65.00
Per call after the 5th False Alarm 
per calendar year

$100.00
Per call after the 10th False Alarm 
per calendar year

SEC. 17-36
MOBILE HOME PARK PRELIMINARY PLAN FEE $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

Preliminary Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

Final Plan or Detailed Site Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

SEC. 18-5
ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES BY CITY AFTER 
NOTICE

FIRE EXTINGUISHER TRAINING

SEC. 12-13
TRASH DUMPSTERS OR RECEPTACLES IN CITY PARKING LOTS

SEC. 16-238
ALARM BUSINESS PERMITS OR ALARM AGENT PERMITS

SEC. 17-66
MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISIONS

$40.00* Each Unit

SEC. 14-77
MINIMUM RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION

SEC. 16-191
CLOSING - OUT SALE LICENSE

Page 8-220-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

1-Hour Minnimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 
against the property for collection 
in the same manner as a property 
tax.  Together with an 
administrative expense of $5.                          
I.C.A. § 364.12(3)(a), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_

rates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment
Amount 

Invoiced by 
Contractor

SEC. 18-44
JUNK VEHICLES (IMPOUNDMENT FEE)

As per Police Division Wrecker and 
Storage Contract

ADULT PROGRAMS

Basketball Leagues $370.00 Each Team 10 games

Couples Volleyball Class $29.00 Per person 8 weeks

Volleyball League $115.00 Each team 14 games

Mini Volleyball $70.00 Each team 6 games

Softball Leagues – 14 games

Registration $355.00 Each team

Player Fees $70.00 Each team

Mixed League Softball Plus $25.00

Ball Field Rental (field as is) $8.00 Per hour

Youth Games Ball Field Rental - Non-profit

   501C3 Field Rental

      Week Day Evening $16.00

      Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500 Max

Fall Softball League – 10 games

Registration $245.00 Each team

Player Fees $60.00 Each team

Softball Field Rental

  One Field - One Day $50.00

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) $110.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 
the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 
the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (field/night, league) $60.00

Kickball League $70.00

Flag Football League – 4 on 4 $100.00 Each team

Player Fee $15.00 Each player

Dodgeball $70.00

Golf Lessons – 4 lessons $38.00

Tennis Lessons – 8 lessons N/A

Tournaments Cost Plus $20.00

Open Gym Schools, residents $3.00 Or RC punch card/membership

Open Gym Schools, non-residents $6.00

Beach House (6 hours) Remove for FY19

Weekend (Friday-Sunday) N/A Remove for FY19

Weekday (Monday-Thursday) N/A Remove for FY19

Beach House (all day)

Weekend (Friday-Sunday, Holidays)

     West $100.00

     East $200.00

     Full Facility $275.00

Weekday (Monday-Thursday)

     West $62.50

     East $125.00

     Full Facility $175.00

Shelter Rental - All Day $22.00

Up to 6 hours N/A

Over 6 hours N/A

Gateway Shelter (10am-10:30pm)

Monday - Thursday $70.00

Friday-Sunday & Holidays $110.00

Racquetball League – 11 games

     Singles $35.00

Racquetball Lessons – 6 lessons $33.00

Table Tennis League $16.00

EXERCISE CLASSES

Specialty Classes
Instructor + 

$10.00

Exercise Tryouts $5.00

Fitness Pass w/o Rec Membership

4 months unlimited $96.00

1 month unlimited $35.00

Fitness Pass w/ Rec Membership

4 months unlimited $48.00

1 month unlimited $30.00

Circuit Weight Training
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $28.00

Circuit Weight Training
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $14.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

RECREATION DIVISION PROGRAM FEES

CHAPTER 20, CEDAR FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION

Page 9-221-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

3 x Per Week - Per Month $42.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $21.00

Rock On - Monthly
w/Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $26.00

Rock On - Monthly
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $52.00

Knock Out (with FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$26.00

Knock Out (no FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$52.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training

(2) 2-hour classes $28.00
*RCM - Rec Center Membership

*FP - Fitness Pass

YOUTH PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball T-ball

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 1

Registration $38.00

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 2-3

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Baseball 4-5

Registration $48.00

Sponsor $600.00

Girls Softball T-ball

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 1

Registration $38.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 2-3

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6

Registration $48.00

Sponsor $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $200.00

Boys Basketball 5-6

Registration $40.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Basketball 3-4

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $300.00

Boys Basketball 1-2

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 5-6 (format change)

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Basketball 3-4

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 1-2

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $300.00

Summer Track

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (8 weeks)

Registration $39.00

Sponsor $400.00

Flag Football K-2 (8 weeks)

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $200.00

Flag Football 3-4

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $300.00

Flag Football 5-6

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $500.00

Baseball Club $45.00

Softball Club $45.00

Soccer K, 1 & 2

Registration $29.00

Sponsor $350.00

Golf Lessons $28.00

Tennis Lessons $45.00

Tot Lot 

One Week $32.00

Six Weeks $150.00

Page 10-222-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Open Gym in schools No Charge

Special Events Cost Plus $5.00

Tournaments Cost Plus 0-10%

Indoor Park, 1-5 years $28.00

Full Session (18- 22 times) $40.00

Mini Session $18.00

Daily $3.00

Chew & View – 2 hours $6.00

Parents Night Out – 2 hours $8.00

Birthday Party $115.00

Birthday Party - Theme Package $140.00

Birthday Party - Theme & Pizza N/A

   Add Pizza $25.00

3 on 3 Basketball Tourney $30.00 Per Team

Soccer Tournament $20.00

Hot Shot Basketball $5.00

Free Throw Contest $5.00

Karate $30.00

New Sports & Active Programs Charge Comparable

Sack Lunch Days $25.00

Tumbling - 5 sessions $30.00

Hockey – Inline

Registration $24.00

Sponsor $150.00

Camp Cedar Falls

One Week $105.00

Full Summer (1 week free) $735.00

Pre and Post Care

Daily $5.00

Weekly $20.00

Note: Sponsorship determined by cost of t-shirts 
adjusted up to the nearest $50.00 increment.

SWIM POOL FEES

Daily Admission – Indoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $4.00

Adult (18 & Up) $4.00

Daily Admission – Outdoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $7.00

Adult (18 & Up) $7.00

Summer
Memorial Day-1st Day of School

Family Season Pass

Resident** $195.00

Non-Resident** $245.00

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 or 
less children. Ea. Additional child in the family 
will be $10.00

Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $60.00

Adult Season Pass

Resident $115.00

Non-Resident $145.00

Youth & Sr. (65 & Up) Season Pass 

Resident $110.00

Non-Resident $140.00

Lap Swim – Indoor

Resident $75.00

Non-Resident $85.00

**Purchase your summer swim pass prior to May 
15 & receive a $10 discount for a family & $5 for 
an individual pass.

Winter
1st Day of School-Memorial Day

Family Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $50.00

Non-Resident $55.00

Family Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $130.00

Non-Resident $140.00

Adult Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $25.00

Non-Resident $30.00

Adult Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $95.00

Non-Resident $100.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under
(w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $25.00

Non-Resident $30.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under
(w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $75.00

Non-Resident $80.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership

Swim Lesson – Youth $32.00

Swim Lesson – Adult $35.00

WSI $70.00

Page 11-223-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Aqua Trim $32.00

Deep Water Aqua Trim $32.00

Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00

Stretching Aqua Trim $32.00

Lap Swim – Daily $4.00 Or Pass

Life Guarding $115.00

Scuba Diving Cost Plus $10.00

Pool Rental ID, 1-75 people $60/hr.

Pool Rental ID, 76 or more people $75/hr.

Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth – 2 hours $200.00

Zero Depth / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides -- 2 hours

$425.00

Lap Pool / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides – 2 hours

$525.00

Lap Pool – 2 hours $325.00

Entire Facility – 2 hours

No Concessions $625.00

Concessions Sold - Resident $25.00/hr.

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be 
charged on the basis of direct program costs 
excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable fee 
to other similar activities

Sponsor fee may change in some cases 
depending on the registration, program changes 
or sponsor charge.

** Summer Family Swim Pass - Resident & Non-

Resident - Will be the fee listed for 1 adult or 4 or 
less children or 2 adults and 3 or less children.  

Each additional child in the family will be $10.00.  
Implemented Spring 2012.

RECREATION CENTER

Admission

Daily Resident

12 Grade & Under $5.00

Adult $7.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 Per person – Any age

Daily Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $5.00

Adult $7.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Resident Yearly Memberships

Individual

12 Grade & Under $90.00

Adult $145.00

Senior Citizen $130.00

Family $220.00

Non-Resident Yearly Memberships

Individual

12 Grade & Under $200.00

Adult $340.00

Senior Citizen $280.00

Family $450.00

4-Month (May-August only)

Resident

12 Grade & Under $45.00

Adult $72.50

Senior Citizen $65.00

Family $110.00

Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $100.00

Adult $170.00

Senior Citizen $140.00

Family $225.00

20-Punch Card – Residents

12 Grade & Under $45.00

Adult $73.00

Senior Citizen $65.00

20-Punch Card – Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $130.00

Adult $130.00

Senior Citizen $110.00

Replace I.D. Card $7.00

Corporate Rate

Individual $200.00

Family $265.00

Racquetball

Drop-in, per hour $0.00 Each

Reservation, per hour $2.00 Each

10 Punch Card $17.00 to $20.00 Value

Child Care

2-hour stay $2.50

20-Punch Card $40.00

Rentals

Resident Non-profit Organizations

Page 12-224-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Entire facility w/ adequate approved adult 
supervision 1:20 ratio

Per Hour $50.00 Plus staff cost 

Each additional hour N/A

Maximum cost (12 hr. max.) N/A

Meeting Room $10.00 Per hour

Full Room $25.00 Per hour

Gym Rental

Fit Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

½ of Old Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

All of Old Gym $70.00 Per hour + staff cost 

Activity Room $25.00 Per hour + staff cost 

*s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00

   COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL

      Regular Hours:
        Monday-Friday 8am - 4pm

 Seniors citizens (over 65) Events: 

   Monday-Friday Non-Holidays 8am - 4pm

      Non-Organized Clubs No Charge

      Organized Clubs $8.00 Per hour

   Outside Regular Community Center
      Hours

$10.00 Per hour

All Other Non-Profit Events:

Non-Holiday weekdays 8am-4pm 

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):
 Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

    Common Area - Front or West Half $25.00 Per hour

    Dining Area - Back or East Half w/Kitchen $25.00 Per hour

    Studio/Dance/Exercise Floor Only $25.00 Per hour

Any Two Of The Above Areas $40.00 Per hour

All Three Of The Above Areas $60.00 Per hour

Weekends,Holidays & Outside of Regular Hours - 
Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):

    Common Area - Front or West Half $30.00 Per hour

    Dining Area - Back or East Half w/Kitchen $30.00 Per hour

    Studio/Dance/Exercise Floor Only $30.00 Per hour

Any Two Of The Above Areas $50.00 Per hour

All Three Of The Above Areas $75.00 Per hour

Security Deposits for Weekends, Holidays & 
Outside of Regular Hours:

   Non-Beer and/or Wine Events $250.00

   Events with Beer and/or Wine $500.00

HEARST CENTER FOR THE ARTS:

Regular Business Hours:

    Tuesday & Thursday  9am - 9pm Tuesday & Thursday  10am - 9pm

    Wednesday & Friday 9am - 5pm Wednesday & Friday  10am - 5pm

    Saturday & Sunday 1pm - 4pm

Members of Friends of the Hearst receive 10% 
off space rental

Qualifying nonprofit or educational groups 
receive 50% off space rental

Equipment and staffing fees are the same for 
everyone

Mae Latta Hall $30.00 Per hour

Hearst Reading Room $15.00 Per hour

Nancy Price Meeting Room $15.00 Per hour

Rownd I & Rownd II Classrooms $25.00 Per hour for one room

$40.00 Per hour for both rooms

McElroy Classroom $25.00 Per hour

Corning Patio $35.00 Per hour

$15.00
Per hour if rented in addition to 
classroom

Sculpture Garden $300.00 up to four hours

$50.00 each additional hour

Equipment Use and Service:

Piano $20.00 $30.00

AV Equipment $20.00 REMOVE

LCD Projector $30.00 REMOVE

Table Cloths $5.00 Each table cloth REMOVE

Coffee (30 cup pot only-coffee not provided) $8.00

Coffee (60 cup pot only-coffee not provided) $12.00

Room Set-Up $10.00 for events fewer than 25

$25.00 for groups 26-100

Additional Fees:

Staff member if event takes place outside center 
hours

$30.00 Per hour

An additional fee will be deducted from the 
security deposit if the space requires cleaning.

A nonrefundable deposit of 50% of the rental fee 
is due at the time the reservation is made

A security deposit may be required depending on 

the nature of the event

Page 13-225-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

All events during which food or beverages will be 
served or that take place outside center hours 
will require a security deposit of $250.00

Alcoholic beverages (beer & wine) may be served 
only in compliance with the Hearst Center's 
alcoholic beverage policy.  There will be a 
$500.00 security deposit, and an off-duty police 
officer must be presnt during the entire event.

VISITOR CENTER RENTAL

During Regular Business Hours:

     Monday-Friday 8am - 5pm
30 people maximum & use of 
conference room and patio

30 people maximum & use of 
conference room and patio only

         Half Day (4 hours) $100.00 Flat Fee

         Full Day (8 hours) $200.00 Flat Fee

   Saturday 9am - 4pm & Sunday Noon-4pm
30 people maximum & use of 
conference room and patio

$50.00 Per Hour, Use of conference 
room and patio only

     Individuals & Non-profit Organizations $30.00 Per Hour Delete

     For Profit Organization $50.00 Per Hour Delete

  Outside Regular Visitor Center Hours 75.00 Per Hour

      Individuals & Non-profit Organizations $50.00 Per Hour Delete

      For Profit Organization $70.00 Per Hour Delete

Monday-Friday 8am-5pm, Saturday 9am-4pm & 
Sunday noon-4pm (over 30 people)

$50.00 Per Hour
Delete

Usage Fees

Annual

First Dog $15.00

Each Additional Dog $15.00

Daily $2.00 Per dog

Memorial Brick Add Fee $75.00

Services

Adult Spaces, Flush Marker Section $675.00

Adult Spaces, Monument Section $800.00

Infant Spaces 2’ X 5’ $250.00

Infant Spaces 2.5’ X 5’ $260.00

Adult Open and Close – Weekday $750.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday  a.m. $900.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday p.m. $950.00

Adult Open and Close – Less than 8-hour Notice $925.00

Infant Open and Close – Weekday

Without Tent $335.00

With Tent $385.00

Infant Open and Close – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $50.00

Cremains – Weekday

Without Tent $350.00

With Tent $400.00

Cremains – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $60.00

Winter Cremains – Weekday with Tent $625.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday a.m. with Tent $725.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday p.m. with Tent $775.00

Services before 9:00 a.m. $175.00 Additional

$200.00 Additional and

$50.00 Each hr after 4:00 p.m.

Disinterment – Adult $1,250.00

Disinterment – Infant/Cremains $550.00

Foundation and Marker Permit (Charged to 

Monument Company)
$65.00

Cemetery Lot Ownership and Deed Changes $60.00

NOTE: No Tent Service Available for Interments 
which Require a Vault

SEC. 19-68
HAZARDOUS WASTE SPILLS $50.00 Min. per Incident

SEC. 20-249
TREE TRIMMER’S LICENSE $55.00 Each year 

  Bond or Evidence of Insurance $5,000.00

  Certificate of Liability Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 20-263
FAILURE TO DESTROY NOXIOUS WEEDS & OTHER 
VEGETATION

PAW PARK

CEMETERY FEES

Services entering Cemetery after 3:00 p.m.

VETERANS PARK

Page 14-226-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

1-Hour Minnimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 
against the property for collection 
in the same manner as a property 
tax.                          
I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_

rates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment
Amount 

Invoiced by 
Contractor

COPY RECORDS / DIGITAL DATA

Police Reports $15.00 Each report

Applicant Fingerprinting $10.00 1-3 cards

  Additional cards $2.00 Per card

Video Duplication $15.00 Each DVD

Photo Reprints (4x6 in-house) $1.00 Each

Photo Reprints (larger/out-source) At Cost

Junk Vehicle Certificate $10.00

Fire Incident Reports $10.00 Each report

Fire Investigative Reports (Non-Criminal) $10.00 Each report

  Copying of records – major project
Applicable fee 
above + staff 

time

House/Garage Moving Permit $40.00/hr. 1/2 hr. min.

Funeral Escort $25.00

1 Hr. of Squad Car Usage $16.50

SEC. 23-125
SIDEWALK CONTRUCTION OR REMOVAL PERMIT

$30.00

SEC. 23-132
REPAIR OF DEFECTIVE SIDEWALKS

For Hire Contractor Amount 
Invoiced by 
Contractor

These costs shall be assessed 
against the abutting property for 
collection in the same manner as a 
property tax.                          
I.C.A.§364.12(2)(b), (e)                                                                            

SEC. 23-134
REMOVAL OF SNOW & ICE FROM SIDEWALKS

1-Hour Minnimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 
against the property for collection 
in the same manner as a property 
tax.                          
I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_

rates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment
Amount 

Invoiced by 
Contractor

SEC. 23-159

DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 23-162
DRIVEWAY CONTRACTOR'S BOND

$5,000.00 Renewable annually

SEC. 23-3  STREET MEETINGS

Use of barricades for block parties or street 
closures

$25.00 Block - up to Maximum of $100.00

SEC. 23-65(d)
TABLES, CHAIRS AND/OR BENCHES PERMIT

$25.00 Annually

SEC. 23-659(e)
TEMPORARY SIGNS PERMIT FOR DOWNTOWN 

SIDEWALK $25.00 Annually

SEC. 23-70
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT

$50.00
$250.00

Annually
Cash deposit

SEC. 23-74
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT

$1.00
Per square foot of public sidewalk 
within sidewalk café area

SEC. 23-89
EXCAVATION PERMIT

$30.00

SEC. 24-19
APPROVAL OF MINOR PLAT

$150.00

SEC. 24-29
APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY PLAT

$300.00
$300.00 + $5.00 per acre

SEC. 24-42
APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT

$300.00

SEC. 24-73
PROCESSING FEES FOR DEDICATION, VACATION 
OF CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY

$200.00

UTILITY EASEMENT VACATION $200.00

PARKING METER Fees Covered By Ordinance

SEC. 26-254
IMMOBILIZATION OF VEHICLES

$50.00

SEC. 26-497
ISSUANCE OF BICYCLE REGISTRATION TAG

$2.00

CHAPER 27 UTILITIES

SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL

CHAPTER 26
TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES

CHAPTER 22  PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE SERVICES

Page 15-227-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Septic Tank Discharge Fee $13.00
per 1,000 gallons of tank truck 
capacity

Hydro-Cleaner $150.00 Per Hour

Sludge Truck $150.00 Per Hour

Sewer Televising  Apparatus $150.00 Per Hour

Utility Truck $75.00 Per Hour

Pump $50.00 Per Hour

All equipment listed above:
   1-Hour Minimum

Personnel:
   1-Hour Minimum

Employee's 
Effective Rate

Plus 20% administrative fee

Subdivision plat or initial land development $50.00 Per acre exposed

Subsequent development of lot or parcel of 
original tract of land

$100.00 Single family unit

$50.00
Per residential unit for multiple 
unit complex

$10.00
Per 1,000 sq. ft. of impervious 
surface

  SEC. 28-34 License Fee $110.00 Each year before March 31

$165.00 after March 31

$30.00 Each vehicle before March 31

$45.00 after March 31

Vehicle replacement/substitution $10.00
Each vehicle/
Each occurrence

SEC. 28-39   
APPLICATION FOR DRIVER LICENSE $12.00 Each

SEC. 28-45   
Renewal of License $6.00 Each renewal before March 31

$12.00 Each renewal after March 31

Rezoning Request $500.00

Board of Adjustment – Variances $350.00

Board of Adjustment – Special Exceptions $350.00

Land Use Permits $25.00

Site Plan Review
  - Façade Review for commercial & minor 

residential improvements
$50.00

  - Residential Review, Single Family & Two-Family 
Residential

$100.00

  - Commercial Review including multi-family 
residential facilities

$200.00
$300.00

SEC. 29-123    
Communication Towers $200.00

SEC. 29-127
Wind Energy Facilities $200.00

The following fees shall be established for the permits, licenses, certificate's, approvals, life safety inspections and other functions performed under this Code and 
shall be payable by the Non-residential businesses to the City of Cedar Falls. Such fees shall accompany each application for such permit, approval, certificate, or 
other fee-related Code provisions. 

(1) Non-residential businesses annual fee schedule for life safety inspection. 

The inspections, thus the fee schedule shall be based on occupancy, or individual business. Therefore, if there are more than one occupancy or businesses in a single 
building, each business, and the business owner/occupant thereof, will be responsible for the inspection and the fee. The actual payment of the fee between the 
occupant and the landlord is between those parties and the lease agreement; the City will not be involved in such agreements. If there is a common area, the 
inspection and fee for this common area will be the responsibility of the building/property owner. 

New Construction applications for permit shall comply with the adopted Codes of the City of Cedar Falls. 

ANNUAL LIFE SAFETY PERMITS, LICENSES, AND CERTIFICATIONS FEES 

SEC. 28
VEHICLES FOR HIRE

SEC. 27-301
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN APPLICATION 

COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE

The purpose of this ordinance is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life, health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, 
construction, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of all nonresidential businesses, buildings and structures within this jurisdiction 
and certain equipment specifically regulated by the adopted Fire Code of the City of Cedar Falls. 

SEC. 29-4
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT (TEXT OR MAP)

SQUARE FOOT                     
                     Fee                       
     
            1 -  2,000    $40          
    2,001 -  10,000    $70          
   10,001 - 20,000  $100          
   20,001 - 50,000   $195        
   50,001 - 100,000       $225        
   over  100,000  $300        

Page 16-228-

Item G.2.d. 



City of Cedar Falls  FY19 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE
Any building that is fully sprinkled will receive a credit of 50%, of the square footage relative hazard class fee. (This is to show the importance of sprinklers relative 
to life safety and the type of building construction.) 

REINSPECTION FEES DO NOT APPLY IF VIOLATIONS ARE CORRECTED PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED REINSPECTION DATE. IF DURING A REINSPECTION 
VIOLATIONS ARE STILL PRESENT, A REINSPECTION FEE WILL APPLY AS PER THIS FEE SCHEDULE.  (First - $100, Second - $150, Third - $200, Each after Third - 
$200)

REINSPECTION FEES: 

At the time of the initial inspection, the occupant and/or owner will receive a copy of the life safety inspection indicating which violations need to be corrected. 
Along with this will be a standard letter listing the date of reinspection as well as the schedule of fees, as listed in the fee schedule. Fees will be assessed if they do not 
comply at the time of the first, second, or third reinspection date. If the Fire Department is notified in writing, (by mail or hand delivered) in a timely manner, and 
repairs are scheduled, a reinspection date may be rescheduled to allow more time to complete repairs. Non-profit entities or governmental agencies are not exempt 

from the reinspection fees as listed in the fee schedule. 

The fire chief has the authority to waive or negotiate a more appropriate service fee based on hardship, established self-insurance plans and larger deductibles.

FIRE RESPONSE INSURANCE RECOVERY FEE:  

Whereas a property owner’s insurance policy provides for a fire department response fee, a fee of $500 shall apply to the owner of a residential property and a fee 

of $1000 shall apply to the owner of a commercial property in which the fire department responds to suppress a building fire. 

Page 17-229-

Item G.2.d. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations & Programs 

 DATE: May 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Updated Lease Agreement – Behrens/Rapp Gas Station 

 
In June 1998, the City Council entered into a lease agreement with the Historical 

Society to allow the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station to be placed on public property in 
Sturgis Park north of the 1st Street and Clay Street intersection. This structure is owned 
and maintained by the Historical Society after it was moved from its original location in 
1993 during the Waterloo Road reconstruction project. 
 The Behrens Brothers, John Frederich Behrens and William C. Behrens, built a 
“pure oil station” in 1925 on land they had purchased at the intersection of 14th St and 
Waterloo Rd. The filling station’s hip roof, brick pillars, drive-under canopy, and ring of 
light bulbs captured the era's architectural style. The Behrens operated the station for 
twenty years before son-in-law Norris Smith took over management and ownership in 
1945. John Rapp began working at the station in 1943, but World War II interrupted his 
service. After the war, he returned to his work and became the manager in 1950. He 
purchased the business from Norris Smith in the 1960s and continued operations until 
May 1990. When construction plans for the new Highway 58 endangered the building, a 
group of Cedar Falls citizens worked to preserve it and find it a new home.  In 1993, the 
Cedar Falls Historical Society, Cedar Falls Tourism and Visitor’s Bureau, and Trolley 
Trackers Questers Chapter #1113 partnered to move the building to its current location 
and restore the station. On July 21, 1993 it settled into its home at First and Clay, where 
it now serves as a Visitor Information Center. 
 Several areas of the original 1998 lease were amended to bring the language up 
to current legal standards. The “spirit” of the lease has not changed. It lays out rules, 
responsibilities and protections between the City and the Historical Society and was 
drafted to reflect the Ice House Lease that was adopted by the City Council in 2010. In 
order to align all ending dates for the three leases, it is proposed that the Behrens/Rapp 
Gas Station lease expire at the same time as the Ice House Lease, which is December 
31, 2034. 

The Department of Municipal Operations and Programs recommends that the 
revised lease with the Historical Society for the continued placement of the 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station on public property be approved. Feel free to contact me if 
you have questions or comments. 

-231-

Item G.2.e. 



 



LEASE AGREEMENT 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station 

 
 

 This Lease Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 
2018, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter called the "Landlord"), whose 
address for the purpose of this lease is c/o Cedar Falls City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa  50613, and Cedar Falls Historical Society (hereinafter called the "Tenant"), whose address 
for the purpose of this lease is Attn: Executive Director, 308 West Third Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa  50613. 
 
 WITNESSETH THAT: 
 
 1. Premises and Term.  In consideration of the agreements and conditions of the 
Tenant to be kept and performed as contained in this Lease Agreement, Landlord leases unto the 
Tenant and Tenant hereby rents and leases from Landlord, according to the terms and conditions 
of this Lease Agreement, the following described real estate, situated in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, to-wit: 
 

Those grounds adjacent thereto and surrounding the structure known as the Behrens/Rapp 
Gas Station, situated in the vicinity of West First Street and Clay Street in Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, and, legally described as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and by this 
reference incorporated herein, with the improvements thereon and all rights, easements 
and appurtenances belonging thereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Leased Premises”), 

 
for a term, commencing at midnight of the day previous to the first day of the lease term, which 
shall be on the 1st day of June, 2018, and ending at midnight on the last day of the lease term, 
which shall be on the 31st day of December, 2034, upon the condition that the Tenant performs 
its agreements and obligations as provided in this Lease Agreement. 
 
 2. Rental.  As rental for said term, Tenant agrees to do the following: 
 

(a) Perform all of Tenant's obligations as described in this Lease Agreement; 
and 

 
(b) Pay for certain utilities and for insurance, as provided in paragraphs 6, 10, 

11, 12, and 13 of this Lease Agreement.  All sums payable to Landlord 
shall be paid at the address of Landlord designated above.  Delinquent 
payments shall draw interest at five (5) percent per annum from the date 
due until paid. 

 
 3. Possession.   Tenant shall be entitled to possession of the Leased Premises on the 
first day of the term of this lease, and shall yield possession to the Landlord at the time and date 
of the close of this lease term, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease Agreement.  
 

4. Use of Premises.  Tenant owns a structure known as the Behrens/Rapp Gas 
Station and agrees during the term of this lease to use and to occupy the Leased Premises only for 
a museum which features artifacts as relate to the history of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk County, 
Iowa, as Tenant deems appropriate.  Tenant specifically agrees not to use any portion of the 

-233-

Item G.2.e. 



 2

building or grounds for private, commercial or profit-making uses or purposes.  If the 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station is sold, leased or otherwise conveyed by the Tenant, Tenant shall 
remove the building from the Leased Premise at Tenant’s cost within sixty (60) days of such 
conveyance.  
 
 5. Care and Maintenance of Premises.   
 

(a) Tenant takes the Leased Premises in their present condition without 
exceptions. 

 
(b) Tenant's Duty of Care and Maintenance.  Tenant shall continue to own the 

Behrens/Rapp Gas Station and shall maintain the structure and Leased 
Premises in a reasonable safe, serviceable, clean and presentable condition 
throughout the term of the lease, and any extensions thereof. Tenant shall 
be solely responsible for the cost of care, maintenance and repair of the 
structure. 

 
(c) Landlord’s Duty of Care and Maintenance.  Landlord shall be responsible 

for care and maintenance of that portion of the Leased Premises 
surrounding and lying outside of the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building, 
including mowing of the grounds adjacent to the building, removing ice 
and snow from the sidewalks and paved areas surrounding the building, 
and removing trash from the area of the Leased Premises surrounding the 
building. 

 
(d) Use of Premises.  Tenant shall make no unlawful use of the Leased 

Premises, and agrees to comply with all valid regulations of the Black 
Hawk County Board of Health, the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, and 
the laws, rules and regulations of the State of Iowa and the Federal 
government.   

 
(e) No Structural Alterations or Improvements.  Tenant shall make no 

structural alterations or improvements to the Leased Premises, or any 
portion thereof, without the prior written consent of the Landlord.  Such 
written consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  All costs for such 
improvements shall be provided and paid for by Tenant. 

 
 6. Utilities and Services.   
 

(a) Landlord shall pay the cost of any electric utilities used outside of the 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building during the term of this Lease. 

 
(b) Tenant shall pay all charges for all other utilities, including all utilities 

used in the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building during the term of this 
Lease.  Tenant shall provide and pay for janitor services, as needed, for the 

-234-

Item G.2.e. 



 3

Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building. 
 
(c) Landlord shall provide refuse receptacles or dumpsters at a location on or 

near the Leased Premises, for the use of Tenant, and agrees to arrange for 
pickup and removal of such refuse from the receptacles or dumpsters at 
Tenant's expense. 

 
7. Surrender of Leased Premises. 
 

(a)  Tenant agrees that upon the termination of this lease, it will surrender, 
yield up and deliver the Leased Premises in good and clean condition, 
except the effects of ordinary wear and tear and depreciation arising from 
lapse of time, or damage without fault or liability of Tenant.  Tenant shall 
remove, at Tenants cost, the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station within sixty (60) 
days after termination of this lease for any reason. Such removal shall 
include any fixtures or equipment installed by Tenant. Tenant shall pay the 
cost or repair of any damage to the Leased premises caused by such 
removal. 

 
(b) Holding Over.  Continued possession beyond the expiration date of the 

term of this lease by the Tenant, coupled with the receipt of the specified 
rental by the Landlord, and absent a written agreement by both parties for 
an extension of this lease, or for a new lease, shall constitute a month-to-
month extension of this lease, terminable upon thirty (30) days' written 
notice by either party. 

 
 8. Assignment and Subletting.  Any assignment of this lease or subletting of the 
Leased Premises, or any part thereof, by Tenant without the prior express written permission of 
Landlord shall, at the option of Landlord, cause an immediate termination of this lease.  Such 
written permission may be withheld in Landlord’s sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 9. Taxes.   
 

(a) Real Estate Taxes.  At the present time, the Leased Premises are not 
assessed for general property tax purposes and are exempt from taxation 
by reason of public ownership by Landlord.  If at any time during the term 
of this lease the Leased Premises become subject to levy or assessment by 
lawful authority for general property taxes, Tenant agrees to timely pay 
that portion of such general property taxes which is properly allocable to 
the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building portion of the Leased Premises and 
any improvements hereafter located on the Leased Premises. 

 
(b) Personal Property Taxes.  Tenant agrees to timely pay all taxes, 

assessments or other public charges levied or assessed by lawful authority 
against its personal property kept on the Leased Premises during the term 

-235-

Item G.2.e. 



 4

of this Lease Agreement. 
 
(c) Special Assessments.  In the event there are special assessments levied or 

assessed against the real estate of which the Leased Premises is a part by 
lawful authority during the term of this lease, Tenant agrees to timely pay 
that portion of such special assessments properly allocable to the 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building portion of the Leased Premises and 
any improvements hereafter located on the Leased Premises. 

 
 10. Insurance.   
 

(a) Property Insurance.  Tenant shall insure its property located on the Leased 
premises for the full insurable value. Such insurance shall cover losses 
included in the Insurance Services Office Broad Form Causes of Loss 
(formerly fire and extended coverage).  To the extent permitted by their 
policies, the Landlord and Tenant waive all rights of recovery against each 
other. 

 
(b) Liability Insurance.  Tenant shall obtain and maintain commercial general 

liability insurance covering the Leased Premises in the amounts of 
$1,000,000.00 each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 annual aggregate per 
location.  Such policy shall include liability arising from premises 
operations, independent contractors, personal injury, products and 
completed operations and liability assumed under an insured contract.  
This policy shall be endorsed to include the Landlord as an additional 
insured and shall obtain governmental immunities endorsement. 

 
(c) Landlord Liability Insurance.  Landlord will maintain liability insurance 

with respect to the Leased Premises outside the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station 
Building in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls general liability 
policy.  Such insurance shall be secondary to Tenant’s general liability 
insurance required in Paragraph 10(b) above.  

 
(d) Acts by Tenant.  Tenant will not do or omit doing any act which would 

invalidate any insurance, or increase the insurance rates in force on the 
premises. 

 
(e) Increased Risks or Hazards.  Tenant further agrees to be liable for and to 

promptly pay, as if current rental, any increase in insurance rates on said 
premises and on the building of which said premises are a part, due to 
increased risks or hazards resulting from Tenant’s use of the premises 
otherwise than as herein contemplated and agreed. 

 
(f) Landlord and Tenant shall each provide a copy of this lease to their 

respective insurers. 

-236-

Item G.2.e. 



 5

 
(g) Tenant shall comply with all of the insurance requirements set forth on 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto, and by this reference made a part of this 
Lease. 

 
 11. Indemnity and Liability Insurance.  Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless Landlord, and its employees and agents, from and against any and all actions or causes 
of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense of whatever kind or 
nature, alleged or claimed to have been caused by, occasioned by, or to have arisen out of or in 
connection with, any accident or occurrence causing or inflicting injuries to or the death of any 
person or persons, or damage to or loss of any property, including damage by fire to the 
Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building which is located on the Leased Premises, happening or done, 
in, upon, or about the Leased Premises, or due directly or indirectly to the tenancy, use or 
occupancy thereof, or any part thereof, by the Tenant or any person claiming through or under the 
Tenant on or about the Leased Premises.  
 

12. Liability for Damage.  Each party shall be liable to the other for all damage to the 
property of the other negligently, recklessly or intentionally caused by that party (or their agents, 
employees or invitees), except to the extent the loss is insured and subrogation is waived under 
the owner’s policy. 

 
13. Fire and Casualty. 
 

(a) Partial Destruction of Premises.  In the event of a partial destruction or 
damage of the premises, which is a business interference which prevents 
the conducting of a normal business operation and which damage is 
reasonably repairable within sixty (60) days after its occurrences, this lease 
shall not terminate but the rent for the premises shall abate during the time 
of such business interference.  In the event of a partial destruction, 
Landlord shall repair such damages within 60 days of its occurrence unless 
prevented from so doing by acts of God, government regulations, or other 
causes beyond Landlord’s reasonable control. 

 
(b) Zoning.  Should the zoning ordinance of the municipality in which this 

property is located make it impossible for Landlord to repair or rebuild so 
that Tenant is not able to conduct its business on these premises, then such 
partial destruction shall be treated as a total destruction as provided in the 
next paragraph. 

 
(c) Total Destruction of Business Use.  In the event of a destruction or 

damage of the Leased Premises so that Tenant is not able to conduct its 
business on the premises or the then current legal use for which the 
premises are being used and which damages cannot be repaired within 
sixty (60) days, this lease may be terminated at the option of either the 
Landlord or Tenant.  Such termination in such event shall be effected by 

-237-

Item G.2.e. 



 6

written notice of one party to the other, within twenty (20) days after such 
destruction.  Tenant shall surrender possession within sixty (60) days after 
such notice issues and each party shall be released from all future 
obligations, and Tenant shall pay rent pro rata only to the date of such 
destruction.  In the event of such termination of this lease, Landlord at its 
option, may rebuild or not, at its discretion. 

 
 
 14. Condemnation.   
 

(a) Disposition of Awards.  Should the whole or any part of the Leased 
Premises be condemned or taken for any public or quasi-public use or 
purpose, each party shall be entitled to retain, as its own property, any 
award payable to it.  In the event that a single entire award is made on 
account of the condemnation, each party will then be entitled to take such 
proportion of said award as may be fair and reasonable. 

 
(b) Date of Lease Termination.  If the whole of the Leased Premises shall be 

so condemned or taken, the Landlord shall not be liable to the Tenant 
except and as its rights are preserved in the previous subparagraph. 

 
15. Default, Notice of Default and Remedies. 

 
Events of Default 

 
(a) Each of the following shall constitute an event of default by Tenant: 
 

1. Failure to observe or perform any duties, obligations, agreements 
or conditions imposed on Tenant pursuant to the terms of the lease. 

 
2. Abandonment of the premises, “Abandonment” means the Tenant 

has failed to engage in its usual and customary business activities 
on the premises for more than fifteen (15) consecutive business 
days, except for normal wintertime facility closure. 

 
3. Institution of voluntary bankruptcy proceedings by Tenant; 

institution of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings in which the 
Court orders relief against the Tenant as a debtor; assignment for 
the benefit of creditors of the interest of Tenant under this lease 
agreement; appointment of a receiver for the property or affairs of 
Tenant, where the receivership is not vacated within ten (10) days 
after the appointment of the receiver. 

 
 
 

-238-

Item G.2.e. 



 7

Notice of Default 
 

(b) Landlord shall give Tenant a written notice specifying the default and 
giving the Tenant ten (10) days in which to correct the default.  If there is a 
default (other than for nonpayment of a monetary obligation of Tenant, 
including rent) that cannot be remedied in ten (10) days by diligent efforts 
of the Tenant, Tenant shall propose an additional period of time in which 
to remedy he default.  Consent to additional time shall not be unreasonably 
withheld by Landlord.  Landlord shall not be required to give Tenant any 
more than three notices for the same default within any 365-day period. 

 
Remedies 

 
(c) In the event Tenant has not remedied a default in a timely manner 

following a Notice of Default, Landlord may proceed with all available 
remedies at law or in equity, including but not limited to the following: 

 
1. Termination.  Landlord may declare this lease to be terminated and 

shall give Tenant a written notice of such termination.  In the event 
of termination of this lease, Landlord shall be entitled to prove 
claim for and obtain judgment against Tenant for the balance of the 
rent agreed to be paid for the term herein provided, plus all 
expenses of Landlord in regaining possession of the premises and 
the reletting thereof, including attorney’s fees and court costs, 
crediting against such claim, however, any amount obtained by 
reason of reletting. 

 
2. Forfeiture.  If a default is not remedied in a timely manner, 

Landlord may then declare that this lease to be forfeited and shall 
give Tenant a written notice of such forfeiture, and may, at the 
time, give Tenant the notice to quit provided for in Chapter 648 of 
the  Code of Iowa. 

 
 16. Right of Either Party to Make Good Any Default of the Other.  If default shall be 
made by either party in the performance of, or compliance with, any of the terms, covenants or 
conditions of this lease, and such default shall have continued for thirty (30) days after written 
notice thereof from one party to the other, the party aggrieved, in addition to all other remedies 
now or hereafter provided by law, may, but need not, perform any such term, covenant or 
condition, or make good such default, and any amount advanced shall be repaid forthwith on 
demand, together with interest at the rate of five (5) percent per annum, from date of advance.  
 
 17. Signs.  Tenant shall have the right and privilege of attaching, affixing, painting or 
exhibiting signs on the Leased Premises, provided only (1) that any sign shall comply with the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the laws of the State of Iowa; and (2) 
such sign shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Landlord, which approval shall not 

-239-

Item G.2.e. 



 8

be unreasonably withheld.   
 
 18. Mechanic's Liens.  Neither the Tenant nor anyone claiming by, through, or under 
the Tenant, shall have the right to file or place any mechanic's lien or other lien of any kind or 
character whatsoever, upon the Leased Premises or upon any building or improvement located 
thereon, or upon the leasehold interest of the Tenant therein, and notice is hereby given that no 
contractor, subcontractor, or anyone else who may furnish any material, service or labor for any 
building, improvements, alteration, repairs or any part thereof, shall at any time be or become 
entitled to any lien thereon, and for the further security of the Landlord, the Tenant covenants and 
agrees to give actual notice thereof in advance, to any and all contractors and subcontractors who 
may furnish or agree to furnish any such material, service or labor. 
 
 19. Landlord's Lien and Security Interest.  Landlord shall have, in addition to the lien 
given by law, a security interest as provided by the Uniform Commercial Code of Iowa, upon all 
personal property and all substitutions therefor, kept and used on the Leased Premises by Tenant.  
Landlord may proceed at law or in equity with any remedy provided by law or by this Lease 
Agreement for the recovery of rent, or for termination of this Lease Agreement because of 
Tenant's default in its performance. 
 
 20. Substitution of Personal Property.  Tenant shall have the right, from time to time, 
during the term of this lease, or the renewal thereof, to sell or otherwise dispose of any personal 
property of the Tenant situated on the Leased Premises, when in the judgment of the Tenant it 
shall have become obsolete or unnecessary in connection with Tenant's affairs conducted on the 
Leased Premises.  
 
 21. Additional Covenants of Tenant.  During the entire term of this lease, and any 
renewal thereof, Tenant agrees to abide by each and every one of the following covenants and 
provisions: 
 

(a) Tenant agrees to immediately vacate the Leased Premises when advised by 
Landlord of the need to vacate the premises by reason of flood or potential 
flood, natural disaster, or any other reason involving public health, safety 
or welfare, after being notified to vacate by Landlord.  Tenant agrees to 
take immediate action to cause all persons occupying the Leased Premises 
to vacate the premises immediately upon being informed thereof by 
Landlord.  Such determination shall be made either by the City Police 
Chief, City Fire Chief, or the City Director of Municipal Operations & 
Programs, or their designees.  There shall be no abatement of rent or any 
other compensation to Tenant arising out of the vacation of the Leased 
Premises by reason of any such emergency. 

 
(b) Tenant agrees to allow Landlord to inspect the Leased Premises, including 

the Tenant owned Behrens/Rapp Gas Station building, at any time upon 
reasonable notice thereof. 

 

-240-

Item G.2.e. 



 9

(c) Tenant agrees to be responsible for acquiring any necessary permits or 
approvals from any governmental authorities for the use of the Leased 
Premises, including, but not limited to, the Black Hawk County Health 
Department, Iowa Department of Natural Resources, U. S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, and the like. 

 
22. Previous Lease Superseded.  The parties mutually agree that the terms and 

conditions of this Lease Agreement supersede and replace any and all lease agreements between 
the Landlord and Tenant regarding the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station and that any and all leases are 
hereby canceled, rescinded and held for naught. 

 
23. Rights Cumulative.  The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies 

of either party, provided in this lease, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them as 
exclusive of the others, or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed either party by 
law, and shall in no way affect or impair the right of either party to pursue any other equitable or 
legal remedy to which either party may be entitled as long as any default remains in any way 
unremedied, unsatisfied or undischarged. 

 
24. Notices and Demands.  Notices as provided for in this lease shall be given to the 

respective parties hereto at the respective addresses designated on page one of this lease unless 
either party notifies the other, in writing, of a different address.  Without prejudice to any other 
method of notifying a party in writing or making a demand or other communication, such 
message shall be considered given under the terms of this lease when sent, addressed as above 
designated, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, by the 
United States Mail and so deposited in a United States mail box. 

 
25. Provisions to Bind and Benefit Successors and Assigns.  Each and every covenant 

and agreement herein contained shall extend to and be binding upon the respective successors 
and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
26. Changes to be in Writing.  None of the covenants, provisions, terms or conditions 

of this lease to be kept or performed by Landlord or Tenant shall be in any manner modified, 
waived or abandoned, except by a written instrument duly signed by the parties and delivered to 
the Landlord and Tenant.  This lease contains the whole agreement of the parties. 

 

-241-

Item G.2.e. 



 10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease Agreement 
effective on the date stated above. 

 
CEDAR FALLS HISTORICAL SOCIETY  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By________________________________  By_______________________________ 
 Dr. Roger Kueter, President     James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
By________________________________  ATTEST: 
        Jerald Lukensmeyer, Secretary 
       __________________________________ 
        Jacque Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, by Dr. 
Roger Kueter and Jerald Lukensmeyer, as President and Secretary, respectively, of Cedar Falls 
Historical Society. 
 
     ______________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for said State 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_______________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 
      )ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, by James P. 
Brown, as Mayor, and Jacque Danielsen, CMC, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
     ______________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for said State 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_______________________ 
 

-242-

Item G.2.e. 



 11

Exhibit “A” 
 

ORIGINAL PLAT CEDAR FALLS PART LOT 4 BLOCK 7 AND PART W 1/2 LOT 3 BLOCK 
7 AS DESCRIBED IN CITY LOT DEED BOOK 621 PAGE 361 
 

-243-

Item G.2.e. 



 12

Exhibit “B” 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR TENANT 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized 
by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurers shall issued from companies satisfactory to 
the City and have a rating of A- or better in the current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement. A copy of this endorsement 
is attached in Attachment 1. 
 
3.  Tenant shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for the coverage required in Attachment 1 and in this Lease.  Such Certificates 
shall include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Attachment 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Attachment 1 

 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of these 
requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the required 
insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Tenant to maintain the required insurance shall constitute a default 
under this agreement, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this agreement 
for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Tenant’s expense. 
 
 
 
    

-244-

Item G.2.e. 



 13

 
Attachment 1 – Insurance Schedule 

 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 

 
  
Automobile:            $1,000,000 (Combined Single Limit) 
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and 
hired vehicles. 
 
Standard Workers Compensation – with waiver of subrogation to the City of Cedar 
Falls 
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
  Each Accident             $500,000 
  Each Employee – Disease            $500,000 
  Policy Limit – Disease            $500,000 
 
Umbrella:                  $1,000,000 
 
The General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance requirements above may be 
satisfied with a combination of primary and Umbrella/Excess Insurance. The 
Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall also be written on a per occurrence basis and shall 
include the same endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their 
board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional Insureds, 
including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations 
CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any 
other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 
 

-245-

Item G.2.e. 



 14

Attachment 1 (continued) 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 
 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and 
states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity 
available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now 
exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental 
immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be 
amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any 
time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing 
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the defense of 
governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under 
this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits 
accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of governmental 
immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the 
defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise 
change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in 
coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall 
be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation 
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached. 
 

-246-

Item G.2.e. 



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations & Programs 

 DATE: May 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Updated Lease Agreement – Bennington Township Schoolhouse 

 
 In June 1998, the City Council entered into a lease agreement with the Historical 
Society to allow the Bennington Township Schoolhouse to remain on public property in 
Sturgis Park north of the 1st Street and Washington Street intersection. This structure is 
owned and maintained by the Historical Society after it was moved from Black Hawk 
Park in 1988. 
 Bennington Township School House #5 is representative of the more than 9,000 
rural schools that once dotted the state. This schoolhouse was built in 1909, replacing 
an older building. It originally stood in the center of Bennington Township, four miles 
east of U.S. Highway 63 on the Dunkerton Road (near St. John's Church). It was thus 
known as "Center School," and was used as the polling place for the township. The 
school features old desks, blackboards, books, a pot-bellied stove and other furnishings 
typical of the turn of the century. The building was purchased in 1966 for $1,000 and 
donated to the Black Hawk County Conservation Board. It was moved to Black Hawk 
Park in 1968 and given a new foundation and roof. Several local groups have 
undertaken restoration work, most notably the Cedar Falls teachers, who made the 
school house their Bicentennial project in 1976. The building was relocated to Sturgis 
Park in 1988 by the Cedar Falls Historical Society and is part of the museum complex. 
The building is open to the public from May to October. 
 Several areas of the original 1998 lease were amended to bring the language up 
to current legal standards. The “spirit” of the lease has not changed. It lays out rules, 
responsibilities and protections between the City and the Historical Society and was 
drafted to reflect the Ice House Lease that was adopted by the City Council in 2010. In 
order to align all ending dates for the three leases, it is proposed that the Bennington 
Township Schoolhouse lease expire at the same time as the Ice House Lease, which is 
December 31, 2034. 

The Department of Municipal Operations and Programs recommends that the 
revised lease with the Historical Society for the continued placement of the Bennington 
Township Schoolhouse on public property be approved. Feel free to contact me if you 
have questions or comments. 

-247-

Item G.2.f. 



 



LEASE AGREEMENT 
Bennington Township Schoolhouse 

 
 

 This Lease Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 
2018, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter called the "Landlord"), whose 
address for the purpose of this lease is c/o Cedar Falls City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa  50613, and Cedar Falls Historical Society (hereinafter called the "Tenant"), whose address 
for the purpose of this lease is Attn: Executive Director, 308 West Third Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa  50613. 
 
 WITNESSETH THAT: 
 
 1. Premises and Term.  In consideration of the agreements and conditions of the 
Tenant to be kept and performed as contained in this Lease Agreement, Landlord leases unto the 
Tenant and Tenant hereby rents and leases from Landlord, according to the terms and conditions 
of this Lease Agreement, the following described real estate, situated in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, to-wit: 
 

Those grounds adjacent thereto and surrounding the structure known as the Bennington 
Township Schoolhouse, situated in the vicinity of West First Street and Washington 
Street in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein, with the improvements thereon and all 
rights, easements and appurtenances belonging thereto (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Leased Premises”), 

 
for a term commencing at midnight of the day previous to the first day of the lease term, which 
shall be on the 1st day of June, 2018, and ending at midnight on the last day of the lease term, 
which shall be on the 31st day of December, 2034, upon the condition that the Tenant performs 
its agreements and obligations as provided in this Lease Agreement. 
 
 2. Rental.  As rental for said term, Tenant agrees to do the following: 
 

(a) Perform all of Tenant's obligations as described in this Lease Agreement; 
and 

 
(b) Pay for certain utilities and for insurance, as provided in paragraphs 6, 10, 

11, 12, and 13 of this Lease Agreement.  All sums payable to Landlord 
shall be paid at the address of Landlord designated above.  Delinquent 
payments shall draw interest at five (5) percent per annum from the date 
due until paid. 

 
 3. Possession.   Tenant shall be entitled to possession of the Leased Premises on the 
first day of the term of this lease, and shall yield possession to the Landlord at the time and date 
of the close of this lease term, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease Agreement.  
 

4. Use of Premises.  Tenant owns a structure known as the Bennington Township 
Schoolhouse and agrees during the term of this lease to use and to occupy the Leased Premises 
only for a museum which features a one room school house and artifacts as relate to the history 

-249-

Item G.2.f. 



 2

of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk County, Iowa, as Tenant deems appropriate.  Tenant specifically 
agrees not to use any portion of the building or grounds for private, commercial or profit-making 
uses or purposes.  If the Bennington Township Schoolhouse is sold, leased or otherwise 
conveyed by the Tenant, Tenant shall remove the building from the Leased Premise at Tenant’s 
cost within sixty (60) days of such conveyance.  
 
 
 5. Care and Maintenance of Premises.   
 

(a) Tenant takes the Leased Premises in their present condition without 
exceptions. 

 
(b) Tenant's Duty of Care and Maintenance.  Tenant shall continue to own the 

Bennington Township Schoolhouse and shall maintain the structure and 
Leased Premises in a reasonable safe, serviceable, clean and presentable 
condition throughout the term of the lease, and any extensions thereof. 
Tenant shall be solely responsible for the cost of care, maintenance and 
repair of the structure. 

 
(c) Landlord’s Duty of Care and Maintenance.  Landlord shall be responsible 

for care and maintenance of that portion of the Leased Premises 
surrounding and lying outside of the Bennington Township Schoolhouse 
building, including the public restrooms, mowing of the grounds adjacent 
to the building, removing ice and snow from the sidewalks and paved 
areas surrounding the building, and removing trash from the area of the 
Leased Premises surrounding the building. 

 
(d) Use of Premises.  Tenant shall make no unlawful use of the Leased 

Premises, and agrees to comply with all valid regulations of the Black 
Hawk County Board of Health, the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, and 
the laws, rules and regulations of the State of Iowa and the Federal 
government.   

 
(e) No Structural Alterations or Improvements.  Tenant shall make no 

structural alterations or improvements to the Leased Premises, or any 
portion thereof, without the prior written consent of the Landlord.  Such 
written consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  All costs for such 
improvements shall be provided and paid for by Tenant. 

 
 6. Utilities and Services.   
 

(a) Landlord shall pay the cost of any electric utilities used outside of the 
Bennington Township Schoolhouse building during the term of this Lease. 

 
(b) Tenant shall pay all charges for all other utilities, including all utilities 

-250-

Item G.2.f. 



 3

used in the Bennington Township Schoolhouse building during the term of 
this Lease.  Tenant shall provide and pay for janitor services, as needed, 
for the Bennington Township Schoolhouse building. 

 
(c) Landlord shall provide refuse receptacles or dumpsters at a location on or 

near the Leased Premises, for the use of Tenant, and agrees to arrange for 
pickup and removal of such refuse from the receptacles or dumpsters at 
Tenant's expense. 

 
7. Surrender of Leased Premises. 
 

(a)  Tenant agrees that upon the termination of this lease, it will surrender, 
yield up and deliver the Leased Premises in good and clean condition, 
except the effects of ordinary wear and tear and depreciation arising from 
lapse of time, or damage without fault or liability of Tenant.  Tenant shall 
remove, at Tenants cost, the Bennington Township Schoolhouse within 
sixty (60) days after termination of this lease for any reason. Such removal 
shall include any fixtures or equipment installed by Tenant. Tenant shall 
pay the cost or repair of any damage to the Leased premises caused by 
such removal. 

 
(b) Holding Over.  Continued possession beyond the expiration date of the 

term of this lease by the Tenant, coupled with the receipt of the specified 
rental by the Landlord, and absent a written agreement by both parties for 
an extension of this lease, or for a new lease, shall constitute a month-to-
month extension of this lease, terminable upon thirty (30) days' written 
notice by either party. 

 
 8. Assignment and Subletting.  Any assignment of this lease or subletting of the 
Leased Premises, or any part thereof, by Tenant without the prior express written permission of 
Landlord shall, at the option of Landlord, cause an immediate termination of this lease.  Such 
written permission may be withheld in Landlord’s sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 9. Taxes.   
 

(a) Real Estate Taxes.  At the present time, the Leased Premises are not 
assessed for general property tax purposes and are exempt from taxation 
by reason of public ownership by Landlord.  If at any time during the term 
of this lease the Leased Premises become subject to levy or assessment by 
lawful authority for general property taxes, Tenant agrees to timely pay 
that portion of such general property taxes which is properly allocable to 
the Bennington Township Schoolhouse building portion of the Leased 
Premises and any improvements hereafter located on the Leased Premises. 

 
(b) Personal Property Taxes.  Tenant agrees to timely pay all taxes, 

-251-

Item G.2.f. 



 4

assessments or other public charges levied or assessed by lawful authority 
against its personal property kept on the Leased Premises during the term 
of this Lease Agreement. 

 
(c) Special Assessments.  In the event there are special assessments levied or 

assessed against the real estate of which the Leased Premises is a part by 
lawful authority during the term of this lease, Tenant agrees to timely pay 
that portion of such special assessments properly allocable to the 
Bennington Township Schoolhouse building portion of the Leased 
Premises and any improvements hereafter located on the Leased Premises. 

 
 10. Insurance.   
 

(a) Property Insurance.  Tenant shall insure its property located on the Leased 
premises for the full insurable value. Such insurance shall cover losses 
included in the Insurance Services Office Broad Form Causes of Loss 
(formerly fire and extended coverage).  To the extent permitted by their 
policies, the Landlord and Tenant waive all rights of recovery against each 
other. 

 
(b) Liability Insurance.  Tenant shall obtain and maintain commercial general 

liability insurance covering the Leased Premises in the amounts of 
$1,000,000.00 each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 annual aggregate per 
location.  Such policy shall include liability arising from premises 
operations, independent contractors, personal injury, products and 
completed operations and liability assumed under an insured contract.  
This policy shall be endorsed to include the Landlord as an additional 
insured and shall obtain governmental immunities endorsement. 

 
(c) Landlord Liability Insurance.  Landlord will maintain liability insurance 

with respect to the Leased Premises outside the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station 
Building in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls general liability 
policy.  Such insurance shall be secondary to Tenant’s general liability 
insurance required in Paragraph 10(b) above.  

 
(d) Acts by Tenant.  Tenant will not do or omit doing any act which would 

invalidate any insurance, or increase the insurance rates in force on the 
premises. 

 
(e) Increased Risks or Hazards.  Tenant further agrees to be liable for and to 

promptly pay, as if current rental, any increase in insurance rates on said 
premises and on the building of which said premises are a part, due to 
increased risks or hazards resulting from Tenant’s use of the premises 
otherwise than as herein contemplated and agreed. 

 

-252-

Item G.2.f. 



 5

(f) Landlord and Tenant shall each provide a copy of this lease to their 
respective insurers. 

 
(g) Tenant shall comply with all of the insurance requirements set forth on 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto, and by this reference made a part of this 
Lease. 

 
 11. Indemnity and Liability Insurance.  Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless Landlord, and its employees and agents, from and against any and all actions or causes 
of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense of whatever kind or 
nature, alleged or claimed to have been caused by, occasioned by, or to have arisen out of or in 
connection with, any accident or occurrence causing or inflicting injuries to or the death of any 
person or persons, or damage to or loss of any property, including damage by fire to the 
Bennington Township Schoolhouse building which is located on the Leased Premises, happening 
or done, in, upon, or about the Leased Premises, or due directly or indirectly to the tenancy, use 
or occupancy thereof, or any part thereof, by the Tenant or any person claiming through or under 
the Tenant on or about the Leased Premises.  
 

12. Liability for Damage.  Each party shall be liable to the other for all damage to the 
property of the other negligently, recklessly or intentionally caused by that party (or their agents, 
employees or invitees), except to the extent the loss is insured and subrogation is waived under 
the owner’s policy. 

 
13. Fire and Casualty. 
 

(a) Partial Destruction of Premises.  In the event of a partial destruction or 
damage of the premises, which is a business interference which prevents 
the conducting of a normal business operation and which damage is 
reasonably repairable within sixty (60) days after its occurrences, this lease 
shall not terminate but the rent for the premises shall abate during the time 
of such business interference.  In the event of a partial destruction, 
Landlord shall repair such damages within 60 days of its occurrence unless 
prevented from so doing by acts of God, government regulations, or other 
causes beyond Landlord’s reasonable control. 

 
(b) Zoning.  Should the zoning ordinance of the municipality in which this 

property is located make it impossible for Landlord to repair or rebuild so 
that Tenant is not able to conduct its business on these premises, then such 
partial destruction shall be treated as a total destruction as provided in the 
next paragraph. 

 
(c) Total Destruction of Business Use.  In the event of a destruction or 

damage of the Leased Premises, including the parking area, so that Tenant 
is not able to conduct its business on the premises or the then current legal 
use for which the premises are being used and which damages cannot be 

-253-

Item G.2.f. 



 6

repaired within sixty (60) days, this lease may be terminated at the option 
of either the Landlord or Tenant.  Such termination in such event shall be 
effected by written notice of one party to the other, within twenty (20) days 
after such destruction.  Tenant shall surrender possession within sixty (60) 
days after such notice issues and each party shall be released from all 
future obligations, and Tenant shall pay rent pro rata only to the date of 
such destruction.  In the event of such termination of this lease, Landlord 
at its option, may rebuild or not, at its discretion. 

 
 14. Condemnation.   
 

(a) Disposition of Awards.  Should the whole or any part of the Leased 
Premises be condemned or taken for any public or quasi-public use or 
purpose, each party shall be entitled to retain, as its own property, any 
award payable to it.  In the event that a single entire award is made on 
account of the condemnation, each party will then be entitled to take such 
proportion of said award as may be fair and reasonable. 

 
(b) Date of Lease Termination.  If the whole of the Leased Premises shall be 

so condemned or taken, the Landlord shall not be liable to the Tenant 
except and as its rights are preserved in the previous subparagraph. 

 
15. Default, Notice of Default and Remedies. 

 
Events of Default 

 
(a) Each of the following shall constitute an event of default by Tenant: 
 

1. Failure to observe or perform any duties, obligations, agreements 
or conditions imposed on Tenant pursuant to the terms of the lease. 

 
2. Abandonment of the premises, “Abandonment” means the Tenant 

has failed to engage in its usual and customary business activities 
on the premises for more than fifteen (15) consecutive business 
days, except for normal wintertime facility closure. 

 
3. Institution of voluntary bankruptcy proceedings by Tenant; 

institution of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings in which the 
Court orders relief against the Tenant as a debtor; assignment for 
the benefit of creditors of the interest of Tenant under this lease 
agreement; appointment of a receiver for the property or affairs of 
Tenant, where the receivership is not vacated within ten (10) days 
after the appointment of the receiver. 

 
 

-254-

Item G.2.f. 



 7

Notice of Default 
 

(b) Landlord shall give Tenant a written notice specifying the default and 
giving the Tenant ten (10) days in which to correct the default.  If there is a 
default (other than for nonpayment of a monetary obligation of Tenant, 
including rent) that cannot be remedied in ten (10) days by diligent efforts 
of the Tenant, Tenant shall propose an additional period of time in which 
to remedy he default.  Consent to additional time shall not be unreasonably 
withheld by Landlord.  Landlord shall not be required to give Tenant any 
more than three notices for the same default within any 365-day period. 

 
Remedies 

 
(c) In the event Tenant has not remedied a default in a timely manner 

following a Notice of Default, Landlord may proceed with all available 
remedies at law or in equity, including but not limited to the following: 

 
1. Termination.  Landlord may declare this lease to be terminated and 

shall give Tenant a written notice of such termination.  In the event 
of termination of this lease, Landlord shall be entitled to prove 
claim for and obtain judgment against Tenant for the balance of the 
rent agreed to be paid for the term herein provided, plus all 
expenses of Landlord in regaining possession of the premises and 
the reletting thereof, including attorney’s fees and court costs, 
crediting against such claim, however, any amount obtained by 
reason of reletting. 

 
2. Forfeiture.  If a default is not remedied in a timely manner, 

Landlord may then declare that this lease to be forfeited and shall 
give Tenant a written notice of such forfeiture, and may, at the 
time, give Tenant the notice to quit provided for in Chapter 648 of 
the  Code of Iowa. 

 
 16. Right of Either Party to Make Good Any Default of the Other.  If default shall be 
made by either party in the performance of, or compliance with, any of the terms, covenants or 
conditions of this lease, and such default shall have continued for thirty (30) days after written 
notice thereof from one party to the other, the party aggrieved, in addition to all other remedies 
now or hereafter provided by law, may, but need not, perform any such term, covenant or 
condition, or make good such default, and any amount advanced shall be repaid forthwith on 
demand, together with interest at the rate of five (5) percent per annum, from date of advance.  
 
 17. Signs.  Tenant shall have the right and privilege of attaching, affixing, painting or 
exhibiting signs on the Leased Premises, provided only (1) that any sign shall comply with the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the laws of the State of Iowa; and (2) 
such sign shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Landlord, which approval shall not 

-255-

Item G.2.f. 



 8

be unreasonably withheld.   
 
 18. Mechanic's Liens.  Neither the Tenant nor anyone claiming by, through, or under 
the Tenant, shall have the right to file or place any mechanic's lien or other lien of any kind or 
character whatsoever, upon the Leased Premises or upon any building or improvement located 
thereon, or upon the leasehold interest of the Tenant therein, and notice is hereby given that no 
contractor, subcontractor, or anyone else who may furnish any material, service or labor for any 
building, improvements, alteration, repairs or any part thereof, shall at any time be or become 
entitled to any lien thereon, and for the further security of the Landlord, the Tenant covenants and 
agrees to give actual notice thereof in advance, to any and all contractors and subcontractors who 
may furnish or agree to furnish any such material, service or labor. 
 
 19. Landlord's Lien and Security Interest.  Landlord shall have, in addition to the lien 
given by law, a security interest as provided by the Uniform Commercial Code of Iowa, upon all 
personal property and all substitutions therefor, kept and used on the Leased Premises by Tenant.  
Landlord may proceed at law or in equity with any remedy provided by law or by this Lease 
Agreement for the recovery of rent, or for termination of this Lease Agreement because of 
Tenant's default in its performance. 
 
 20. Substitution of Personal Property.  Tenant shall have the right, from time to time, 
during the term of this lease, or the renewal thereof, to sell or otherwise dispose of any personal 
property of the Tenant situated on the Leased Premises, when in the judgment of the Tenant it 
shall have become obsolete or unnecessary in connection with Tenant's affairs conducted on the 
Leased Premises.  
 
 21. Additional Covenants of Tenant.  During the entire term of this lease, and any 
renewal thereof, Tenant agrees to abide by each and every one of the following covenants and 
provisions: 
 

(a) Tenant agrees to immediately vacate the Leased Premises when advised by 
Landlord of the need to vacate the premises by reason of flood or potential 
flood, natural disaster, or any other reason involving public health, safety 
or welfare, after being notified to vacate by Landlord.  Tenant agrees to 
take immediate action to cause all persons occupying the Leased Premises 
to vacate the premises immediately upon being informed thereof by 
Landlord.  Such determination shall be made either by the City Police 
Chief, City Fire Chief, or the City Director of Municipal Operations & 
Programs, or their designees.  There shall be no abatement of rent or any 
other compensation to Tenant arising out of the vacation of the Leased 
Premises by reason of any such emergency. 

 
(b) Tenant agrees to allow Landlord to inspect the Leased Premises, including 

the Tenant owned Bennington Township Schoolhouse building, at any 
time upon reasonable notice thereof. 

 

-256-

Item G.2.f. 



 9

(c) Tenant agrees to be responsible for acquiring any necessary permits or 
approvals from any governmental authorities for the use of the Leased 
Premises, including, but not limited to, the Black Hawk County Health 
Department, Iowa Department of Natural Resources, U. S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, and the like. 

 
22. Previous Lease Superseded.  The parties mutually agree that the terms and 

conditions of this Lease Agreement supersede and replace any and all lease agreements between 
the Landlord and Tenant regarding the Bennington Township Schoolhouse and that any and all 
leases are hereby canceled, rescinded and held for naught. 

 
23. Rights Cumulative.  The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies 

of either party, provided in this lease, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them as 
exclusive of the others, or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed either party by 
law, and shall in no way affect or impair the right of either party to pursue any other equitable or 
legal remedy to which either party may be entitled as long as any default remains in any way 
unremedied, unsatisfied or undischarged. 

 
24. Notices and Demands.  Notices as provided for in this lease shall be given to the 

respective parties hereto at the respective addresses designated on page one of this lease unless 
either party notifies the other, in writing, of a different address.  Without prejudice to any other 
method of notifying a party in writing or making a demand or other communication, such 
message shall be considered given under the terms of this lease when sent, addressed as above 
designated, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, by the 
United States Mail and so deposited in a United States mail box. 

 
25. Provisions to Bind and Benefit Successors and Assigns.  Each and every covenant 

and agreement herein contained shall extend to and be binding upon the respective successors 
and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
26. Changes to be in Writing.  None of the covenants, provisions, terms or conditions 

of this lease to be kept or performed by Landlord or Tenant shall be in any manner modified, 
waived or abandoned, except by a written instrument duly signed by the parties and delivered to 
the Landlord and Tenant.  This lease contains the whole agreement of the parties. 

 

-257-

Item G.2.f. 



 10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease Agreement 
effective on the date stated above. 

 
CEDAR FALLS HISTORICAL SOCIETY  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By________________________________  By_______________________________ 

Dr. Roger Kueter, President    James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
By________________________________  ATTEST: 
 Jerald Lukensmeyer, Secretary 
       __________________________________ 
        Jacque Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, by Dr. 
Roger Kueter and Jerald Lukensmeyer, as President and Secretary, respectively, of Cedar Falls 
Historical Society. 
 
     ______________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for said State 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_______________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 
      )ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018, by James P. 
Brown, as Mayor, and Jacque Danielsen, CMC, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
     ______________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for said State 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_______________________ 
 

-258-

Item G.2.f. 



 11

Exhibit “A” 
 

 ORIGINAL PLAT CEDAR FALLS W 22 FT LOT 3 BLK 6 & VAC STREET & LOT 
1,2 & E 1/2 LOT 3 BLK 7 EXC THAT PART IN PARCEL F (SURVEY 2013 002681) DESC 
AS PART LOT 2 AUDITORS MILL COMPANY PLAT & PART LOTS 1,2 & 3 BLK 6 
ORIGINAL PLAT CEDAR FALLS & PART OF ALLEY BETWEEN LOTS 1 & 2 BLK 6 
ORIGINAL PLAT DESC AS COM AT NW COR LOT 4 AUDITORS MILL COMPANY PLAT 
TH S 64 DEG 20 MIN 5 SEC E ON NELY LINE LOT 4 166.27 FT (166 FT REC) TO NE COR 
LOT 4 TH N 54 DEG 28 MIN 28 SEC E 13.77 FT (13.70 FT REC) TO SELY LINE OF 
PARCEL IN DOC 2010 016638 BEING PT OF BEG TH N 26 DEG 5 MIN 9 SEC E ON SELY 
LINE 31.36 FT TH S 45 DEG 58 MIN 5 SEC E 35.62 FT TH S 59 DEG 4 MIN 54 SEC E 81.35 
FT TH S 27 DEG 51 MIN 10 SEC E 33.03 FT TH SLY ON 252.76 FT RADIUS CURVE 
CONCAVE ELY & HAVING 97.13 FT LONG CHORD BEARING S 13 DEG 20 MIN 15 SEC 
W 97.74 FT TH SWLY ON 47 FT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NWLY & HAVING A 63.88 
FT LONG CHORD BEARING S 45 DEG 4 MIN 17 SEC W 70.24 FT TH S 87 DEG 52 MIN 58 
SEC W 221.02 FT TO W LINE LOT 3 BLK 6 ORIGINAL PLAT CEDAR FALLS TH N 1 DEG 
6 MIN 31 SEC W ON W LINE 88.97 FT TO NW COR LOT 3 BLK 6 ORIGINAL PLAT 
CEDAR FALLS TH N 70 DEG 47 MIN 35 SEC W ON NELY LINE ORIGINAL PLAT 
CEDAR FALLS 145.95 FT TH N 62 DEG 24 MIN 55 SEC E 60.81 FT TO SWLY LINE OF 
PARCEL DOC 2010 016638 TH S 66 DEG 51 MIN 58 SEC E ON SWLY LINE 202.15 FT TO 
SELY LINE OF PARCEL IN DOC 2010 16638 TH N 26 DEG 8 MIN 17 SEC E ON SELY 
LINE 144.45 FT TO PT OF BEG EXC R R & EXC HWY B 501 P 370 
 

-259-

Item G.2.f. 



 12

Exhibit “B” 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR TENANT 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized 
by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurers shall issued from companies satisfactory to 
the City and have a rating of A- or better in the current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement. A copy of this endorsement 
is attached in Attachment 1. 
 
3.  Tenant shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for the coverage required in Attachment 1 and in this Lease.  Such Certificates 
shall include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Attachment 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Attachment 1 

 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of these 
requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the required 
insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Tenant to maintain the required insurance shall constitute a default 
under this agreement, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this agreement 
for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Tenant’s expense. 
 
 
 
    

-260-

Item G.2.f. 



 13

 
Attachment 1 – Insurance Schedule 

 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 

 
  
Automobile:            $1,000,000 (Combined Single Limit) 
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and 
hired vehicles. 
 
Standard Workers Compensation – with waiver of subrogation to the City of Cedar 
Falls 
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
  Each Accident             $500,000 
  Each Employee – Disease            $500,000 
  Policy Limit – Disease            $500,000 
 
Umbrella:                  $1,000,000 
 
The General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance requirements above may be 
satisfied with a combination of primary and Umbrella/Excess Insurance. The 
Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall also be written on a per occurrence basis and shall 
include the same endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their 
board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional Insureds, 
including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations 
CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any 
other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 
 

-261-

Item G.2.f. 



 14

Attachment 1 (continued) 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 
 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and 
states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity 
available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now 
exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental 
immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be 
amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any 
time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing 
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the defense of 
governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under 
this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits 
accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of governmental 
immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the 
defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise 
change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in 
coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall 
be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation 
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached. 
 

-262-

Item G.2.f. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 16, 2018 
 
 RE: Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
  Project No. RT-000-3107 
  Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(651)—8I-07 
  Bid Opening Approval 
 
On May 15th, 2018 at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened by the Iowa 
Department of Transportation for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. A total of 
5 bids were received, with K. Cunningham Construction Inc. submitting the apparent low 
bid: 
 

 Bid Total 

K. Cunningham Construction, Inc. $457,535.03  

Lodge Construction, Inc. $499,525.10  

Vieth Construction Corporation $510,820.27  

Midwest Concrete, Inc. $575,718.80  

Peterson Contractors Inc.  $596.154.70  

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was originally $531,283.67. K. Cunningham 
Construction Inc. bid of $457,535.03 is 13.8% below the Engineer's Estimate.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the apparent low bid from K. Cunningham Construction 
Inc. in the amount of $457,535.03 subject to the recommendation of the Iowa 
Department of Transportation. On June 4, 2018, the Contract, Bond and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-263-

Item G.2.g. 



 



Letting ID:
Cut-Off Time:

Apparent Bids for Proposal 07-1185-651

PCC SIDEWALK/TRAIL

18/05/15
10:00:59 AM

Bidder Name DBE Bid Amount
CUNNINGHAM, K. CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 1.99% $457,535.03

LODGE CONSTRUCTION INC. 2.15% $499,525.10

VIETH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 2.00% $510,820.27

MIDWEST CONCRETE, INC. 2.86% $575,718.80

PETERSON CONTRACTORS INC. 2.01% $596,154.70

(5 Apparent Bids)

Letting of 05/15/2018 IADOT Apparent Bids

IADOT Page 1 of 1

-265-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 14, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Campus Street Box Culvert Replacement Project 
  Project No. BR-101-3043 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors Inc. for the construction of the Campus Street Box Culvert Replacement 
Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Peterson Contractors Inc. for the construction of the Campus Street Box 
Culvert Replacement Project. This project involves the removal of existing bridge 
structure, placement of new double cell 14’ x 6’ precast RCB culvert, creek channel 
excavation, erosion control measures, and reconstruction of portions of one (1) City 
Street.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 
 
 

-267-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-269-

Item G.2.h. 



-270-

Item G.2.h. 



-271-

Item G.2.h. 



-272-

Item G.2.h. 



-273-

Item G.2.h. 



-274-

Item G.2.h. 



-275-

Item G.2.h. 



-276-

Item G.2.h. 



-277-

Item G.2.h. 



-278-

Item G.2.h. 



-279-

Item G.2.h. 



-280-

Item G.2.h. 



-281-

Item G.2.h. 



-282-

Item G.2.h. 



-283-

Item G.2.h. 



-284-

Item G.2.h. 



-285-

Item G.2.h. 



-286-

Item G.2.h. 



-287-

Item G.2.h. 



-288-

Item G.2.h. 



-289-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-291-

Item G.2.h. 



-292-

Item G.2.h. 



-293-

Item G.2.h. 



-294-

Item G.2.h. 



-295-

Item G.2.h. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 16, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Permeable Alley Project 
  ST-105-3094 
  Contract Documents 
 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Benton’s 
Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2018 Permeable Alley Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Benton’s Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2018 Permeable 
Alley Project. This project involves the construction of a permeable alley from Franklin 
Street to Tremont Street between W. 15st Street and West 16th Street. The purpose of 
these permeable alleys is to infiltrate storm water runoff with the goal of improving the 
water quality in Dry Run Creek. 
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-297-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-299-

Item G.2.i. 



-300-

Item G.2.i. 



-301-

Item G.2.i. 



-302-

Item G.2.i. 



-303-

Item G.2.i. 



-304-

Item G.2.i. 



-305-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-307-

Item G.2.i. 



-308-

Item G.2.i. 



-309-

Item G.2.i. 



-310-

Item G.2.i. 



-311-

Item G.2.i. 



-312-

Item G.2.i. 



-313-

Item G.2.i. 



-314-

Item G.2.i. 



-315-

Item G.2.i. 



-316-

Item G.2.i. 



-317-

Item G.2.i. 



-318-

Item G.2.i. 



-319-

Item G.2.i. 



-320-

Item G.2.i. 



-321-

Item G.2.i. 



-322-

Item G.2.i. 



-323-

Item G.2.i. 



-324-

Item G.2.i. 



-325-

Item G.2.i. 



-326-

Item G.2.i. 



-327-

Item G.2.i. 



-328-

Item G.2.i. 



-329-

Item G.2.i. 



-330-

Item G.2.i. 



-331-

Item G.2.i. 



-332-

Item G.2.i. 



-333-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-335-

Item G.2.i. 



-336-

Item G.2.i. 



-337-

Item G.2.i. 



-338-

Item G.2.i. 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: May 17, 2018 

 SUBJECT: CDBG – Rehabilitation Projects – Bid Opening 
  1024 West 2nd Street – Project No. 1-18-662 
  1622 Clay Street – Project No. 1-18-663 
 

Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds that supports several programs, including housing rehabilitations or housing 
repairs for income-qualifying residents. 
 
In early May, 2018 two rehabilitation projects were bid for 1024 W 2nd Street and 1622 
Clay Street. The owners of these properties, Sara Syhlman and Yvonne Phillips 
respectively, both meet the program’s income requirements. These rehabilitation 
projects will significantly improve the living conditions of the applicants and bring the 
homes to code compliance. On Thursday May 17th, 2018 at 9AM bids were received 
and opened for the two rehabilitation projects, with the low bids from Kirvan Enterprises 
for both properties:  
 

1024 W 2nd Street 
Bid Total 

To Jo Construction $23,090 
Brothers Construction $24,890 
Kirvan Enterprises $17,400 

 

1622 Clay Street 
Bid Total 

Brothers Construction $18,276 
Kirvan Enterprises $15,950 

 
The Building Official's estimate for the project at 1024 W 2nd Street was $22,525 and 
$16,050 for the project at 1622 Clay Street. These estimates included both rehabilitation 
hard costs (no more than $20,000 per home) and lead hazard reduction costs. Kirvan 
Enterprises submitted the low bids in the amounts of $17,400 and $15,950 for 1024 W 
2nd Street and 1622 Clay Street respectively. 

-339-

Item G.2.j. 



 

 

 
As a result of the competitive bids, we recommend acceptance of the low bid(s) and 
entering into contracts, attached, with Kirvan Enterprises in the amounts of $17,400 and 
$15,950.  
 
Please contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 
 
XC: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 

-340-

Item G.2.j. 



-341-

Item G.2.j. 



-342-

Item G.2.j. 



-343-

Item G.2.j. 



-344-

Item G.2.j. 



-345-

Item G.2.j. 



-346-

Item G.2.j. 



-347-

Item G.2.j. 



-348-

Item G.2.j. 



-349-

Item G.2.j. 



-350-

Item G.2.j. 



-351-

Item G.2.j. 



-352-

Item G.2.j. 



-353-

Item G.2.j. 



-354-

Item G.2.j. 



-355-

Item G.2.j. 



-356-

Item G.2.j. 



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division wwww Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division wwww Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 
Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
 
 DATE: May 15, 2018  
 
 SUBJECT: Certified Local Government Grant Project Subcontract 
  
                       
In January 2018 City Council accepted a $5,000 grant from the State Historical Society 
of Iowa for the City of Cedar Falls’ Historic Preservation Commission to hire a 
professional to prepare a nomination for the Wild Historic District to the National 
Register of Historic Places. The proposed Wild Historic District is comprised of 423, 
501, and 509 W 1st Street. These three homes were determined by an IDOT 
Environmental Report to be eligible to the National Register because of their connection 
to Daniel and Margaret Wild. If the nomination is successful, this would be the first 
recognized residential historic district in the City of Cedar Falls. The designation would 
also provide the opportunity for property owners within the district to apply for tax credits 
for rehabilitation projects. 
 
RFPs were sent out in February and at the April 11th Historic Preservation Commission 
meeting the Commission reviewed the submitted proposals and selected Tallgrass 
Archaeology LLC as the consultant to prepare the nomination. In order to permit the 
consultant to start working on the nomination, Council must first approve the attached 
subcontract.  
 
The process of nominating a district involves research and compiling a Federally-
compliant proposal.  Once the proposal is done, several public meetings are required in 
order for it to proceed, including at least one open house. The nomination is also 
reviewed and approved by the Historic Preservation Commission.  Following the 
Historic Preservation Commission’s approval, the completed proposal will be presented 
to City Council for consideration. At that point the nomination moves on for additional 
State and Federal reviews.   
 
The Community Development Department recommends that City Council adopt the 
following: 

-357-

Item G.2.k. 



1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the Subcontract for Consulting 
Services between the City of Cedar Falls and Tallgrass Archaeology LLC. 

 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  
 
XC: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Julie Etheredge, Chair, Historic Preservation Commission       
   

-358-

Item G.2.k. 



1 
Cedar Falls CLG Consultant Subcontract 
 

SUBCONTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
THIS SUBCONTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES is entered into effective as of 
this ____ day of __________, 2018, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“CITY”), and the Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”), collectively 
referred to herein as the CLIENT, and Tallgrass Archaeology LLC, hereinafter referred 
to as the CONSULTANT; 
 
WHEREAS, CITY and HPC, collectively, the CLIENT, desire to contract for consulting 
services with CONSULTANT, for preparation of all documentation necessary to seek a 
nomination of the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic Places; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Wild Historic District is defined as the area encompassing the three 
residential properties at 423 W 1st Street, 501 W 1st Street, and 509 W 1st Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, CLIENT and CONSULTANT have reached agreement upon the terms and 
conditions of the consulting services for this project, and desire to reduce their 
agreement to writing in the form of a Subcontract for Consulting Services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. CITY and HPC, collectively the CLIENT, hereby retain CONSULTANT, and 
CONSULTANT agrees to Subcontract with CLIENT, in order to accomplish the 
objective of nominating the Wild Historic District to the National Register of 
Historic Places. 

 
2. For consulting services under this Subcontract, the CITY shall pay the 

CONSULTANT an amount not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) for all 
services, and reimbursement of all necessary expenses, as described in this 
Subcontract (hereinafter the “Subcontract Amount”). The CONSULTANT shall 
be paid on the basis of tasks completed, which tasks are listed in the Scope of 
Work, a copy of which is attached, marked Attachment A. The CITY agrees to 
make periodic payments to the CONSULTANT for such services, within thirty 
(30) days of the receipt of invoices which document completion of tasks within 
the Scope of Work.  

 
3. The CONSULTANT shall submit invoices for approval to the Project Director 

listed below: 
 

Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 

Such invoices shall be forwarded by the Project Director to the CITY, with a 
recommendation for approval or for modification.  

 

-359-

Item G.2.k. 



2 
Cedar Falls CLG Consultant Subcontract 
 

4. The CONSULTANT shall not incur expenses in an amount in excess of the 
Subcontract Amount stated in Paragraph 2 without the prior written approval of 
the CITY, which approval the CITY may grant or deny in its sole and absolute 
discretion. 

 
5. HPC shall provide all volunteers necessary and appropriate to undertake and 

complete the research, photography, and all other tasks described in the Scope 
of Work that are determined by the CONSULTANT to be necessary for the 
preparation of said nomination. Such volunteers will be provided at no expense 
to the CITY or to the CONSULTANT.  

 
6. The CONSULTANT shall complete the tasks as specified in the Scope of Work 

(Attachment A) and in accordance with the Project Schedule, a copy of which is 
attached hereto, marked Attachment B, including but not limited to the 
following: 

 
a. The CONSULTANT shall train the volunteers in the proper techniques for 

research, photography and other tasks determined by the CONSULTANT.  
 

b. The CONSULTANT shall also periodically review the work product 
produced by the volunteers to determine its quality, and the CONSULTANT 
shall conduct additional training of the volunteers as necessary to maintain 
the quality of their work product as required by the Grant-in Aid Agreement, 
a copy of which is attached hereto, marked Attachment C.  

 
c. The CONSULTANT shall prepare the necessary paperwork to nominate 

the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic Places as 
required by the Scope of Work and the Grant-in-Aid Agreement, and in 
accordance with the Project Schedule. 

 
7. The terms of this Subcontract shall commence upon approval of this 

Subcontract by the City Council of CITY, and execution of the Subcontract by 
the Mayor and City Clerk of the CITY, and by CONSULTANT, and shall 
terminate on September 1st, 2019, and upon completion of performance of all 
services as described in this Subcontract, the Scope of Work, and the Grant-in-
Aid Agreement. 

 
8. The CITY may terminate this Subcontract for any or no reason and at any time 

by giving notice by certified mail to the CONSULTANT at the following address: 
 
  Tallgrass Archaeology LLC 
  2460 S. Riverside Drive 
  Iowa City, IA 52246 
 

In that event, copies of notes and electronic word files of written documents, 
and other materials pertinent to completion of the project shall be delivered to 
the CLIENT or their representatives within a reasonable time following the 

-360-

Item G.2.k. 



3 
Cedar Falls CLG Consultant Subcontract 
 

giving of such notice.  Equitable adjustment shall be made for all work 
completed prior to the date of notice of termination. Such equitable adjustment 
shall be based upon the completion and submittal of work described in the 
Scope of Work. 
 

9. The CONSULTANT may terminate this Subcontract at any time by giving notice 
by certified mail to the CLIENT at the following address: 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
In that event, copies of notes and electronic word files of written documents, and 
other materials pertinent to completion of the project shall be delivered to the 
CLIENT or their representatives within a reasonable time following the giving of 
such notice.   Equitable adjustment shall be made for all work completed prior to 
the date of notice of termination. Such equitable adjustment shall be based upon 
the completion and submittal of work described in the Scope of Work. 
 

10. All materials, documentation, and information collected and produced under 
this Subcontract shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the 
CITY and HPC, and may not be used by the CONSULTANT without prior 
written consent of the CITY, which consent may be withheld in the sole 
discretion of the CITY and/or HPC. 

 
11. The provisions of the document entitled, “Insurance Requirements for 

Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls,” dated February 7, 2015, a copy of 
which is attached hereto, marked Exhibit D, are hereby made a part of this 
Subcontract as if set out word for word herein. 

 
CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that 
meet the provisions set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for 
the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto and marked Exhibit D.  

 
 CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance 

containing all coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by 
Exhibit D. 

 
12. The provisions of the documents entitled, “Standard Terms and Conditions for 

Contracts Between Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the 
City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of three pages, are incorporated into this 
Subcontract by the Client and a copy of which is attached as Exhibit E. In the 
event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit E and the other terms of 
this Subcontract, the terms of Exhibit E shall control. 

 
13. If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, this Subcontract and if the dispute 

cannot be settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT 

-361-

Item G.2.k. 



4 
Cedar Falls CLG Consultant Subcontract 
 

agree to submit the dispute to mediation. In the event either CONSULTANT or 
the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall notify the other 
party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable 
to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such 
dispute shall be submitted for non-binding mediation in accordance with the 
procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect. The 
expenses of the mediator shall be shared by 50 percent by CONSULTANT and 
50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a 
condition required before filling an action at law or in equity.  

 
 This Subcontract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any 

action at law or other judicial proceeding arising from this Subcontract shall be 
instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
14. The CONSULTANT'S obligations and duties under this Subcontract shall not 

be assigned without the recommendation of HPC and the approval of the CITY.  
Such approval may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the CITY. 
 
Furthermore, the CITY shall indemnify and hold harmless the CONSULTANT 
for any injury or damage caused by the acts or omissions of the CITY, HPC, or 
its employees or agents.  

 
15. In performing the functions set forth in this Subcontract, it is understood and 

agreed that the CONSULTANT is an independent contractor, and not an 
employee of the CITY or of HPC, and that all work performed hereunder shall 
be conducted in a professional and satisfactory manner. Furthermore, the 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the CITY and HPC for any 
injury or damage caused by the acts or omissions of the CONSULTANT or its 
employees or agents. 

 
16. This certification is required by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. The 

CONSULTANT certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief that: 
 

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 
behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
any officer or employee of Congress, or any employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement. 
 

b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

-362-

Item G.2.k. 



5 
Cedar Falls CLG Consultant Subcontract 
 

connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative 
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form 
1963 “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 
 

c. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including 
subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify 
accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS SUBCONTRACT TO 
BE EXECUTED ON THE DATE FIRST STATED ABOVE. 
 
 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
CITY 
 
  
By: ________________________________ 
 Julie Etheredge, HPC Chair  
HPC 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Leah D. Rogers, Project Manager, Tallgrass Archaeology LLC 
CONSULTANT 

-363-

Item G.2.k. 



 



Attachment A – Scope of Work 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
In order to accomplish the nomination of the district to the National Register of Historic 
Places, the Historic Preservation Commission seeks to secure the assistance of a 
historic preservation consultant to conduct the nomination work, including: 

• Review of the Intensive Survey and Evaluation of the Wild District 
• Complete district nomination packet 
• Public presentation of nomination 
• Meeting with individual property owners to assure understanding of the 

benefits of being listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 

While the consultant will complete the necessary work for the district nomination, 
Historic Preservation Commissioners, City staff, and volunteers will assist the consultant 
as necessary and will lead public outreach and education efforts. 
 
PRODUCTS 
The consultant hired for this project will deliver the following products: 

• Two copies of project design, activities, and schedule.  
• Copies of draft National Register nomination forms, including appropriate 

maps on continuation sheets, as currently required by the National Park 
Service. This may include copies on archival quality compact disks as well as 
copies printed on archival paper.  

• A digital copy of the final National Register nomination form and continuation 
sheets for City of Cedar Falls files. City to print as needed for review. 

• Topographical map (or maps) as required by the National Park Service.  
• Finished sets of photographs adequately representing the district and the 

structures within the district. Photographs, whether printed or digital, shall 
meet national nomination standards and shall be provided in the quantities 
required.  

The following acknowledgments will be included in all work products created as part of 
this grant:  
 

"The activity that is the subject of a National Register nomination has been 
financed in part with Federal funds from the National Park Service, U.S. 
Department of the Interior.  However, the contents and opinions do not 
necessarily reflect the view or policies of the Department of the Interior, nor does 
the mention of trade names or commercial products constitute endorsement or 
recommendation by the Department of the Interior." 
 
“This program receives Federal financial assistance for identification and 
protection of historic properties.  Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

-365-

Item G.2.k. 



Section 504 of the rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975, as amended, the U.S. Department of the Interior prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color national origin, disability, or age in its federally assisted 
programs.  If you believe you have been discriminated against in any program, 
activity, or facility as described above or if you desire further information, please 
write to: 
 
Office of Equal Opportunity 
National Park Service 
1849 C Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20204” 

 

-366-

Item G.2.k. 



Attachment B – Project Schedule 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
March 28, 2018 Receive proposals from consultants. 
 
April 2018:  HPC meeting to select a consultant. 
 
May, 2018: Submit draft contract to the SHPO. 
 
May, 2018:  Council approval, selected consultant is notified, and copies of executed 
contract are sent to SHPO. 
 
May, 2018: Kick off meeting for project including SHPO, consultant and project 
manager.  
 
May- October, 2018: Consultant begins work on nomination. 
 
December 3, 2018: Consultant submits first draft of nomination to HPC and SHPO.  
March 18, 2019: SNRC Draft to SHPO. 
 
April, 2019: Public open house or presentation for public.  
 
April, 2019: Cedar Falls HPC recommendation to Council. 
 
May, 2019:  Cedar Falls City Council acts on nomination. 
 
June, 2019: SNRC meeting to review nomination. Final revisions are made.  
 
July 2019: Final revisions are made and final nomination is submitted to the SHPO. 
 
August, 2019:  All grant close-out items submitted to the SHPO. 
 

-367-

Item G.2.k. 



 



-369-

Item G.2.k. 



-370-

Item G.2.k. 



-371-

Item G.2.k. 



-372-

Item G.2.k. 



-373-

Item G.2.k. 



-374-

Item G.2.k. 



-375-

Item G.2.k. 



-376-

Item G.2.k. 



-377-

Item G.2.k. 



-378-

Item G.2.k. 



-379-

Item G.2.k. 



-380-

Item G.2.k. 



-381-

Item G.2.k. 



-382-

Item G.2.k. 



-383-

Item G.2.k. 



-384-

Item G.2.k. 



-385-

Item G.2.k. 



-386-

Item G.2.k. 



-387-

Item G.2.k. 



-388-

Item G.2.k. 



-389-

Item G.2.k. 



-390-

Item G.2.k. 



-391-

Item G.2.k. 



 



EXHIBIT “D” 
 

 

     Original12/13/11 
Revision 02/07/15 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be issued 
from companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in 
the current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this 
endorsement is attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 

-393-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 

-394-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 

-395-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

-396-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

-397-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 
 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

-398-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

-399-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

-400-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

  

-401-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

 
  

-402-

Item G.2.k. 



 

 

 

-403-

Item G.2.k. 



 



 

14 | P a g e  

    

Exhibit E 
2/9/12 

 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 

CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS 

 
 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 

-405-

Item G.2.k. 



 

15 | P a g e  

shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Exhibit D, shall constitute a default 
under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Exhibit D. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, Exhibit 
D. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 

-406-

Item G.2.k. 



 

16 | P a g e  

extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

-407-

Item G.2.k. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: May 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Review and approve the River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Eagle View Partners  

LOCATION: 
 

Northeast end of E 2nd Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
As an interim use, Lot 4 of River Place 3rd Addition has been used for public parking. However, 
as per the River Place Development Agreement, this lot is intended to serve several purposes: a 
portion will remain in use as public parking and the remainder will be developed with a mixed-
use building (MU2) and associated private parking.  Since development of MU2 is imminent, the 
applicant is proposing to divide Lot 4 of River Place 3rd Addition into two (2) parcels: Parcel “N” 
and Parcel “O”.  The intent of this minor plat is to separate the planned MU2 building site and 
associated private parking from the public use parking lot.  
 

BACKGROUND 
The River Place Mixed Use Development project 
and Master Plan was originally proposed and 
approved in 2012. The River Place Development 
encompasses roughly 6 acres from 4th Street to 1st 
Street, outlined in red in the image to the right. 
Since 2012 the Final Plats for River Place 1st 
Addition, 2nd Addition, 3rd Addition, and 4th 
Addition were approved in 2012, 2013, 2016, and 
2018 respectively.  The applicant is proposing to 
divide Lot 4 of River Place 3rd Addition, 
highlighted in yellow in the image to the right, into 
two (2) parcels.  
 
Per the city’s subdivision code, existing 
subdivisions are permitted one Minor Plat. The 

-409-

Item G.2.l. 



project under consideration would be this subdivision’s only Minor Plat. All future divisions of 
land within this subdivision will require a full preliminary and final platting process and review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Lot 4 of River Place 3rd Addition is located in the C-3, Commercial, zoning district. The 
proposed Minor Plat will create two new parcels: Parcel “N” and Parcel “O”. Parcel “N” will be 
roughly 0.84 acres and Parcel “O” will be roughly 0.92 acres. C-3 zoning does not have a 
minimum lot area requirement.  
 
Parcel “N” entails a public parking area that will 
provide at least 91 public parking spaces in 
compliance with the River Place Development 
agreement. Parcel “O” will encompass the MU2 
building and associated private parking. All 
easements that were originally placed on Lot 4 of 
River Place 3rd Addition will remain.  
 
In the near future the applicant plans to request a 
vacation of Public Access Easement No. 11, which 
currently encompasses all of Lot 4, and create two 
new public access easements to replace it. The 
two new easements will each cover one of the two 
newly created parcels. This will ensure shared 
traffic circulation throughout the parking area for 
both River Place tenants and the public. Staff is 
working with the applicant on the creation of the 
two new public access easements to ensure that 
the city can maintain access to the levee directly 
east of this development. These amendments are 
not required for this Minor Plat, provided that the 
existing blanket public access easement remains 
in place. 
 
This property is not located in the 100 year floodplain district. All submittal requirements have 
been met.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have reviewed the proposed 
Minor Plat. All comments from staff have been addressed. Water, electric, gas, and 
communication utility services are available in accordance with the service policies of CFU.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and the Community Development Department recommend 
approving the River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
5/9/2018 

Planner Lehmann presented the proposed Minor Plat. There were no 
questions or comments. The proposal was unanimously approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

-410-

Item G.2.l. 



-411-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



-412-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



-413-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



-414-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



-415-

Item G.2.l. 



-416-

Item G.2.l. 



-417-

Item G.2.l. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming Agreement 
 Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction 
 
The Department of Community Development is planning the reconstruction of Cedar 
Heights Drive from Greenhill Road to Viking Road. The Cedar Heights Drive project 
includes the removal and replacement of the existing pavement and reconstruct the 
roadway with curb and gutter and a recreational trail. The intent is to construct a three 
lane roadway from its current terminus on the north side of Greenhill Road and continue 
said section to the Viking Road roundabout.  
 
This project will utilize Surface Transportation Block Grant funds (STBG) through 
INRCOG for the construction of this roadway facility. The estimated cost for the Cedar 
Heights Drive project is $4,055,000.00. The STBG funds will provide a maximum cost 
share of $2,900,000.00. The remaining $1,155,000.00 will be provided by the City of 
Cedar Falls. This project is listed in the FY18-23 Capital Improvements Program. 
Design of this road will be in 2019 with construction in 2021. 
 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to execute the Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming 
Agreement. This item has been placed on the next regularly City Council agenda for 
May 21, 2018. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 

-419-

Item G.2.m. 



 



-421-

Item G.2.m. 



-422-

Item G.2.m. 



-423-

Item G.2.m. 



 



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A SURFACE 
TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAMMING AGREEMENT WITH THE 

BLACK HAWK METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION RELATIVE TO THE 
CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
considered approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation 
Block Grant Programming Agreement with the Black Hawk Metropolitan 
Planning Organization for funding of the Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction 
project, and  

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction project is listed in the 

Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program to reconstruct the section of said 
street from Greenhill Road to the Viking Road roundabout, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Surface Transportation Block Grant funds are 
used for the reconstruction of Cedar Heights Drive that includes a local match 
from the City of Cedar Falls, and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa deems it in 

the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to approve and authorize 
execution of said programming agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that said Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Programming Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa.  
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-425-

Item G.2.m. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming Agreement 
 Union Road Trail 
 
The Department of Community Development is planning the construction of the Union 
Road recreational trail. The Union Road trail will be a separate trail along the east side 
of the road from W. 12th Street to W. 27th Street. With the completion of this trail, a 4.8 
mile trail loop will be created in western Cedar Falls via W. 12th Street, Union Road, W. 
27th Street and Hudson Road. 
 
This project will utilize Surface Transportation Block Grant funds (STBG) through 
INRCOG for the construction of this trail facility. The estimated cost for the Union Road 
trail is $375,000.00. The STBG funds will provide a maximum cost share of 
$300,000.00. The remaining $75,000.00 will be provided by the City of Cedar Falls. This 
project is listed in the FY18-23 Capital Improvements Program. Design of this trail will 
be in 2019 with construction in 2020. 
 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to execute the Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming 
Agreement. This item has been placed on the next regularly City Council agenda for 
May 21, 2018. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 

-427-

Item G.2.n. 



 



-429-

Item G.2.n. 



-430-

Item G.2.n. 



-431-

Item G.2.n. 



 



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A SURFACE 
TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAMMING AGREEMENT WITH THE 

BLACK HAWK METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION RELATIVE TO THE 
UNION ROAD RECREATIONAL TRAIL PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
considered approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation 
Block Grant Programming Agreement with the Black Hawk Metropolitan 
Planning Organization for funding of the Union Road Recreational Trail project, 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Union Road Recreational Trail project is listed in the 

Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program for the construction of a recreational 
trail from W. 12th Street to W. 27th Street, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Surface Transportation Block Grant funds are 
used for the construction of Union Road Recreational Trail that includes a local 
match from the City of Cedar Falls, and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa deems it in 

the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to approve and authorize 
execution of said programming agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that said Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Programming Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa.  
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-433-

Item G.2.n. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: The Arbors Preliminary Plat Amendment 
 
 
REQUEST: Request to approve an amendment to the The Arbors Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: Midwest Development Co., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located north of Viking Road and west of Arbors Drive 

 
PROPOSAL 
The Arbors subdivision has been 
active in single family residential 
development for the past few 
years. In total, there are six (6) 
phases of development. The first 
three phases have been approved 
and are located on the east half of 
the subdivision. The remaining 
three phases will continue at the 
northwest corner and proceed to 
the southwest corner of the plat. 
 
The developer is making a couple 
of minor changes to the plat and 
staff feels it’s important to inform 
the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council of these changes. These changes include adjusting the phasing 
plan and amending the street connections into the adjacent properties. This amendment to The 
Arbors Plat was recommended for approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
May 9, 2018. 
  
BACKGROUND 
In April 2014 the City Council approved rezoning this property from A-1 Agricultural to RP 
Planned Residential District, as well as approving a Preliminary Plat for this subdivision (82.5 

-435-

Item G.2.o. 



total acres). The Preliminary Plat showed a future build-out for up to 204 residential lots in six 
“phases”. Arbors First Addition was approved by the City Council in April 2015, and included 30 
residential lots. The Arbors Second Addition was approved by the City Council in September 
2016 included 30 residential lots. The third addition was approved by the City Council in 
November 2017 includes 33 residential lots near the northeast corner of the plat. These three 
phases are developed according to the approved preliminary plat. The idea to start with the east 
half of the development is to provide access into The Meadows addition and the new school site 
adjacent to the north side of The Arbors. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Midwest Development Co. continues with 
the development of the Fourth, Fifth and 
Sixth addition of The Arbors subdivision. 
The development will continue in a counter-
clockwise direction with the Fourth addition 
at the northwest corner of the subdivision.  
This phasing plan was shifted to 
accommodate the change in the street 
connections that is further explained in the 
following paragraph. The developer’s 
engineer submitted construction plans for 
the Fourth Addition and will present the final 
plat to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission in the near future. 
 
According to The Arbors Preliminary Plat, a 
street connection (Woodbury Drive) was 
identified to access the property to the north 
of this phase. A note was identified on the 
preliminary plat that stated the following: 
 
“A 60 foot corridor connection Timber Cove 
Drive to the adjoining land to the north is 
being reserved by the owner for future road 
right of way. This is an option for the Cedar 
Falls Community School District should they 
determined that the need exists for a street 
connection at the time of final platting. 
Street stub (Woodbury Drive) may be 
deleted if it is determined the need no 
longer exists.” 
 
When the preliminary plat for the school was approved (McMahill First Addition) in January 
2017, this included a new elementary school and playgrounds on the west half of the property. 
The playground and fields essentially cut-off the access between the two subdivisions. 
Therefore, the street connection to the north from the Fourth addition is no longer needed. A 
second change to the plat is in the Fifth addition. The street connection to the west edge of the 
plat was shifted one block to the north from Amber Valley Road to Autumn Woods Drive. This 
street shift will provide a more centralized location for a connection into the neighboring property 
to the west. 

 

-436-

Item G.2.o. 



A notice on this plat amendment was mailed to the current property owners in The Arbors 
development on May 16, 2018.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of The Arbors Preliminary Plat 
amendment. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Vote 
5/9/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background and 
update information. He explained that staff has been working with Midwest 
Development/Skogman Homes on the Arbors Addition off Viking Road west of 
the Meadows Addition. The parcel was rezoned in the spring of 2014 from A-1, 
Agricultural to RP, Planned Residential, creating 204 residential lots for single-
family designed development. He explained the proposed changes to the street 
connections into the adjacent properties to the north and west. Staff 
recommends approval with any comments or direction from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 
 
The Commission had no comments and recommended approval of the plat 
amendment. 
 

 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Amended Preliminary Plat 

-437-

Item G.2.o. 



 



A
P

P
L

E
W

O
O

D
 L

N

BARKWOOD

D
R

M-1

BOXWOOD DR

H
E

D
G

E
W

O
O

D
  

  
C

IR

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

R

VENTURE WAY

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

R

RP

ERIK RD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
 D

R

MEADOWVIEWM
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

 L
N

VIKING RD

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

M-1-P

R-3

A-1

A-1

The Arbors Preliminary Plat Amendment

1

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
May 21, 2018

-439-

Item G.2.o. 



 



MEADOWS 2ND

ADDITION

CORINNE R. BROWN PROPERTY

BECK, BEVERLY J T
RUST

BECK BYPASS TRUST

 PROPERTY

UHL, CLARK MARSHALL

UHL, M
ARILYN ANN

PROPERTY

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY

ERIK  ROAD

Lot 38

Lot 37

Lot 36

Lot 35

Lot 34

Lot 33

Lot 12 Lot 11

Lot 4

Lot 8

Lot 7

Lot 6

Lot 5

Lot 3

Lot 2

Lot 1

MEADOWS 3RD

ADDITION

A
R

B
O

R
S 

  D
R

IV
E

VIKING  ROAD

POPLAR
HOLLOW LANE

TIMBER  COVE  DRIVE

TI
M

B
ER

  C
O

V
E 

 D
R

IV
E

TIMBER  COVE  DRIVE

MAPLE  GROVE  DRIVE

AUTUMN  WOODS  DRIVE

A
R

B
O

R
S 

 D
R

IV
E

R
ED

  O
A

K
  L

A
N

E

RED  OAK  LANE

E

R

I

K

 

 

R

O

A

D

ERIK  ROAD

ARBOR WAY  BLVD.

AMBER  VALLEY  ROAD

FERNW
OOD

COURT

W
O

O
D

B
U

R
Y

D
R

IV
E

TI
M

B
ER

  C
R

EE
K

  D
R

IV
E

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

CORINNE R. BROWN PROPERTY

JOHN & NANCY MUNCY  PROPERTY

R
-3

R-3

R-3

A-1
A-1

R-1

A-1

A-1

M-1

M-1-
P

A-1

R-3

A-1

A-1

A-1

RP

RP

RP

RP

RP

RP

RP

THE ARBORS

1st  A
DDITION

30 LOTS

THE ARBORS

2nd or 3rd ADDITION

30 LOTS

THE ARBORS

5th  ADDITION

36 LOTSTHE ARBORS

5th  ADDITION

36 LOTS

THE ARBORS

6th  ADDITION

44 LOTS

THE ARBORS

 2nd or 3rd  ADDITION

33 LOTS

THE ARBORS

1st  A
DDITION

30 LOTS

THE ARBORS

2nd or 3rd ADDITION

30 LOTS

THE ARBORS

6th  ADDITION

44 LOTS

THE ARBORS

 2nd or 3rd  ADDITION

33 LOTS

THE ARBORS

4th  ADDITION

31 LOTSTHE ARBORS

4th  ADDITION

31 LOTS

REMOVED. REFER TO
NOTE ON SHEET 5 OF 5.

REVISED 3RD
ADDITION
BOUNDARY

REVISED 2ND
ADDITION

BOUNDARY

M
O

V
ED

 P
ER

C
IT

Y
 S

TA
FF

4th

6th

H
O

R
S

E

D

R

W. Branch Dry Run

S

T

A

R

B

E

C

K

 

P
A

N
T

H
E

R
 
 
 
 
L
N

.

STARVIEW 

CONTINENTAL

ACCESS

S
T

E
R

L
I
N

G
 
L

N

T
I
F

F
A

N
Y

 
L
N

S
A

B
L
E

 
L
N

CONTINENTAL DR

HILTON DR

B

R

O

O

K

S

I

D

E

 

D

R

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
 
L
N

.

FOUR WINDS DR

BROOKSIDE

DR.

LAVERNE LN

C
H

R
I
S

K
I
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
R

D

CAROL CT.

H
U

D
S

O
N

 

W

.
 
B

r
a

n

c
h

 
D

r
y
 
R

u

n

SPRINGBROOK 

GREENHILL            RD

DONALD DR

RICHARD DR

ANN AVE

G
L
O

R
I
A

 
 
S

T

HARRIET LN

LLOYD LN

N
O

R
S

E
 
 
 
D

R

A
L
G

O
N

Q
U

I
N

 
D

R

N
O

R
S

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

R

F
J
O

R
D

 
D

R

M
A

R
I
U

S
 
D

R

C
A

R
E

Y
 
D

R

D

A

N

ERIK RD

VIKING            RD

S

.

 

B

r

a

n

c

h

 

PARLIAMENT 

DR

I
S

H

 

DR.

DR.

SHOE 

A

V

E

S

O

U

T

H

W

E

S

T

B

R

A

N

C

H

D

R

Y

R

U

N

C

R

E

E

K

C

I

R

.

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

 
L
N

MEADOW

I

R

O

N

W

O

O

D

 

D

R

A
P

P
L
E

W
O

O
D

 
L
N

ERIK RD

BOXWOOD DR

B

A

R

K

W

O

O

D

 
D

R

G
L
A

C
I
E

R
 
D

R

VIEW CIR

H
E

D
G

E
W

O
O

D

C
I
R

ASHWORTH    DR

ANDOVER  CT

A
D

D
I
S

O
N

 
 
 
D

R

AUSTIN WAY

A

M

E

L

I

A

 

D

R

A

L

G

O

N

Q

U

I

N

ATHENS   CT

A

S

H

W

O

R

T

H

 
D

R

ARBORS DRIVE TYPICAL SECTION

SHOFF CONSULTING

ENGINEERS, L.C.

• Civil • Environmental • Wastewater •

 • Municipal • Water •

• Industrial • Structural •

• Construction Management •

• Transportation • Electrical •

• Land Surveying •

• Land Development •

• Insurance Claim Investigation •

5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa

50613-6967

Phone: (319) 266-0258

Fax:       (319) 266-1515

www.shoffengineers.com

REVISIONS

DATE BY REVISION

Drawing No.

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

NO.

6

5

4

3

2

1

COPYRIGHT © 2014

PROJECT NUMBER:

T
h

e
 
A

r
b

o
r
s

C
e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
o
w

a

P
r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
 
P

l
a

t

0

SCALE: 1" =

200 200

200'

Preliminary Subdivision Plat for
The Arbors

Additions to the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa

Surveyor:
Aaron Mueller, PLS

Zoning:
R-P (Planned Residence)

Typical Road Sections

Legend

Vicinity Map

Project Location

N

S

EW

Sheet Index:
1. See Sheet 2 of 5 for The Arbors First Addition
2. See Sheet 3 of 5 for The Arbors Second Addition & Third Addition.
3. See Sheet 4 of 5 for The Arbors Fourth Addition & Fifth Addition.
4. See Sheet 5 of 5 for The Arbors Sixth Addition
5. See Sheet 5 of 5 for surrounding property owners information.

Land Descriptions:
Owner "A":

Corinne R. Brown Trust

The Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section Twenty-seven (27) Township No. Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th Principal Meridian in Black Hawk County, Iowa.

Owner "B":

John & Nancy Muncy

All of Parcel "B" as described in Doc. #2014-00013132

The Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter and the East Twenty acres of the West one-half of the Southeast Quarter all in Section Twenty-seven (27) Township No. Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th Principal
Meridian in Black Hawk County, Iowa

Except,

A part of the Southeast Quarter of said Section Twenty-seven (27) commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section; thence North 00°36'22" West along the East line of said Section Twenty-seven (27), 75.00 feet to the North Right-of-Way
line of Viking Road; thence South 89°18'38" West along the said North Right-of-Way line, 340.00 feet, the Point of Beginning; thence South 89°18'38" West along said North Right-of-Way line, 990.48 feet to the West line of the  Southeast
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said Section Twenty-seven (27); thence North 00°46'35" West along said West line, 515.00 feet; thence North 89°18'38" West, 992.01 feet; thence South 00°36'22" East, 515.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

And Except,

The South 590 feet of the East Twenty acres of the West one-half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section Twenty-seven (27)

And Except,

The South 33 feet of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said Section Twenty-seven (27)

And Except,

Land described in Land Deed Book 574, Page 841 and also land of Fee Simple Acquisition from John Curtis Muncy to the City of Cedar Falls described in Doc. No. 2005-00017138. 1 of 5

Engineer:
CGA Engineers

Developer/Owner:
Midwest Development Co.
411 1st Avenue, SE
Cedar Rapids, IA 50677

-441-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



UHL, CLARK MARSHALL

UHL, M
ARILYN ANN

PROPERTY

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY

TI
M

B
ER

  C
O

V
E 

 D
R

IV
E

TIMBER  COVE  DRIVE

MAPLE  GROVE  DRIVE

AUTUMN  WOODS  DRIVE

A
R

B
O

R
S 

 D
R

IV
E

RED  OAK  LANE

ERIK  ROAD

W
O

O
D

B
U

R
Y

D
R

IV
E

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7
LOT 8 LOT 9 LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13 LOT 14 LOT 15 LOT 18

LOT 23 LOT 22 LOT 21 LOT 20 LOT 19 LOT 18 LOT 17 LOT 16 LOT 17 LOT 16 LOT 15

LOT 8 LOT 9 LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13 LOT 14 LOT 15 LOT 18 LOT 19 LOT 20

LOT 45 LOT 44 LOT 43 LOT 42 LOT 41 LOT 40 LOT 39 LOT 38 LOT 37 LOT 36 LOT 21

LOT 25 LOT 26 LOT 27 LOT 28 LOT 29 LOT 30 LOT 31 LOT 32 LOT 33 LOT 34 LOT 20

LOT 24 LOT 23 LOT 22 LOT 21 LOT 20 LOT 19 LOT 18 LOT 17 LOT 16 LOT 19

LOT 33

LOT 25

LOT 22

LOT 23

LOT 14LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 24

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23

TRACT D

STORM W
ATER

MANAGMENT A
REA

A-1
A-1

A-1

RP

RP

TRACT D

TR
A

C
T 

C

TRACT D

TRACT E

TR
A

C
T 

B

TRACT E

TRACT A

TR
A

C
T 

B

TRACT B

TR
A

C
T 

C

SHOFF CONSULTING

ENGINEERS, L.C.

• Civil • Environmental • Wastewater •

 • Municipal • Water •

• Industrial • Structural •

• Construction Management •

• Transportation • Electrical •

• Land Surveying •

• Land Development •

• Insurance Claim Investigation •

5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa

50613-6967

Phone: (319) 266-0258

Fax:       (319) 266-1515

www.shoffengineers.com

REVISIONS

DATE BY REVISION

Drawing No.

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

NO.

6

5

4

3

2

1

COPYRIGHT © 2014

PROJECT NUMBER:

T
h

e
 
A

r
b

o
r
s

C
e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
o
w

a

P
r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
 
P

l
a

t

Preliminary Subdivision Plat for
The Arbors

Additions to the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa

0

SCALE: 1" =

100' 100'

100'

N

S

EW

Notes:
1. Tract A in The Arbors Sixth Addition will be designated for storm drainage, storm water

detention, and storm water quality.(Detain 100 Yr. event released at the Two Yr. rate)
2. See Typical Road Sections on Sheet 1 of 5 for street and Right-of-Way widths.
3. Proposed sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water utility locations are conceptual and are

subject to change during the preparation of the construction plans for each phase.
5 of 5

The Arbors Fourth Addition

-442-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 17, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3118 
  Project Right of Way Acquisitions 
  Keep Vacant Agreement – Parcel 49, Bodensteiner 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation and the City of Cedar Falls is planning the 
reconstruction of W. 1st Street from Highland Drive to Franklin/Center Street over the 
next two years. The existing four lane roadway will be replaced with a five lane roadway 
with a center left turn lane. The project will include improvements to the sanitary sewer, 
water main, storm sewer, and other miscellaneous roadway items. Properties acquired 
for the project will be used for roadway and utility right-of-way. 
 
The right of way acquisition phase is underway. Appraisals are being developed and 
offers are being sent to the property owners along the corridor. The parcel at 714 
W. 1st Street is planned for a total acquisition since the proposed roadway and sidewalk 
will be through the dwelling. Since this is a rental property, the City has requested that 
the property owner keep the house vacant once the current tenants move out on 
May 31, 2018. A purchase offer has been extended to the property owner and it is the 
City’s goal to negotiate the purchase price and take possession of the property as 
quickly as possible. 
 
To accomplish this, the property owner signed the attached Keep Vacant Agreement. 
This outlines the City’s request as well as the compensation for “keeping the property 
vacant”. Beginning on June 1, 2018, the city will provide a monthly payment of 
$1,600.00 until the property is acquired. At that time the payments will cease. This 
monthly payment is eligible for an 80% reimbursement through the federal dollars that 
the City received as part of this project. The other option is to pay the relocation fees for 
each tenant. The relocation expenses for each tenant include itemizing their belongings, 
search for comparative housing, pay a professional mover, pay for utility hook-
ups/transfers and each tenant is eligible for rent reimbursements for up to 42 months. 
This reimbursement is the difference in the current rent to the new rent for 42 months. 
Relocation expenses can add up very quickly for each tenant. It is staffs’ 
recommendation that the City approve the Keep Vacant Agreement with the property 

-443-

Item G.2.p. 



owner of 714 W. 1st Street. 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
and authorize the Mayor to execute the Keep Vacant Agreement for Parcel 49 in 
connection with the W. 1st Street reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 

-444-

Item G.2.p. 



-445-

Item G.2.p. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 17, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3118 
  Project Right of Way Acquisitions 
  Keep Vacant Agreement – Parcel 52, Shatek 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation and the City of Cedar Falls is planning the 
reconstruction of W. 1st Street from Highland Drive to Franklin/Center Street over the 
next two years. The existing four lane roadway will be replaced with a five lane roadway 
with a center left turn lane. The project will include improvements to the sanitary sewer, 
water main, storm sewer, and other miscellaneous roadway items. Properties acquired 
for the project will be used for roadway and utility right-of-way. 
 
The right of way acquisition phase is underway. Appraisals are being developed and 
offers are being sent to the property owners along the corridor. The parcel at 810 
W. 1st Street is planned for a total acquisition since the proposed roadway and sidewalk 
will be too close to the dwelling. Since this is a rental property, the City has requested 
that the property owner keep the house vacant once the current tenants move out on 
May 12, 2018. A purchase offer has been extended to the property owner and it is the 
City’s goal to negotiate the purchase price and take possession of the property as 
quickly as possible. 
 
To accomplish this, the property owner signed the attached Keep Vacant Agreement. 
This outlines the City’s request as well as the compensation for “keeping the property 
vacant”. Starting immediately, the city will provide a monthly payment of $975.00 until 
the property is acquired. At that time the payments will cease. This monthly payment is 
eligible for an 80% reimbursement through the federal dollars that the City received as 
part of this project. The other option is to pay the relocation fees for each tenant. The 
relocation expenses for each tenant include itemizing their belongings, search for 
comparative housing, pay a professional mover, pay for utility hook-ups/transfers and 
each tenant is eligible for rent reimbursements for up to 42 months. This reimbursement 
is the difference in the current rent to the new rent for 42 months. Relocation expenses 
can add up very quickly for each tenant. It is staffs’ recommendation that the City 

-447-

Item G.2.q. 



approve the Keep Vacant Agreement with the property owner of 810 W. 1st Street. 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
and authorize the Mayor to execute the Keep Vacant Agreement for Parcel 52 in 
connection with the W. 1st Street reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 

-448-

Item G.2.q. 



-449-

Item G.2.q. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Main Street Iowa Program Agreement 

 

Every two years, Cedar Falls’ Community Main Street, the Iowa Economic Development 
Authority and the City of Cedar Falls consider an agreement to continue their 
partnership.  The last agreement was completed in April 2016, addressing the period of 
July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2018.  Attached is an agreement for the next two-year period. 
 
The Community Main Street Board has adopted a resolution of support.  Staff 
recommends approving the attached agreement and City resolution of support. 
 
Partnership with Community Main Street helps implement Organizational Goal #6 to 
create an environment conducive to economic development.  
 
 
 
CC:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 Carol Lilly, Executive Director, Cedar Falls Community Main Street 
 
 

-451-

Item G.2.r. 



 



-453-

Item G.2.r. 



-454-

Item G.2.r. 



-455-

Item G.2.r. 



-456-

Item G.2.r. 



-457-

Item G.2.r. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 17, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment #2 River Place Properties, LC Development Agreement 
 
In July 2012, the City of Cedar Falls and River Place Properties, LC entered into an 
Agreement for Private Development pertaining to the mixed use development of the 
State Street Corridor (100-300 blocks) along with property formerly known as the Broom 
Factory site.  In early 2016, the Development Agreement was amended to extend the 
deadline for the proposed development on the former Broom Factory site to December 
31, 2018 (the original agreement anticipated completion in 2015) and also address 
construction easements needed by the City for the Downtown Levee Improvement 
Project.   
 
At this time an amendment is sought for several reasons.  The City desired clarity in the 
timeline for completion of the Plaza.  An updated Master Plan was adopted in early 
2016, along with approval of MU2 and the Plaza site plans.  This amendment also 
updates several exhibits to reflect the current Master Plan, extends the hotel’s deadline 
from December 31, 2018 to June 1, 2019, includes extension of a temporary 
construction easement for the levee on the Hawkeye Hotels property through October 1, 
2018, and provides an easement to the hotel to reconstruct the trail north of them (per 
their site plan).  It further identifies that temporary easement dates may need to adjust 
based on unavoidable delays such as weather, flooding, railroad, or other issues. 
 
The levee project was bid in late 2017 and the hotel project recently gained site plan 
approval and is looking to start building soon.  Therefore we will be coordinating closely 
for the benefit of both projects. 
 
A public hearing is not required because there is no change in the financial incentive 
from the City, per Section 9 of the attached Second Amendment to the River Place 
Developmental Agreement.  The attorney fees to complete this amendment are 
proposed to be split among the three parties: River Place, Hawkeye Hotels & the City 
since each entity benefits from the changes. 
 

-459-

Item G.2.s. 



The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Second 
Amendment to the River Place Developmental Agreement.  Please contact me with any 
questions.  This agreement and all easements and agreements attached will then be 
signed and recorded. 
 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office  
 Mark Kittrell, River Place Properties 
 Om Patel, Hawkeye Hotels 
  
 
 

-460-

Item G.2.s. 



1 

Execution Version 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: Nathan Overberg, Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., 100 Court Avenue, Suite 

600, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, (515) 246-0329 

      SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR THE RECORDER 

 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS AND RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 

 

 This Second Amendment ("Amendment") is made as of the _____ day of 

_____________, 2018, to the AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT ("Agreement") 

dated July 16, 2012, between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA ("City") and RIVER 

PLACE PROPERTIES LC ("Developer").  Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms 

shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement, as previously amended. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 18166 the City previously approved the 

Agreement, in which the City agreed to make payments of Economic Development Grants, and 

transfer certain property (the “Mill Race Property” and the “State Street Property” collectively 

referred to as the “City Property”) to the Developer, who would then cause the construction of 

various residential, commercial and mixed use buildings and amenities on the City Property and 

other land acquired by the Developer from third parties (the “RPP Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, as contemplated by the Agreement, following transfer of the Mill Race 

Property by the City to Developer, Developer transferred the Mill Race Parcel, which included 

the Mill Race Property and the RPP Property, to Western Home Independent Living Services, 

Inc. (“Western”), to enable the construction of townhomes and condos (the “MRC1 Phase” and 

“MRC2 Phase” projects) on the Mill Race Parcel, which projects were required under the 

Agreement to have a minimum assessed value of at least $5,000,000 as of January 1, 2016; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the MRC1 Phase and MRC2 Phase projects have not been initiated and are 

no longer being pursued by the parties; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 19,851 on February 1, 2016, the City approved an initial 

Amendment to the Agreement (“First Amendment”), which First Amendment had been executed 

-461-

Item G.2.s. 



2 

Execution Version 

by Developer and Western and pursuant to which the parties agreed that, among other things: (a) 

Developer and Western would construct a Hotel Facility on the Mill Race Parcel to be completed 

by December 31, 2018; (b) the minimum assessed value established for the Mill Race Parcel in 

the Minimum Assessment Agreement would be assessed on January 1, 2019; (c) Western shall 

grant the city, at no charge, temporary construction easements on the Mill Race Parcel to allow 

for construction of a levee project described in Section 7.9 of the Agreement; and (d) Western 

shall transfer Parcel H to the City, at no cost to the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, following the execution of the First Amendment, Western transferred the 

Mill Race Parcel to Broomstick Lodging, LLC ("Owner"), which Owner expressly assumed or 

hereby assumes Western’s obligations under the Agreement, as previously amended; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City, Developer, and Owner wish to amend the Agreement a second 

time to, among other things, (a) update the list of Phases and Amenities contemplated under the 

Agreement; (b) provide additional terms with respect to the construction of the River Place Plaza 

as an Amenity under the Agreement; (c) update the terms of a License Agreement related to 

Parking Amenities constructed under the Agreement; (d) clarify obligations related to the 

construction of a public alley; (e) provide for additional easements to be provided to the City by 

Developer; and (f) update the completion date and assessment date for the Hotel Facility on the 

Mill Race Parcel and extend the length of the temporary construction easement on said parcel. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by the parties: 

 

1. DEFINITIONS. All capitalized words used herein and not specifically defined 

shall have the same definitions as in the Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment. 

 

2. UPDATE EXHIBITS B AND B-1.  Exhibit B to the Agreement provided a list 

of Project Phases.  Exhibit B-1 to the Agreement provided a list of Amenities to be constructed 

as part of the Project. The parties desire to update Exhibits B and B-1 to reflect the facts as of the 

date this Second Amendment is executed.  Therefore, Amended Exhibit B attached hereto as part 

of Exhibit 1 to the Second Amendment shall replace Exhibit B to the Agreement in its entirety, 

and any reference to Exhibit B in the Agreement shall be a reference to the Amended Exhibit B 

attached to this Second Amendment.  Likewise, Amended Exhibit B-1 attached hereto as part of 

Exhibit 1 to the Second Amendment shall replace Exhibit B-1 to the Agreement in its entirety, 

and any reference to Exhibit B-1 in the Agreement shall be a reference to the Amended Exhibit 

B-1 attached to this Second Amendment. 

 

3. PLAZA CONSTRUCTION.  One of Developer’s obligations under the 

Agreement includes the construction of certain Amenities consistent with Section 3.1 of the 

Agreement.  The parties desire to set forth in this Second Amendment specific terms related to 

the construction of one of those Amenities – the River Place Plaza Amenity.  Therefore, without 

restricting or otherwise limiting the general obligations set forth in Section 3.1 of the Agreement, 

the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

a. The Location. The River Place Plaza Amenity shall be located on the State Street 

Property as depicted in the Master Plan (“River Place Plaza Location”) attached hereto as Exhibit 

2 to the Second Amendment. 

-462-

Item G.2.s. 



3 

Execution Version 

 

b. City Plaza Construction. 

 

i. Contingent on the Developer's compliance with the terms of the 

Agreement, as amended, the City intends to construct that portion of the River Place 

Plaza Amenity depicted on Page U.15 of FL-000-1975 2017 Levee/Floodwall System 

Improvements construction plans attached hereto as Exhibit 3 to the Second Amendment 

(“City Plaza Construction”).  The City agrees to use its best efforts, consistent with its 

obligations under the Code of Iowa and subject to Unavoidable Delays, to cause the City 

Plaza Construction to be completed by December 31, 2018. 

 

ii. Developer shall convey, at no cost to the City, such easements as may be 

necessary for the construction and maintenance of the City Plaza Construction, including 

easements consistent with Exhibit 10 to the Second Amendment attached hereto, and 

cooperate with the City in the construction and maintenance of the City Plaza 

Construction.   

 

iii. Developer shall pay the City for all costs incurred by the City in 

constructing that portion of the City Plaza Construction that is on property owned by the 

Developer or depicted as being outside the “City Pay Limits” on Exhibit 3.  Those costs 

to be paid by Developer are currently estimated to be $250,602 and are outlined on 

Exhibit 4 to the Second Amendment. The actual amount to be paid by Developer shall be 

determined by the City upon completion of the City Plaza Construction and the City shall 

provide a written invoice to the Developer containing the final amount to be paid by 

Developer.  The Developer shall pay the full amount invoiced by the City on or before 

July 1, 2020. In the event the Developer fails to pay the full, invoiced amount on or 

before July 1, 2020, then in addition to any other remedy provided for under the terms of 

the Agreement, the City may deduct any unpaid amount from any remaining Economic 

Development Grants that would otherwise be paid to Developer under Article IX of the 

Agreement. 

 

c. Developer Plaza Construction. 

 

i. With the exception of that portion of the River Place Plaza Amenity to be 

constructed by the City under Section 3(b), above, Developer shall construct the 

remainder of the River Place Plaza Amenity in substantial conformance with the Site 

Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 5 to the Second Amendment (“Developer Plaza 

Construction”).  Developer shall be responsible for the full cost of constructing and 

maintaining the Developer Plaza Construction.  The Developer Plaza Construction shall 

be completed according the following schedule: 

 

A. Construction Phase I. By July 1, 2019, Developer shall complete 

construction of a temporary City recreation trail between the levee and State 

Street. By July 1, 2020, Developer shall complete the remediation of any 

environmental issues impacting the River Place Plaza Location.  Nothing in this 

Second Amendment should be interpreted as altering Section 4.10 of the 

Agreement.    

-463-

Item G.2.s. 



4 

Execution Version 

 

B. Construction Phase II.  Developer shall initiate construction on the 

remainder of the Developer Plaza Construction on or before April 1, 2020, and 

shall complete the Developer Plaza Construction on or before July 1, 2021, 

including a permanent City recreation trail between the levee and State Street. 

 

C. Construction Plans.  Developer must submit Construction Plans (as 

defined in the Agreement) at least ninety (90) days prior to commencing 

construction work on any portion of the Developer Plaza Construction.  

Developer shall not initiate construction on any portion of the Developer Plaza 

Construction without first receiving written approval from the City for the 

Construction Plans for that portion of the project.  The parties agree that the 

Developer Plaza Construction will not include previously discussed infrastructure 

to support ice, sound system, and water amenities on the River Place Plaza 

Location. 

 

ii. Should Developer fail to satisfy any of the deadlines set forth in Section   

3(c)(i), above, such failure shall be an Event of Default under the Agreement, and should 

Developer fail to cure such Event of Default within thirty (30) days of receiving written 

notice from the City of such Event of Default, then, in addition to any other remedies 

available under the Agreement, the City shall be entitled to: (a) have full, unfettered 

access to the River Place Plaza Location for purposes of completing construction of the 

Developer Plaza Construction, and Developer shall execute all necessary documents to 

provide City with such access; (b) complete construction of the Developer Plaza 

Construction; and (c) deduct any costs incurred by the City in completing the Developer 

Plaza Construction from any remaining Economic Development Grants that would 

otherwise be paid to Developer under Article IX of the Agreement.  

 

d. Public Access. Consistent with any existing Public Access Easement(s), including 

but not limited to those recorded with the Black Hawk County Recorder at 2016-

00019432, Developer shall provide public access to the River Place Plaza Amenity for 

prescheduled or annual events upon reasonable notice from Community Main Street and 

at no cost to Community Main Street. Developer agrees to execute any additional 

documents reasonably necessary to effectuate this public access. 

 

4. PARKING AMENITIES. One of Developer’s obligations under the Agreement 

includes the construction of certain Parking Amenities consistent with Section 3.2 of the 

Agreement.  The City acknowledges that Developer has completed the construction of the 

Second and State Parking Lot (“Public Parking Lot”) depicted on the Master Plan, attached 

hereto as Exhibit 2 to the Second Amendment, and Developer has entered into a license 

agreement with the City with respect to the public’s use of the Public Parking Lot dated July 16, 

2012 (“License Agreement”).  As such, the City hereby confirms that Developer has satisfied its 

obligation to construct the Second and State Parking Amenity described in Section 3.2 of the 

Agreement.  In addition, with respect to Parking Amenities: 

 

a. Parking requirements shall continue to be included as part of the Construction 

Plans for each Phase/Amenity.     

-464-

Item G.2.s. 



5 

Execution Version 

 

b. Contemporaneous with their execution of this Second Amendment, the Developer 

and City shall execute the Amendment to the License Agreement attached hereto as 

Exhibit 7 to the Second Amendment.  In addition, contemporaneous to the execution of 

this Second Amendment, the Developer shall provide to the City a permanent access 

easement, in a form acceptable to the City and at no cost to the City, for the maintenance 

of the Public Parking Lot. 

 

c.  The City shall assume responsibility for reconstructing the public alley (“Public 

Alley”) depicted on the Master Plan (attached hereto as Exhibit 2 to the Second 

Amendment), and the three (3) remaining parking spaces adjacent to the Public Alley 

contemplated by the Master Plan but not completed by the Developer as part of the 

construction of the Public Parking Lot (“Alley Spaces”).  With respect to the City’s 

construction of the Alley Spaces: 

 

i.   Contemporaneous to the execution of this Second Amendment, Developer 

shall convey, at no cost to the City, such easements as may be necessary for the 

construction and maintenance of the Alley Spaces in the form of Exhibit 6 to the Second 

Amendment (the Public Alley is on City property and will remain public property and 

therefore an easement from Developer is not necessary for its completion/maintenance), 

and cooperate with the City in the construction and maintenance of the Public Alley and 

Alley Spaces. 

 

ii. Developer shall pay the City for all costs incurred by the City in 

constructing the Alley Spaces.  The amount to be paid by Developer shall be determined 

by the City upon completion of the construction of the Public Alley and Alley Spaces, 

and the City shall provide a written invoice to the Developer containing the final amount 

to be paid by Developer.  The Developer shall pay the full amount invoiced by the City 

within sixty (60) days of the receipt of the invoice. In the event the Developer fails to 

timely pay the full, invoiced amount, then in addition to any other remedy provided for 

under the terms of the Agreement, the City may deduct any unpaid amount from any 

remaining Economic Development Grants that would otherwise be paid to Developer 

under Article IX of the Agreement. 

 

5. ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS.  In addition to easements contemplated by 

Section 3.3 of the Agreement or any other term of the Agreement or any amendment thereto, 

Developer shall provide to the City, at no cost to the City and in a form acceptable to the City: 

 

a. A permanent easement for public use of any portion of the City’s recreation trail 

that traverses property owned by the Developer as depicted on the Master Plan (attached 

hereto as Exhibit 2 to the Second Amendment).  

 

b. A utility easement, if needed, for underground improvements. 

 

c. Any and all easements reflected in the Final Plat River Place 3rd Addition, 

attached hereto as Exhibit 9 to the Second Amendment. 

 

-465-

Item G.2.s. 



6 

Execution Version 

6. UPDATE TO FIRST AMENDMENT REGARDING DEADLINE TO 

COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION OF HOTEL FACILITY.  In the First Amendment to the 

Agreement, the Developer, Western, and City agreed that Developer and Western shall complete 

the construction of a Hotel Facility on the Mill Race Parcel by December 31, 2018, and that a 

failure to satisfy this deadline would trigger a variety of remedies.  The parties to the First 

Amendment also agreed, however, that “if significant progress towards the commencement of 

construction for the Hotel Facility has been made prior to January 1, 2018, the parties may move 

to further amend the Agreement to allow for one additional year for the completion of the Hotel 

Facility, upon the mutual agreement of all parties in writing.”  Because sufficient progress 

toward the commencement of construction has been completed, the City, Developer, and Owner 

(which hereby assumes Western’s obligations under the Agreement as amended by the First 

Amendment) hereby agree to extend the deadline for completing construction of the Hotel 

Facility as set forth in Section 3 of the First Amendment from December 31, 2018 to October 31, 

2019.  The remaining terms and conditions set forth in the First Amendment with respect to the 

construction of the Hotel Facility, including the remedies available to the City in the event the 

Developer and Owner fail to complete construction of the Hotel Facility by the revised 

completion date, remain in full force and effect. 

 

7. UPDATE TO FIRST AMENDMENT REGARDING MINIMUM 

ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT.  As a result of the extension of the completion deadline for the 

Hotel Facility described in Section 6 above, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

contained in the Agreement, the City, Developer, and Owner agree to extend the date by which 

the Mill Race Parcel (including the Hotel Facility) must have a minimum assessed value of 

$5,000,000, as referenced in Sections 4.9(a) (1) and 7.10 of the Agreement and Section 4 of the 

First Amendment, to January 1, 2020. The City, Developer, and Owner agree to amend for a 

second time (“MAA Amendment No. 2”) the previously executed Minimum Assessment 

Agreement using the form of amendment shown in Exhibit 8 to the Second Amendment, which 

Exhibit 8 shall be executed by the parties simultaneous to this Amendment.   

 

8. MILL RACE PARCEL CONSTRUCTION COORDINATION. The City, 

Developer, and Owner agree to coordinate the construction work performed on the Mill Race 

Parcel with respect to the construction of the levee project (described in Section 7.9 of the 

Agreement and detailed in the FL-000-1975 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements 

construction plans) and the Hotel Facility so as to minimize interruptions or delays to the 

completion of either project to the greatest extent reasonably possible.  Consistent with that 

coordination: 

a. Owner and City hereby acknowledge the continued validity of the temporary 

construction easement over and upon the Mill Race Parcel recorded with the Black Hawk 

County Recorder at 2018-00013982, and agree to be bound thereby.  The parties 

acknowledge that this easement is necessary to complete Segment 2 of the levee project, 

which Segment 2 is anticipated to be completed by June 30, 2018. If Unavoidable Delays 

prevent the completion of Segment 2 by June 30, 2018, Owner agrees to extend the 

existing easement by the number of days that the conditions creating the Unavoidable 

Delay persists.  This easement shall terminate upon completion of Segment 2 and prior to 

vacating the property the City shall return the property to its prior condition (rough 

graded).   

 

-466-

Item G.2.s. 



7 

Execution Version 

b. Owner shall execute, simultaneous with this Second Amendment, a temporary 

construction easement over a portion of the Mill Race Parcel through October 1, 2018 

(with such further extensions as may be mutually agreed upon) using the form of 

Amended Temporary Easement located in Exhibit 11 to the Second Amendment attached 

hereto, which shall be filed in the office of the Black Hawk County Recorder by the City. 

The parties acknowledge that this easement is necessary to complete Segment 3 of the 

levee project, which Segment 3 is anticipated to be completed by October 1, 2018. If 

Unavoidable Delays prevent the completion of Segment 3 by October 1, 2018, Owner 

agrees to extend the easement by the number of days that the conditions creating the 

Unavoidable Delay persists.  This easement shall terminate upon completion of Segment 

3 and prior to vacating the property the City shall return the property to its prior condition 

(rough graded). 

 

c. Owner shall provide uninterrupted, 24-hour per day, access for the City’s 

contractors and their construction equipment to the levee construction site (either via 

Main Street, West 1st Street, or both) through the term of the easements described in this 

Section 8.  It is anticipated that Owner shall construct a temporary construction access to 

the levee construction site from Main Street that will allow the City’s contractors and 

their construction equipment reasonable access to the levee construction site.  Access to 

the levee construction site via West 1st Street shall not be interrupted until the Main Street 

access is operational and available to the City’s contractors.  Any interruption in access to 

the levee construction site for the City or its contractors shall (i) qualify as an 

Unavoidable Delay requiring Owner to extend the applicable easement under Section 8 

(a) or (b) above by the period of interruption; and (ii) if extended beyond fifteen (15) 

days in the aggregate, such interruption shall constitute an Event of Default under the 

Agreement. 

 

d. The City shall be responsible for removing the existing recreational trail near the 

construction site for Segment 3 of the levee project during the construction of the levee 

and Hotel Facility projects, and the Owner shall reconstruct the recreational trail near 

Segment 3 of the levee consistent with any approved site plan for the Hotel Facility.  

 

9. AGREEMENT RATIFIED. Except as amended and/or modified by this Second 

Amendment, the Agreement, as previously amended, is hereby ratified and confirmed and all 

other terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. No extensions or revisions 

shall apply to the potential payment of Economic Development Grants pursuant to Article IX of 

the Agreement.  No Economic Development Grants will be available for any fiscal years after 

July 1, 2027. 

 

10. FEES AND COSTS. Developer and Owner shall each pay, upon demand, one 

third (1/3) of the City’s costs and attorney fees incurred in connection with the drafting, 

execution, and recording of this Second Amendment and the exhibits hereto (for purposes of 

clarity, in the aggregate Developer and Owner will pay 2/3 of the City’s costs and attorneys 

fees). 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Amendment to be duly executed in 

its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by its City 

-467-

Item G.2.s. 



8 

Execution Version 

Clerk, and Developer and Owner have each caused this Amendment to be duly executed in their 

name and behalf by their authorized representatives, all on or as of the date first written above.   

 

(SEAL)      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA      ) 

      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 On this _____ day of _______________, 2018, before me a Notary Public in and for said 

County, personally appeared James P. Brown and Jacqueline Danielsen to me personally known, 

who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipal Corporation, created and existing under the laws of the State 

of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipal 

Corporation, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipal 

Corporation by authority and resolution of its City Council and said Mayor and City Clerk 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it 

voluntarily executed. 

 

      _____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

  

-468-

Item G.2.s. 



9 

Execution Version 

RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 

 

By: _________________________________ 

      Mark Kittrell, Member/Manager 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF ______________  ) 

     )  SS  

COUNTY OF _____________  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Mark Kittrell, to me personally 

known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Member and Manager of  River 

Place Properties LC and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said limited liability 

company; and that the said Member and Manager acknowledged the execution of said instrument 

to be the voluntary act and deed of said limited liability company, by him  voluntarily executed. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for such County & 

State 

 

 

  

-469-

Item G.2.s. 



10 

Execution Version 

BROOMSTICK LODGING, LLC 

 

By: ______________________________ 

  Damen Trebilcock, Vice President of Development 

 

 

 

STATE OF ______________  ) 

     )  SS  

COUNTY OF _____________  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Damen Trebilcock, to me 

personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Vice President of 

Development for  Broomstick Lodging, LLC and that said instrument was signed on behalf of 

said corporation; and that the signor acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the 

voluntary act and deed of said corporation, by him voluntarily executed. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for such County & 

State 

 

-470-

Item G.2.s. 



Exhibit 1-1 

Execution Version 

 

EXHIBIT 1 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

 

AMENDED EXHIBIT B 
 

 
  

-471-

Item G.2.s. 



Exhibit 1-2 

Execution Version 

 

EXHIBIT 1 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT, continued 

 

AMENDED EXHIBIT B-1 

 

-472-

Item G.2.s. 



Exhibit 2-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 2 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

RIVER PLACE MASTER PLAN  

  

-473-

Item G.2.s. 



Exhibit 3-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 3 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

 

PAGE U.15 OF FL-000-1975 2017 LEVEE/FLOODWALL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

FINAL PLAN 

 

-474-

Item G.2.s. 



Exhibit 4-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 4 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

ESTIMATED COSTS FOR CITY PLAZA CONSTRUCTION TO BE PAID BY 

DEVELOPER 

-475-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 5-1 

Execution Version 
 

EXHIBIT 5 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

PLAZA SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN 3-7-16 

 

 

-476-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 6-1 

Execution Version 
 

EXHIBIT 6 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

 

 

 

  

-477-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 6-2 

Execution Version 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

-478-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 6-3 

Execution Version 
 

 
 

 

-479-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 7-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 7 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

AMENDMENT TO THE LICENSE AGREEMENT  

This Amendment ("Amendment") is made as of the _____ day of _____________, 2018, 

to the LICENSE AGREEMENT ("License Agreement") dated July 16, 2012, between the CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA ("City") and RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC ("Developer").   

Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth in the 

Agreement. 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 16, 2012, Developer and City entered into a License Agreement 

whereby the Developer agreed to permit parking on a portion of its property described in the 

License Agreement; 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has since completed the construction of a Public Parking Lot 

on said property; and 

 WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the License Agreement to reflect the completion 

of the Public Parking Lot. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by the parties: 

Section 1. Exhibit A to the License Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with the 

Amended Exhibit A to the License Agreement attached hereto.   

Section 2.  For purposes of the License Agreement, the term “Parking Area” or “Parking 

Areas” shall be defined as the “Public Parking Lot” depicted on the Amended Exhibit A. 

Section 3.  Except as amended and/or modified by this Amendment, the License 

Agreement is hereby ratified and confirmed and all other terms of the License Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Amendment to be duly executed in 

its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by its City 

Clerk, and Developer has caused this Amendment to be duly executed in their name and behalf 

by its authorized representatives, all on or as of the date first written above.   

 

(SEAL)      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________ 

             Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

-480-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 7-2 

Execution Version 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA      ) 

      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 On this _____ day of _______________, 2018, before me a Notary Public in and for said 

County, personally appeared James P. Brown and Jacqueline Danielsen to me personally known, 

who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipal Corporation, created and existing under the laws of the State 

of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipal 

Corporation, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipal 

Corporation by authority and resolution of its City Council and said Mayor and City Clerk 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it 

voluntarily executed. 

 

      _____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa  

 

 

 

 

RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 

 

By: _________________________________ 

      Mark Kittrell, Member/Manager 

 

 

 

STATE OF ______________  ) 

     )  SS  

COUNTY OF _____________  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Mark Kittrell, to me personally 

known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Member and Manager of  River 

Place Properties LC and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said limited liability 

company; and that the said Member and Manager acknowledged the execution of said instrument 

to be the voluntary act and deed of said limited liability company, by him  voluntarily executed. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for such County & 

State 

 

  

-481-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 7-3 

Execution Version 

Amended Exhibit A to License Agreement 

 

-482-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 8 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT ("MAA 

Amendment No. 2") is dated as of the _____ day of _______________, 2018, by and among the 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (the "City"), RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 

(“Developer”) and BROOMSTICK LODGING, LLC (“Owner”). 

  

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Developer previously entered into an Agreement for Private 

Development dated as of July 16, 2012, (the "Agreement" or "Development Agreement"), which 

contained a Minimum Assessment Agreement (“Original Minimum Assessment Agreement”) 

specifying the minimum actual value to be applied towards property described as the Mill Race 

Property and RPP Property (known collectively as the "Mill Race Parcel"), and the State Street 

Property, each legally described below: 

MILL RACE PROPERTY 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN PART OF LOTS 2 OF AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY 

PLAT AND PART OF LOTS 1, 2, AND 3 IN BLOCK 6 OF THE VILLAGE OF CEDAR 

FALLS (ORIGINAL TOWN OF CEDAR FALLS), AND PART OF THE ALLEY LYING 

BETWEEN LOTS 1 AND 2 IN BLOCK 6 OF THE VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS 

(ORIGINAL TOWN OF CEDAR FALLS) IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF 

BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS. 

 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 4 OF AUDITOR’S MILL 

COMPANY PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 64° (DEGREES) 20’ (MINUTES) 05” (SECONDS) 

EAST (ASSUMED BEARING FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION) ON THE 

NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4, A DISTANCE OF 166.27 FEET (166.00 FEET 

RECORD) TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE NORTH 54°28’28” 

EAST, 13.77 FEET  (13.70 FEET RECORD) TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE 

PARCEL OF LAND  DESCRIBED IN  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2010 016638 AND 

RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER, BEING 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PARCEL OF LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED; 

THENCE NORTH 26°05’09” EAST ON SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE, 31.36 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 45°58’05” EAST, 35.62 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 59°04’54” EAST, 81.35 

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 27°51’10” EAST, 33.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY ON A 

252.76-FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE  EASTERLY AND HAVING A 97.13-FOOT 

LONG CHORD BEARING SOUTH 13°20’15” WEST, 97.74 FEET (ARC LENGTH); 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ON A 47.00-FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE 

NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A 63.88-FOOT LONG CHORD BEARING SOUTH 

45°04’17” WEST, 70.24 FEET (ARC LENGTH); THENCE SOUTH 87°52’58” WEST, 221.02 

FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 3 IN BLOCK 6 OF THE VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS 

(ORIGINAL TOWN OF CEDAR FALLS); THENCE NORTH 01°06’31” WEST ON SAID  

-483-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-2 

Execution Version 

WEST LINE, 88.97 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN BLOCK 6 OF 

THE VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS (ORIGINAL TOWN OF CEDAR FALLS); THENCE 

NORTH 70°47’35” WEST ON THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE VILLAGE OF 

CEDAR FALLS (ORIGINAL TOWN OF CEDAR FALLS), 145.95 FEET; THENCE NORTH 

62°24’55” EAST, 60.81 FEET TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE PARCEL OF 

LAND  DESCRIBED IN  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2010 016638 AND RECORDED IN THE 

OFFICE OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER; THENCE SOUTH 66°51’58” 

EAST ON SAID SOUTHWESTERLY LINE, 202.15 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY 

LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND  DESCRIBED IN  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2010 016638 

AND RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER; 

THENCE NORTH 26°08’17” EAST ON SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE, 144.45 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING 46,491 SQUARE FEET OR 1.07 ACRES 

 

RPP PROPERTY 

Certain property consisting of approximately 1 acre, located at the northwest corner of the 

intersection of West First Street and Main Street, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 

State of Iowa more particularly described as follows: .  

Lot No.3 in Auditor's Mill Company Plat, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa,  

AND 

All that part of Lot 2 and Lot 4 in Auditor's Mill Company Plat in Cedar Falls, Iowa, described 

as follows:  

Commencing at the Northeast comer of Lot 4, thence N 55 degrees 30 minutes E 13.7 feet to the 

point of beginning; thence S 55 degrees 30 minutes W 13.7 feet to the northeast comer of Lot 4; 

thence N 63 degrees 45 minutes W 166.2 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 4; thence S 26 

degrees 17 minutes W 166.4 feet to the. south line of Lot 2; thence S 69 degrees 25 minutes E 

172.5 feet along the south line of Lot 2; thence N 26 degrees 17 minutes E to the point of 

beginning, containing approximately .6 acres.  

EXCEPT ... Commencing at the northeast comer of Lot 4, Auditor's Mill Company Plat; thence 

North 63 degrees 45 minutes West along the northerly line of said Lot 4 a distance of 166.2 feet 

to the northwest comer of said Lot 4; thence South 26 degrees 17 minutes West along the 

westerly line of a tract of land recorded in City Lot Deed Book 604, page 945 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder a distance of 140.00 feet to the point of beginning of the land to 

be described; thence continuing South 26 degrees 17 minutes West along the westerly line of 

said tract a distance of 26.4 feet to a point on the southerly line of said Lot 2, said point also 

being the southwest comer of said tract; thence South 69 degrees 25 minutes East along said 

southerly lot line a distance of 172.5 feet to the southeast corner of said tract; thence North 26 

degrees 17 minutes East along the easterly line of said tract a distance of 17.00 feet; thence North 

66 degrees 17 minutes 46 seconds West a distance of 171.82 feet to the point of beginning; 

containing 3,724 sq. ft.  

-484-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-3 

Execution Version 

AND 

That part of Lots 2 and 4, Auditor's Mill Company Plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) 

described as follows:  

Commencing at the northeast comer of said Lot 4; thence North 63 degrees 45 minutes West 

along the northerly line of said Lot 4 a distance of 166.2 feet to the point of beginning of the land 

to be described, said point also being the northwest comer of said Lot 4; thence South 26 degrees 

17 minutes West along the westerly line of a tract of land recorded in City Lot Deed Book 604, 

page 945 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder a distance of 140.00 feet; thence 

North 66 degrees 17 minutes 46 seconds West a distance of 35.00 feet; thence North 21 degrees 

38 minutes 19 seconds West a distance of 20.26 feet; thence North 47 degrees 37 minutes 13 

seconds East a distance of 137.42 feet to the point of beginning; containing 3750 sq. ft. 

 

STATE STREET PROPERTY 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN PART OF LOTS 1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 AND 16 OF 

AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY PLAT, AND LOTS 6, 7, 8, AND 9 OF AUDITOR’S MILL 

COMPANY PLAT, AND PART OF RACE ROAD OF AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY PLAT 

AND PART OF LOT 13 OF MILL SQUARE, AND LOTS 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 

AND 24 OF MILL SQUARE, AND PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 

1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS. 

 

BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE PRESENT NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF 2ND STREET AND THE PRESENT EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH 89° (DEGREES) 35’ (MINUTES) 21” (SECONDS) WEST (ASSUMED 

BEARING FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION) ON THE PRESENT NORTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 2ND STREET, 240.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°25’55” 

WEST, 280.91 FEET TO THE PRESENT SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 1ST STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH 87°57’02” EAST ON THE PRESENT SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

1ST STREET, 185.99 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°02’11” WEST ON THE PRESENT SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 1ST STREET, 34.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84°27’41” EAST 

ON THE PRESENT SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 1ST STREET, 57.63 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 50°09’17” EAST, 49.47 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 10°21’22” EAST, 152.34 

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 30°54’37” EAST, 156.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 32°30’27” EAST, 

23.57 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 41°03’47” EAST, 70.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 36°11’54” 

EAST, 124.29 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 36°15’37” EAST, 95.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

28°48’45” EAST, 164.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 30°24’02” EAST, 189.90 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 26°54’23” EAST, 28.78 FEET TO THE PRESENT NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF 4TH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 89°23’18” WEST ON THE PRESENT NORTH RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF 4TH STREET, 155.78 FEET TO THE SOUTH PROLONGATION OF 

THE EAST LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN FEE BOOK 200622997 AND 

RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER; THENCE 

NORTH 00°34’49” WEST ON THE SOUTH PROLONGATION OF THE EAST LINE AND 

THE EAST LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN FEE BOOK 2006 22997 

AND RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER, 76.60 

-485-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-4 

Execution Version 

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°23’50” WEST ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE PARCEL OF 

LAND DESCRIBED IN FEE BOOK 2006 22997 AND RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER AND THE WEST PROLONGATION OF SAID 

LINE 357.27 FEET TO THE PRESENT EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE STREET; 

THENCE NORTH 00°44’49” WEST ON THE PRESENT EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

STATE STREET, 595.13 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

 

CONTAINING 260,308 SQUARE FEET OR 5.98 ACRES. 

 

(the "Mill Race Property" the "RPP Property" and the "State Street Property", collectively the 

"Development Property"); and 

 

WHEREAS, construction on the Mill Race Parcel (which Parcel had been conveyed by 

Developer to Western Home Independent Living Services, Inc. (“Western”)) was delayed, 

thereby resulting in the parties executing Amendment No. 1 to the Original Minimum 

Assessment Agreement in 2016 in order to postpone the substantial completion date for the Mill 

Race Parcel and also the first date that the Mill Race Parcel would be subject to a Minimum 

Actual Value; and 

 

WHEREAS, following the execution of Amendment No. 1 to the Original Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, Western transferred the Mill Race Parcel to Broomstick Lodging, LLC  

(“Owner”), which Owner expressly assumed Western’s obligations under the Original Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, as previously amended; and 

 

WHEREAS, construction on the Mill Race Parcel has been delayed a second time and the 

parties wish to postpone once again the substantial completion date for the Mill Race Parcel and 

also the first date that the Mill Race Parcel will be subject to a Minimum Actual Value; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City and the Assessor have reviewed the preliminary plans and 

specifications for a new hotel facility (“Hotel Facility”) that is contemplated will be erected on 

the Mill Race Parcel.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this MAA Amendment No. 2, in consideration of the 

promises, covenants and agreements made by each other, do hereby agree to amend the Original 

Minimum Assessment Agreement, as previously amended, as follows: 

 

1. Upon substantial completion of construction of the Hotel Facility, but no later 

than January 1, 2020, the minimum actual taxable value which shall be fixed for assessment 

purposes for the Mill Race Property and RPP Property (collectively "Mill Race Parcel") shall be 

not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) (buildings and land) (hereafter referred to as the 

"Minimum Actual Value" for the Mill Race Property and RPP Property). 

  

-486-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-5 

Execution Version 

 

The Owner agrees that the Minimum Actual Value for the Mill Race Property and RPP 

Property (collectively "Mill Race Parcel") shall continue to be effective through July 1, 2027 (the 

“Termination Date").   

 

2. No changes are made to the provisions of the Original Minimum Assessment 

Agreement applicable to the State Street Property, which shall remain in full force and effect at 

the values and through the Termination Date as set forth in the Original Minimum Assessment 

Agreement, as clarified by the December 12, 2014 letter previously submitted to the Black Hawk 

County Assessor.  

 

3. The Owner or Developer shall pay or cause to be paid when due all real property 

taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts of the Development Property and 

the Project (for purposes of this MAA Amendment No. 2 the “Project” includes the Hotel 

Facility in addition to the components identified in the Agreement) pursuant to the provisions of 

the Original Minimum Assessment Agreement, as previously amended, this MAA Amendment 

No. 2, and the Development Agreement, as amended.   

 

4. The Developer and Owner agree that, prior to the Termination Date, they will not: 

 

(a) seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 

constitutionality of any Iowa tax statute relating to the taxation of property contained as a 

part of the Development Property or the Project determined by any tax official to be 

applicable to the Development Property or the Project, or raise the inapplicability or 

constitutionality of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings, including 

delinquent tax proceedings; or 

 

(b) seek any tax deferral, exemption, abatement, or roll back, either presently 

or prospectively authorized under Iowa Code Chapters 15, 403, 404 or 427B, or any other 

local or State or federal law, with respect to the taxation of real property, including 

improvements and fixtures thereon, contained on the Development Property or the 

Project between the date of execution of the Original Minimum Assessment Agreement 

and the Termination Date; or 

 

(c) request the Assessor to reduce the Minimum Actual Value; or 

 

(d) appeal to the board of review of the City, County, State or to the Director 

of Revenue of the State to reduce the Minimum Actual Value; or 

 

(e) cause a reduction in the actual value or the Minimum Actual Value 

through any other proceedings. 

 

5. Neither the preambles nor provisions of this MAA Amendment No. 2 are 

intended to, or shall be construed as, modifying the terms of the Development Agreement as 

amended, and in the event of any inconsistency, the terms of the Development Agreement, as 

amended, shall control.  Unless otherwise noted, the capitalized terms in this MAA Amendment 

-487-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-6 

Execution Version 

No. 2 have the same meaning as defined in the Development Agreement, as previously amended, 

and the Original Minimum Assessment Agreement, as previously amended. 

 

6.  Except for any sale, conveyance or transfer of any portion of the Development 

Property as permitted by the Development Agreement, as amended (in which case the Original 

Minimum Assessment Agreement and this MAA Amendment No. 2 shall run with the land and 

shall be assigned to the purchaser or transferee), this MAA Amendment No. 2 shall not be 

assignable without the consent of the City and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

and be enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.   

 

7. Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive the rights of the Developer or Owner 

under Iowa Code Section 403.6(19) to contest that portion of any actual value assignment made 

by the Assessor in excess of the Minimum Actual Value established herein.  In no event, 

however, shall Developer or Owner seek to reduce the actual value to an amount below the 

Minimum Actual Value established herein during the term of this MAA Amendment No. 2.  This 

MAA Amendment No. 2 may be amended or modified and any of its terms, covenants, 

representations, warranties or conditions waived, only by a written instrument executed by the 

parties hereto, or in the case of a waiver, by the party waiving compliance. 

 

8. If any term, condition or provision of this MAA Amendment No. 2 is for any 

reason held to be illegal, invalid or inoperable, such illegality, invalidity or inoperability shall not 

affect the remainder hereof, which shall at the time be construed and enforced as if such illegal 

or invalid or inoperable portion were not contained herein. 

 

9. The Minimum Actual Value herein established shall be of no further force and 

effect and this MAA Amendment No. 2 shall terminate on the Termination Date set forth in 

Sections 1 and 2 above and in the Original Minimum Assessment Agreement.  

 

10. Except as amended and/or modified by this MAA Amendment No. 2, the Original 

Minimum Assessment Agreement, as previously amended, is hereby ratified and confirmed and 

all other terms of the Original Minimum Assessment Agreement, as previously amended, shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

11. Owner has provided a title opinion or commitment to the City listing all 

lienholders of record of the Mill Race Parcel as of the date of this MAA Amendment No. 2 and 

all such lienholders have signed consents to this MAA Amendment No. 2, which consents are 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

12. This MAA Amendment No. 2 shall be promptly recorded by the City with the 

Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  Such filing shall constitute notice to any subsequent 

encumbrancer or purchaser of the Development Property (or part thereof), whether voluntary or 

involuntary, and this MAA Amendment No. 2 shall be binding and enforceable in its entirety 

against any such subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer, including the holder of any mortgage.  

The City shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

[Signatures start on Next Page] 

  

-488-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-7 

Execution Version 

LIENHOLDER'S CONSENT 

 

 

The undersigned Lienholder hereby consents to the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 

amended, and agrees to be bound hereby. 

 

 

 

NAME OF LIENHOLDER: ____________________ 

 

  By: ______________________________ 

          Signature 

 

  __________________________________ 

  Date 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

    )  SS  

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared _________________________ 

and ___________________________, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, 

did say that they are the __________________and _______________, respectively, of 

__________ and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said company; and that the said 

_________________________, and ______________________ acknowledged the execution of 

said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said domestic company, by them voluntarily 

executed. 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

[Add additional pages for each Lienholder 

listed in title opinion submitted by Developer] 

 

 

  

-489-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-8 

Execution Version 

CERTIFICATION OF ASSESSOR 

  

The undersigned, having reviewed the plans and specifications for the Hotel Facility to be 

constructed and the market value assigned to the land upon which the Hotel Facility are to be 

constructed, and being of the opinion that the minimum market value contained in the foregoing 

Amendment appears reasonable, hereby certifies as follows:  The undersigned Assessor, being 

legally responsible for the assessment of the property described in the foregoing MAA 

Amendment No. 2, certifies that the actual value assigned to Mill Race Property and RPP 

Property (collectively "Mill Race Parcel"), upon completion of the Hotel Facility, but no later 

than January 1, 2020,  shall not be less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) (land and 

buildings), all until the Termination Date as set forth in the Original Minimum Assessment 

Agreement and the MAA Amendment No. 2. 

______________________   ____________________________________ 

Date      Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by _________________________, Assessor for the 

County of Black Hawk, Iowa. 

 

_______________________    ________________________________ 

Date       Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

Consistent with Iowa Code § 403.6(19)(b), filed with this assessor certification is a copy of 

subsection 19 as follows: 
19. a. A municipality, upon entering into a development or redevelopment agreement pursuant to section 403.8, subsection 1, or 

as otherwise permitted in this chapter, may enter into a written assessment agreement with the developer of taxable property in 

the urban renewal area which establishes a minimum actual value of the land and completed improvements to be made on the 

land until a specified termination date which shall not be later than the date after which the tax increment will no longer be 

remitted to the municipality pursuant to section 403.19, subsection 2. The assessment agreement shall be presented to the 

appropriate assessor. The assessor shall review the plans and specifications for the improvements to be made and if the minimum 

actual value contained in the assessment agreement appears to be reasonable, the assessor shall execute the following certification 

upon the agreement: 

 

The undersigned assessor, being legally responsible for the assessment of the above described property upon completion of the 

improvements to be made on it, certifies that the actual value assigned to that land and improvements upon completion shall not 

be less than $ ......... 

 

b. This assessment agreement with the certification of the assessor and a copy of this subsection shall be filed in the office of the 

county recorder of the county where the property is located. Upon completion of the improvements, the assessor shall value the 

property as required by law, except that the actual value shall not be less than the minimum actual value contained in the 

assessment agreement. This subsection does not prohibit the assessor from assigning a higher actual value to the property or 

prohibit the owner from seeking administrative or legal remedies to reduce the actual value assigned except that the actual value 

shall not be reduced below the minimum actual value contained in the assessment agreement. An assessor, county auditor, board 

of review, director of revenue, or court of this state shall not reduce or order the reduction of the actual value below the minimum 

actual value in the agreement during the term of the agreement regardless of the actual value which may result from the 

incomplete construction of improvements, destruction or diminution by any cause, insured or uninsured, except in the case of 

acquisition or reacquisition of the property by a public entity. Recording of an assessment agreement complying with this 

subsection constitutes notice of the assessment agreement to a subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer of the land or any part of it, 

whether voluntary or involuntary, and is binding upon a subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer. 

  

-490-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-9 

Execution Version 

 (SEAL)      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF IOWA      ) 

      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 On this _____ day of _______________, 2018, before me a Notary Public in and for said 

County, personally appeared James P. Brown and Jacqueline Danielsen to me personally known, 

who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipal Corporation, created and existing under the laws of the State 

of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipal 

Corporation, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipal 

Corporation by authority and resolution of its City Council and said Mayor and City Clerk 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it 

voluntarily executed. 

      ____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa  

 

 

       BROOMSTICK LODGING, LLC 

By: ______________________________ 

 Damen Trebilcock, Director of Development 

 

 

STATE OF ______________  ) 

     )  SS  

COUNTY OF _____________  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Damen Trebilcock, to me 

personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Vice President of 

Development for Broomstick Lodging, LLC and that said instrument was signed on behalf of 

said corporation; and that the signor acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the 

voluntary act and deed of said corporation, by him voluntarily executed. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for such County & 

State 

  

-491-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 8-10 

Execution Version 

RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

      Mark Kittrell, Member & Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF ______________  ) 

     )  SS  

COUNTY OF _____________  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Mark Kittrell, to me personally 

known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Member and Manager of  River 

Place Properties LC and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said limited liability 

company; and that the said Member and Manager acknowledged the execution of said instrument 

to be the voluntary act and deed of said limited liability company, by him voluntarily executed. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for such County & State 

 

-492-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 9-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 9 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

FINAL PLAT RIVER PLACE 3RD ADDITION 

-493-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 9-2 

Execution Version 

 

-494-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 9-3 

Execution Version 

-495-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 10-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 10 TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

EASEMENT FOR CITY PLAZA CONSTRUCTION

 

-496-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 10-2 

Execution Version 

 

-497-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 10-3 

Execution Version 

 

-498-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 11-1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT 11 TO SECOND AMENDMENT 

TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR MILL RACE PARCEL 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 268-5164 
 
 

TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
 

 The undersigned BROOMSTICK LODGING, LLC., (hereinafter “Grantor”), 
in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa (hereinafter “Grantee”), its successors and assigns, a temporary easement 
over, under, and across the real estate legally described below, for purposes of 
construction, reconstruction, replacement, operation and maintenance of the 
Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project, together with the right of ingress to and 
egress from the real estate described below, in order to perform all work and do all 
other things reasonably necessary to exercise all rights granted to Grantee in this 
easement, provided that such easement shall not unreasonably interfere with grantor’s 
business operation or access thereto. This Easement shall expire the earlier of October 
1, 2018, or upon completion of Segment 3 of the levee project.  
 
 Said temporary easement is granted over the following real estate owned by 
Grantor within the following defined area, not including real estate owned by Grantee, 
to-wit: 
 

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN PART OF LOTS 2 AND 3 OF 
AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY PLAT  IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS. 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEASTERLY MOST CORNER OF 
PARCEL ‘G’ SHOWN ON A PLAT OF SURVEY THAT IS RECORDED 
IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2013-00002682 IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
BLACK HAWK COUNTY RECORDER; THENCE SOUTH 26°05’09” 
WEST ON A SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘G’, 37.26 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 64°00’31” WEST ON A SOUTHWESTERLY 
LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘G’, 4.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF THE PARCEL OF LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED; 

-499-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 11-2 

Execution Version 

THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 64°00’31” WEST ON A 
SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘G’ ALSO BEING A 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 82.64 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 71°20’01” WEST, ON A 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘G’ ALSO BEING A 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 67.19 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 51°34’47” WEST ON A 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘G’ ALSO BEING A 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 28.69 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61°04’21” EAST, 285.26 
FEET TO A NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK 
LODGING LLC PROPERTY; THENCE NORTH 27°51’10” WEST ON A 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 27.91 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59°04’54” WEST ON A 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 81.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 45°58’05” WEST ON A 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 35.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 26°05’09” EAST ON A 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 15.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH 63°54’51” WEST ON A 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 4.70 FEET; THENCE NORTH 26°05’09” EAST ON A 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 
PROPERTY, 38.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 11,585 SQUARE FEET OR 0.27 ACRE 

 
Exhibit A illustrates the easement location with defined real estate owned by Grantor 
and Grantee. 
 
 This easement shall be temporary in nature, terminating on the earlier of October 
1, 2018, or upon completion of Segment 3 of the levee project, and shall benefit and 
shall be binding upon Grantor and Grantee, and their respective heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns, and shall constitute a covenant that runs with 
the Grantor’s land.  
 

Upon completion of any construction or maintenance work undertaken by 
Grantee upon the above-described real estate, the Grantee shall be required to replace 
or restore any and all damage to said real estate resulting from said construction or 
maintenance work as is reasonable under the circumstances. 

  

-500-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 11-3 

Execution Version 

BROOMSTICK LODGING, LLC 
 
 

By ___________________________ 
      Damen Trebilcock,  
Vice President of Development 

 
STATE OF __________  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________________, 2018, before me the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, personally appeared Damen 
Trebilcock, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the 
Vice President of Development for  Broomstick Lodging, LLC and that said instrument 
was signed on behalf of said corporation; and that the signor acknowledged the 
execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said corporation, by 
him voluntarily executed. 
 
  

 Notary Public in and for the State of -
_________ 

 
My Commission Expires:___________ 
 

 

-501-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 11-4 

Execution Version 

ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 
 
 The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”), does hereby accept and approve the 
foregoing Easement. 
 
 Dated this ______ day of __________________________, 2018. 
 
 
  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
ATTEST:   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

  

 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on __________________, 2018, 
by James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
  

 Notary Public in and for the State of 
Iowa 

 
My Commission Expires: ___________ 

 
 

-502-

Item G.2.s. 



 

Exhibit 11-5 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT A TO TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
Temporary Construction Easement Location 

 
01471056-1\10283-002 

-503-

Item G.2.s. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 17, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  SW-000-3148 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, June 4, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, June 12, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders 
be published by May 25, 2018. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications will be 
ready for distribution to contractors on May 25, 2018 allowing more than two (2) weeks 
of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk and trails on City property, and also 
will provide sidewalk and trail infills around the City where none currently exist.  
 
The total estimated cost of the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project is $132,429.38. The funding for the project will be provided by the GO Bonds 
and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-505-

Item G.2.t. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 17, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 26-207 - Speed limits enumerated. 
 
 
 
The intended posted speed of the newly designed and constructed portion of Greenhill 
Road from Hudson Road to West 27th Street is 35 mph to match the priorities and 
design for the Greenhill Road Extension Project. 
 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 26-207- Speed 
limits enumerated so the code matches what has been designed and constructed. 
Please see the attached redlined version of City Code Section 26-207 - Speed limits 
enumerated.  
 
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limit to 35 mph on 
Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to West 27th Street. 
 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-507-

Item G.3. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON GREENHILL ROAD FROM HUDSON ROAD WEST TO 
WEST TWENTY SEVENTH STREET IN SUBSECTION 26-207(7) OF DIVISION 
5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 26, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 7, Thirty-five miles per hour, of Section 26-207, Speed limits 

enumerated, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following unnumbered paragraph: 

 
Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street. 

 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     ____________    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

-509-

Item G.3. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 7, 2018.
	[180507MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Continuation of the public hearing on a proposed plan for the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area.
	[PH-South CF UR Plan-ALL.pdf]
	a. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan.
	3. Pass an ordinance providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its first consideration.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2923, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city in connection with the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan), upon its second consideration.
	[Ord. 2923-Amendment 4-CF Unified Hwy 58 UR Plan.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2924, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary sewer rates, upon its second consideration.
	[Ord. 2924-Sewer Rates.doc]

	3. Pass Ordinance #2925, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to storm water management rates, upon its second consideration.
	[Ord. 2925-Storm water Rates.doc]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards and Commissions:
(1) Katy Susong, Board of Appeals, indefinite term.
(2) Phyllis Carter, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2021.
(3) Betty Danielson, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2021.
(4) Clare Struck, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2021.
(5) Mary Carlson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021.
(6) Annie Gougler, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021.
(7) Leslie Prideaux, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021.
	[1-Appts-Reappts 5-21.docx]
	[2-Board of Appeals Application.pdf]
	[3-Comm Center & Sr Serv - Carter (currently serving) 5-17-18.pdf]
	[4-Comm Center & Sr Serv - Danielson (currently serving) 5-9-18.pdf]

	b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 7, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Public Safety Awards. 
(2) University Avenue Update.
(3) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 05 07 18.doc]

	c. Receive and file the bids received for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project.
	[1. Bid Opening.docx]
	[2. Bid Summary.pdf]

	d. Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.
	[Set PH - PSE - 2018 Sidwalk & Trail.docx]

	e. Approve the following special event related requests: 
(1) Street closure, College Street, June 7, 2018 (with an alternate date of June 14, 2018).
(2) Street closure, East 10th Street, June 8, 2018.
(3) Parking variances, College Hill Arts Festival, June 15-16, 2018.
(4) Street closures & parking variances, Gran Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride & FondoFest, August 18, 2018.
	[0-Special Event Request Council Memo.doc]
	[1-Street closure-Farmers Market Kickoff.pdf]
	[2-Street closure-Radiance Block Party.pdf]
	[3-Parking variance-CH Arts Fest.pdf]
	[4-Street closure-parking var-FondoFest.pdf]

	f. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
(1) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road.
(2) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street.
(3) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue.
(4) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive.
(5) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street.
(6) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way.
(7) Electric Underground, 5901 University Avenue.
(8) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street.
(9) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive.
(10) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive.
	[05212018 Tobacco Applications.pdf]

	g. Approve the following applications for liquor licenses:
(1) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(2) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(3) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.
(4) Old Chicago Pizza and Taproom, College Square Mall, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(5) The Other Place, 2214 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(6) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor.
	[Liquor Beer 5-15-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution rescheduling the date of the regularly scheduled Cedar Falls City Council meeting of July 2, 2018 to July 9, 2018.
	[Resolution Rescheduling Council Meeting Date.doc]

	b. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Budget Appropriations.
	[FY19 Budget Appropriations.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Payroll Resolution.
	[1-council resolution.mem.doc]
	[2-Payroll Resolution FY19.pdf]
	[3-GOL Grade Order List.pdf]
	[4-19WORKSHOP-SESSION-EVENT.pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY19 Fee Schedule.
	[1-FY19FeeSchedCouncilMemo.doc]
	[2-FY19 Proposed Fee Schedule.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station.
	[1_Rapp_Station_Lease_Cover_May_2018.pdf]
	[2_Lease Agreement_Rapp_Station Final May 14 2018.pdf]

	f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to the Bennington Township Schoolhouse.
	[1_Bennington_Township_Schoolhouse_Lease_Cover_May_2018.pdf]
	[2_Lease Agreement_School_House_Final_May_14_2018.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of $457,535.03, for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project.
	[1. Bid Opening.docx]
	[2. Bid Summary.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project.
	[1. Campus Box Contract.docx]
	[2. Contract.pdf]
	[3. Bonds.pdf]
	[4. Insurance.pdf]
	[5. Form of Proposal.pdf]

	i. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project.
	[1. 2018 Permeable Alley Contract.docx]
	[2. Form of Contract.pdf]
	[3. Bond.pdf]
	[4. Insurance.pdf]
	[5. Form of Proposal.pdf]

	j. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and authorizing execution of two Rehabilitation Contracts with Kirvan Enterprises LLC, relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation projects.
	[1. Council memo-Rehab contracts.docx]
	[2. 1622 Clay Street Contract.pdf]
	[3. 1024 West 2nd Street Contract.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subcontract for Consulting Services with Tallgrass Archaeology LLC relative to a Certified Local Government Grant to prepare a nomination for the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic Places. 
	[0. Council memo 5-15-18 subcontract.docx]
	[1. SUBTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 4-25-18 Initial.docx]
	[2. Attachment A - Scope of work.docx]
	[3. Attachment B - CLG grant Schedule.docx]
	[4. Signed Grant in aid agreement - Wild District Nomination.pdf]
	[5. Exhibit D CONSULTANT Insurance Requirements.6-2-16.pdf]
	[6. Exhibit E-Standard Terms & Conditions.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving the River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat.
	[1. CC Staff Report for River Place Lot 4 replat.docx]
	[2. Signed 5-16-2018 River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat5-17-2018.pdf]
	[3. Signed Deed of Dedication.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of Cedar Heights Drive.
	[1-cc memo for STBG programming agreement on cedar heights drive 5-2-18.docx]
	[2-cedar heights drive programming agreement.pdf]
	[3-resolution for STBG programming agreement on cedar heights drive on 5-21-18.doc]

	n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of the Union Road recreational trail.
	[1-cc memo for STBG programming agreement on union road trail 5-2-18.docx]
	[2-union road trail programming agreement.pdf]
	[3-resolution for STBG programming agreement on union road trail on 5-21-18.doc]

	o. Resolution approving an amendment to the preliminary plat and phasing plan for The Arbors.
	[1.CC Staff Report for the Arbors revised plat on 5-16-18.docx]
	[2.location map.pdf]
	[3.The Arbors PP Plat Revised.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant Agreement for property located at 714 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1-cc memo for parcel 49 keep vacant agreement on 5-16-18.docx]
	[2-Executed Keep Vacant Agreement BODENSTEINER.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant Agreement for property located at 810 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1-cc memo for parcel 52 keep vacant agreement on 5-16-18.docx]
	[2-EXECUTED KEEP VACANT AGREEMENT 52 Shatek May 12.pdf]

	r. Resolution of support for Community Main Street, Inc. and approving and authorizing execution of a Main Street Iowa Program Agreement with the Iowa Economic Development Authority and Community Main Street, Inc.
	[1. Council memo-CMS Agreement 5-15-18B.docx]
	[2. CMS Program Agreement 5-15-18.pdf]
	[3. City Resolution of Support 5-15-18.pdf]

	s. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties LC relative to the River Place Development Project.
	[1. Council memo-2nd Amendment 5-17-18.docx]
	[2. Second Amendment to the River Place DA- Execution Version (01484244x7F7E1).pdf]

	t. Resolution setting June 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.
	[Set PH - PSE - 2018 Sidwalk & Trail.docx]


	3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to West 27th Street, upon its first consideration.
	[1. Greenhill Rd Speed Limits Ordinance Memo.docx]
	[2. Greenhill Rd Speed Limit.docx]


	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	L. Adjournment.



